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SENATOR MARTIN L. GREENBERG (Chairman): The Judiciary Committee hearings 

concerning the renomination of Dr. Fred Burke will continue. At the end of the last 

session, the people with time problems were asked to come up to the front and speak 

to Mr. Tumulty. Some did and we have a list of those people. We will try to 

accommodate them. Those of you who are here today who also have time problems, 

we will try to accommodate. But I would like to repeat what I said at our last 

meeting. We will appreciate it very much, if you have printed statements, that you 

hand them in to be incorporated in the record; then you can highlight them instead 

of reading them. They will become part of the transcript and will be read. They 

will be available for all of the Senators on the Committee as well as the Senate as 

a whole. 

We have talked about time limitations and imposing time limitations if 

necessary. I prefer not to do that. But if it does become necessary, the Committee 

will caucus and make a determination. In the meantime, we would like to avoid that 

and we would like your cooperation. 

Mr. E. J. Kiess. Good morning, Mr. Kiess. 

E M 0 R Y J. K I E S S, J R.: My name is Ed Kiess and I am the Executive 

Director of the New Jersey Association of Elementary School Administrators. A brief 

description of who we are: We are the professional organization that represents over 

1400 elementary and middle-school administrators and supervisors in grades kinder

garten through eight in the State of New Jersey. Our Association wishes to go on 

record in SUPPort of the renomination of Dr. Fred G. Burke as New Jersey's Commissioner of 
Education. 

All times in the history of mankind, as we all know, are trying times. But, it 

would seem, none appears to be more trying than the current times in regard to 

the future of this nation's most noble experiment, the providing of a free education 

for all of our children. 

New Jersey, always in the forefront of this experiment, adopted the Public 

Education Act in 1975 to see to it that New Jersey's children would have an equal 

opportunity to a free, thorough and efficient system of education. A tremendous 

mandate was handed down by the Legislature. Dr. Burke accepted that legislative 

mandate and has tried during these most trying of times to develop and set in 

place that mandate. 

Keep in mind that that mandate was not to develop a new system where none 
existed. The mandate was a mandate for change and improvement at the height of 

a time when the national household word was accountability. The mandate directed 
change in a system that did exist. To be the primary change agent, affecting hundreds 

of thousands, is a role that easily projects threats to security, to say the least. 

To be willing to accept such an assignment, fully aware of the high exposure to criticism 

and the high possibility of public perceptions of failure speaks highly of the 

individual. Dr. Burke accepted that agenda and we have supported him. 

He, his office and the Department have been cordial, cooperative and 

accessible. Never before has a Commissioner of Education cooperated with our 

Association to the degree we now enjoy, in terms of seeking our input prior to decision

making on those issues he perceives as having impact on our role. Never before has 

our Association been invited to participate in the development of so many surveys, 

guidelines, study committees ,and the like. 

Dr. Burke perceives that educational decisions must be made only after a 

broad involvement of those who will be affected. We, of course, do not always agree 

with the final outcome, none ever will. But we have been involved as we have never 
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been involved before. 

He has been sensitive to the impact legislative and State Board decisions 

have on the local level and has continually attempted to facilitate implementation. 

The decentralization of the State Department bureaucracy to concentrate such services 

at the county level is just one example. His continuing support of the development 

of the Educational Improvement Centers is an example. When he arrived in New Jersey, 

only EIC - South was in operation. Now, in answer to ever increasing demands for 

technical assistance, 4 EIC's serve all of New Jersey. 

It seems more than appropriate to point out that there abounds in our 

Nation two opposing forces and I think they bear directly on the problems we are 

facing as we consider the renomination of this Commissioner. One force makes 

America try to tolerate nothing less than best. The other force is that of the 

desire for instant conclusions and instant completion of all goals and tasks. 

Some refer to us as "Instant America- the add water and stir society." Do we 

all really believe that all would be well at this point in the development of T & E? 

Did we all really believe that there wouldn't be any course changes along the way? 

Some call these course changes flip-flops: some call them cave-ins to pressure 

groups. We feel they are course changes on a trajectory of trial and error. Because 

T & E had no rule book, T & E had no road map, T & E had no caution signs, many 

mistakes have been made. 

Dr. Burke has been assigned to preside over and mediate a long list of 

conflict situations. These situations pose local and State government against one 

another. They force various parts of our New Jersey society one against the other. 

They demand greater quality for fewer tax dollars. 

He has accepted the role as the chief child advocate in New Jersey and at 

the same time has to determine cap waiver requests following the very tough cap laws. 

He is responsible to guide decision-making in this era of tax reform and declining 

enrollments. His is almost a no-win situation. Of course, he is going to be 

criticized. In almost every situation, he stands to be criticized. And in most 

issues and conflicts, we all well know there will be a winner and a loser. 

We appreciate his position and welcome his support with regard to the 

maintenance~of tenure for middle management in the public schools. At the same 

time, we strongly differ with him on his stand in support of the abolition of 

middle-management bargaining rights. 

We have taken strong issue with him with regard to the generation of "paper 

work" and forms that seem always to end up on the desks of those responsibile to 

operate and manage the individual buildings in New Jersey's School Districts. We 

are pleased to note a reverse in this trend as the phases of T & E unfold. We 

feel assured that he is well aware of the problem we label "administrative over

burden" and that our concern will continue to be his concern in this regard. He 

agrees that educational leaders in our school buildings cannot spend each day 

trapped behind their desks and also guide high quality improvement of the educational 

programs of our children. And we agree with him that much of the flow of paper, 

though initially generated by the Legislature and the Department, is also partly 

generated at the local level and that a shared effort should be made to refocus 

the efforts of building principals to improvement and maintenance of a high quality 

instructional program. 

He shares our strong concern for the declining relationship that exists between 

school buildings and the communities they serve. He hopes to continue to address 
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this concern and mutually develop strategy designed to bring parents and school 

staffs closer together. 

It seems cataclysmic to us to observe' that there is an obvious contradiction 

evolving in American society and the presence of this contradiction requires a 

strong Commissioner and requires that we not subjectour New Jersey schools to 

severe change at this time. And that contradiction is that while New Jersey 

citizens are increasingly resistant to increasing costs in education, they are 

becoming more and more removed and more and more apathetic with regard to their 

schools. 

The Commissioner of Education must guide us through these years, years that 

have people who are not familiar with what schools are now about yet who, at the same 

time,are denying schools the funds to operate. 

Should we seek a stranger to New Jersey's problems to guide us through 

these troubled waters or should we keep with us one who is deeply familiar with 

our problems, and, together, work our way to better days? 

We believe Commissioner Burke shares our concern over early childhood 

education. We have communicated, particularly during this International Year of 

the Child, that New Jersey should shift from a mainly remedially oriented agenda 

in school reform to an agenda of prevention in school reform. In conversations 

with us, he has agreed that greater emphasis at the pre-school and primary levels 

would do much to strengthen education and, as well, to reduce long-term costs to the 

taxpayer, not only through a decreased demand or need for compensatory programs, but 

also reduce the need for other social services provided by other departments of 

government. We look forward to the coming of an era of prevention as the later phases 

of T & E are developed and set in place. 

The Commissioner of Education wears so many hats. He sits as a member of the 

Governor's cabinet; he sits as Secretary of the State Board. By virtue of this 

position, he is the leader of the professional education community of New Jersey 

and he is the primary advocate for children in our State. In calmer times, those 

roles might even be identical and interchangeable - not so today. There are opposing fo~, 

vested interests, rising costs - you all know the litany of these conflicts and pitfalls. 

You well know also the old saying, "not even a turtle makes progress unless he sticks 

his neck out." Well, Dr. Burke has stuck his neck out and he has made progress. We 

applaud his efforts and, as well, we have been his critics. We applaud his efforts 
in an attempt to provide stability and a degree of standardization in the evaluation 

of staff members. This effort, possibly one of the most controversial he tackled, 

brought much criticism. But with the State Board of Education, he stuck to the 

agenda. He sought input from all those to be impacted by State level evaluation 

requirements and concluded with a minimum system for New Jersey that will provide 

consistency and fairness. 

Therefore, the New Jersey Association of Elementary School Administrators 

strongly urges that this Committee report favorably on the recommendation of the 

Governor that Dr. Burke be confirmed for a second five-year term. We need consistency. 

We need stability. He should be allowed to continue his leadership in the imple

mentation of T & E. 

We thank the Committee and,if you have any questions, we will be available. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: Thank you very much. 

Senator Maressa, any questions? 

SENATOR MARESSA: No, I don't have any questions, thank you. 
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SENATOR GREENBERG: Senator Musto. 

SENATOR MUSTO: No. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: Senator Sheil. 

SENATOR SHEIL: No questions. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: We understand you have a plane to Washington to catch. 

MR. KIESS: Yes. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: 

of your thoughts. 

We are on our way to our National Convention. 

I appreciate your coming down and giving us the benefits 

I just have one question for you though. I understand that the testimony that 

you have given represents the view of the New Jersey Association of Elementary School 

Administrators. 

MR. KIESS: That is correct. 

SENATOR GREEN:SERG: Thank you. 

Barbara Potkay. 

B A R B A R A P 0 T K A Y: Good morning. My name is Barbara Potkay and I 

am a life-long resident of the City of Trenton. I am a graduate of Trenton Public 

Schools. I am a former teacher in the Trenton Public Schools and I have served as a 

member of the TrentoQ Board of Education since 1969, with the exception of a two-year 

period between 1975 and 1977. I am here to speak against the reappointment of Fred 

G. Burke as Commissioner of Education. 

I listened with great interest to all the speakers on Monday, Marcp 19th. 

The speakers were all very different people from different racial, religious, ethnic, 

educational and financial backgrounds. They represented different communities: 

small communities, large communities, affluent communities and poor ones. But the 

message was always the same: our needs in education are not being met. 

The Commissioner has· been casual and indifferent to our problems. The 

Commissioner has not provided the creative type of leadership that we all need so 

desperately right now in New Jersey. The great significance is that so many different 

people from different parts of New Jersey - north, south and central - are saying 

the same things: We are not happy with what is happening or what is not happening 

in education in New Jersey. The buck stops at the top. We hold the Commissioner 

responsible. These are our personal judgments which can be neither argued nor 

ignored. 

I don't believe that the legislators of New Jersey can ignore this message 

which has come across so loud and so clear in the past session. 

I had a prepared statement for Monday's session. But since much of it is 

repetitive of what others have said, in the interest of time, I shall submit the 

written statement for the record and extract only those portions which I feel 

present a different viewpoint. 

I agree with Senator Dodd and others that Commissioner Burke is leading 

the State of New Jersey away from excellence and toward mediocrity in public 

education. In my prepared statement, I discussed "thorough and efficient,;, the cut 

in State aid to the handicapped, the cut in regular State aid, student test 

scores on the minimum basic skills test and the first collegiate basic skills 

test, and the Commissioner's relationship to the State Board of Education. All 

of these areas have been covered in great depth by other speakers. 

I would like to start in the middle of the presentation and discuss what 

happened in Newark and what is happening in Trenton. The situation in the Newark 

School System is another case in point. The State Board ordered the Commissioner 
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to take whatever steps necessary to avert a crisis in Newark. Yet the Commissioner 

allowed two years to elapse before the illegal deficit of millions of dollars. And 

two years passed before steps were taken to correct this illegal deficit and to 

balance the budget of the State's largest school system. 

In his report on the Newark situation, the Commissioner insisted that while 

he knew of the illegal deficits, his responsibility was not to interfere directly. 

The Commissioner maintained that he refrained from taking any direct action to 

prevent the deficit because it was strongly believed that it was the local district's 

obligation first to remedy its own problems - educational and fiscal. The decision 

not to intervene was consistent with the law and the long tradition of local control 

in education in New Jersey, the Commissioner said. Yet, right now, in the Trenton 

School District where the 1978-79 budget is in balance and a balanced budget within 

the cap limitation has been submitted for 1979-80, the Commissioner is attempting 

to do away with local control and institute a complete State take-over of the district. 

Why did the Commissioner wait almost three years to do something about Newark's 

illegal deficit, stressing the importance, the legality and the tradition of local 

control of education? And why is he now rushing to take over the Trenton School 

District where the budget is balanced and legal? What has happened to the precious 

concept of local control? And what will be the future of local control of education 

if the feat is accomplished? 

The entire procedure of the show cause hearings smacks of big brotherism. 

The prosecutors, the witnesses, the hearing officer, the. judge and the jury are all 

State Department employees. I cannot believe that this is a proper or a fair procedure. 

The timing of this in-depth investigation in the Trenton School System must not go 

unnoticed. A State Task Force issued no exit report when it left the Trenton District 

in September 1978. Therefore, there was no indication that deficiencies that 

had existed prior to December 1977 had not been corrected, with the exception of 

the remediation plan in April 1978. Yet, out of the blue, without warning, in 

February, 1979, the Commissioner issued a show cause order at precisely the s~ne 

time that his reappointment came up. This is not coincidental. It is timed very 

exactly to show that the Commissioner is implementing and enforcing "thorough and 

efficient," something that he has been very casual about in the past. 

We have included for your consideration the records of the proceedings of the 

show cause hearings in Trenton to date. After reading this material, I am certain 

that you will agree with us that the entire procedure was a waste of time, effort and 

taxpayers' money, both on the part of the Commissioner and the State Department of 

Education, as well as the administration and staff of the Trenton Board of Education. 

In its testimony I the State has not identified arv problans of suff:icmt magni tud~ to 

justify taking away local control. It is inconceivable that so much time, effort 

and money has been wasted to investigate water fountains, window glazings, storage 

space and other such trivial matters in Trenton, while the Commissioner has turned 

a deaf ear to the cries for help that are coming from Newark right now. The end 

result is confused policy with the local school districts and the children they 

serve suffering the dire consequences. 

The Newark Star Ledger on January 21, 1979, stated it best, and I quote: 

"The State presence in local school matters has been nothing short of pervasive 

since the passage of the School Reform legislation in 1975, pervasive and confounding." 

In my opinion, if Commissioner Burke is reappointed, State school policy 

will continue to be muddled, confused and confusing for years to come. 

The last two areas I covered in the written material dealt with the missing 
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money or, as a previous speaker so aptly put it, Forsgate, New Jersey's Watergate, 

and the transition team report. Since both these subjects have been discussed 

very thoroughly by others, I would like to conclude by saying, the transition taam 

report stressed the need for a new tone and creative leadership in education in 

the State of New Jersey. 

We, as citizens of New Jersey, must take this opportunity to petition the 

Legislature for this new tone and creative leadership in the education of the 

children of our State. Commissioner Burke has had five years to prove himself. 

He has tried and he has failed. We now have the golden opportunity to find someone 

who will provide the leadership that is so desperately needed right now in education 

in New Jersey. This would be the greatest gift we could give to the children of 

our State. We urge the Legislature to make this gift possible by not confirming 

the renomination of Commissioner Burke. Thank you very much, gentlemen. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: That you, Mrs. Potkay. Did you indicate you have 

a statement for us? 

MRS. PO~Y: Yes, I have it here. (Filed with Committee.) 

SENATOR GREENBERG: I will see if there are any questions. 

Senator Maressa. 

SENATOR MARESSA: I was just going to ask about getting a copy. I think 

it is a very fine statement. 

MRS. POTI<AY: These are just my notes. I have taken some from the 

original statement. But I assume the court reporter has taken down what I have 

said here. My other statement dealt with the areas that I explained I didn't 

want to go into in detail because I know you have heard it all before. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: Senator Musto. 

SENATOR MUSTO: No questions. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: Senator Sheil. 

SENATOR SHEIL: No questions. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: And welcome, Senator Parker. 

Thank you, Mrs. Potkay. 

Dr. George Wildman. 

D R. G E o R G E W I L D M A N: Mr. Chairman and members of the Committee, 

thank you for this opportunity to be here to speak on behalf of the educational 

improvement centers of New Jersey. Even though I serve as the Chairman of the 

Board of Directors of the EIC-South, I have discussed what I am about to present 

with each of the chairmen of every one of the other boards, as well as the 

directors. So they are all familiar with what is being presented. 

SENATOR MARES SA: Excuse me, Mr. Chairman. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: Yes. 

SENATOR MARESSA: I would just like to know if Dr. Wildman is here as 

a result of a consensus of the Board of Directors, under direction to come, or 

whether he is speaking for himself. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: In what capacity do you appear, Dr. Wildman? 

DR. WILDMAN: I am speaking, as it says on the second page of my presentation --

SENATOR MARESSA: I read that and I don't understand it. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: Would you explain it to us, please. 

DR. WILDMAN: Speaking on behalf of all the EIC's. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: Thank you very much. 

SENATOR MARESSA: But that is not my question. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: What is your question? 
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SENATOR MARESSA: Is he here as the result of a meeting? Was a resolution 

adopted? 

SENATOR GREENBERG: Was any official action taking authorizing you --

DR. WILDMAN: No official action, except that I consulted with every one 

of the Chairmen of the other Boards and with the Directors of the other centers. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: All right. That is your representation. Thank you. 

SENATOR MARESSA: Thank you very much. 

DR. WILDMAN: More than ten years ago, a group of educators in South 

Jersey felt the need for an organization to be formed that could give technical assistance 

to local school districts in the development of their educational programs for 

children. In the early stages there was considerable resistance and little general 

support of the concept. Eventually, with the help of Title III monies and the 

assistance of some key people, the original nucleus of an Educational Improvement 

Center was formed and encouraged. In the early '70's Commissioner Marburger gave 

impetus to the concept through his belief in the potential of such an idea. But it 

was not until Commissioner Fred Burke came on the s9ene that the Educational Improve-

ment Centers were to receive the kind of support that was to permit the EID's to 

make real progress. In the ensuing years, Commissioner Burke employed staff within 

his Department to explore the possibility of expanding the original concept to include 

four EIC's in the State. 

Commissioner Burke encouraged the concept in many ways. He believed that 

the full effectiveness of the EIC's could be realized only if the operation and 

control of the Centers were to be organized in a manner that would permit them to 

respond directly to the needs of the local districts, rather than simply to the 

Department of Education. 

Over the last few years, Commissioner Burke has exerted considerable effort 

to see that State funding has been forthcoming in order to make it possible for 

the EIC's to accomplish their original mission -- particularly in the area of 

technical assistance to local districts. He has been most cooperative and helpful 

in working with the Centers to develop legislation and effective administrative code 

regulations. While he has felt an obligation for the responsibility of his office, 

he has also been more than willing to see the EIC's exercise their rightful degree 

of autonomy as viable organizations. 

There is much more that could be stated, but as chairman of the Board of 

Directors of the Educational Improvement Center, South Jersey Region, and speaking 

on behalf of all EIC's, I would like the confirming committee to know that Commissioner 

Burke's support has been appreciated. The EIC's are hopeful of looking forward to 

such continued support in the years to come. 

I purposely did not make this a long statement because I think the idea of 

the support is expressed. The support that has been given to the EIC's and the 

growth the EIC's have had has become obvious. We have had, speaking now from the 

EIC-South's standpoint, a stability over the years. And I believe that that 

stability has been a key to growth. Some of the other centers have not had as long 

experience and, therefore, have not been able to have that kind of stability. It 

kind of proves the point that you need stability in education to see growth. We 

believe that is one of the reasons that a continuance of a Commissioner should 

be the outcome or should be why he should be approved. We do not believe that you 

can have the kind of progress that is necessary through having constant change 

too frequently. Let's put it that way. 
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I would like to have the opportunity to answer any questions that the 

Committee may have. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: Let's see if there are any. 

Senator Maressa. 

SENATOR MARESS: No. I understand your statement clearly. Thank you. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: Senator Musto. 

SENATOR MUSTO: No questions. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: Senator Parker. 

SENATOR PARKER: No questions. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: Senator Sheil. 

SENATOR SHEIL: No. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: Thank you very much. 

Robert Sweet. 

R 0 B E R T S W E E T: My name is Robert Sweet. I am a student from 

Union County. I live in Fanwood, New Jersey. It is about an hour's ride from 

here, give and take a few minutes. I have been a New Jersey resident all my life; 

that is 20 years. I have been in the New Jersey school system for 14 1/2 of those years. 

Presently, I am still in the New Jersey school system. 

The breakdown of that is 12 years in the Fairlawn School System, which is 

in Bergen County; a year in Scotch Plains, Fanwood High School, which is in Union 

County; and presently I am attending Union County Technical Institute in Scotch Plains, 

which is again in Union County. 

The reason that I am here today is that I came down earlier in the week to find 

out exactly what was going on in these meetings. I sat with great interest trying 

to find out what these people had to say: the pros and the cons. I came with an 

open mind. As of right now, I feel that the reappointment of Commissioner Burke 

would be a great injustice to the people of the State and everyone involved. 

I find also that it is not only him, but also the State Department of Education 

that is at fault. 

I could give a whole list of examples and I could go on all day. But I 

have two or three that will just give you a basic idea of some of the problems that 

have happened in school systems that are not in inner-cities, that are residential, 

that perhaps you haven't heard about. 

My first example would be in the Fairlawn High School. There was a great 

overestimation of the enrollment. This was in the early '60's into the '70's. It 

eventually caught up with the system in 1975-76. It caused the older ranking tenure 

teachers to push out other tenure teachers, along with teachers that didn't have 

tenure. An example of this would be an Elementary School Reading Specialist who 

forced out a High School Guidance Counsellor because she had an accreditation in 

the guidance field. This Guidance Counsellor had been at the school for I don't 

know how many years. But she was forced out of a job because they had to cut back 

somewhere. 

I see the same problem,from talking to teachers in Scotch Plains, happening 

again because of overestimates. The problem is not entirely the State's fault, it 

is not entirely the Board's fault or the town's fault. But it is a joint effort and 

there should be some effort made on all parts to work on that. 

I would like to know where Commissioner Burke was then. He was in office. I 

would like to know where his Department was then to step in or have some control over 

that and some accountability. Th&t is only one problem that existed in tbe Fairlawn 
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system. That one typifies what happened. 

I would like to give an example of what happened at the Scotch Plains-Fanwood 

High School during - I guess it was two or three years ago. There was an incident 

where cheerleaders were selected. Then there was a cry of prejudice and there had 

to be a reselection. I know it is a minor problem. But some of those cheerleaders 

were not reselected. There were lives threatened, people were physically injured, 

and a teacher's reputation was completely marred to the point if she had gone 

anywhere in the State, she would not have gotten a job. I would like to know 

where Mr. Burke was then. There should have been some kind of concern on his part 

and the Department's part. I don't mean they should step in on every situation, but 

that did turn into a very volatile situation. 

There was also a program there cal~an open-ended day. It was a very unique 

program. If you had open periods of time, you were supposed to spend them in the media 

center, the cost of which must have been into the millions of dollars. That media 

center is being wasted right now. I was recently at tho school within the week 

and the media center was completely empty. In the halls, it is likP beinq in 

prison with .se>cu:d.ty guards. The way the system is now, Lhoro has to be lhat kind 

of control. It has gotten to that point. You can't walk around during lunch. You 

are held accountable for everything that you do. 

There is one more example I would like to give and then I would like to sum 

up. 

I am a student at Union County Technical Institute. As of now, there is no 

Union County Community College, per se, because Union County Tech is under secondary 

education. It was chartered under that. Our degrees are: AAS degrees, a two-year 

degree, which we work very hard for, coming from Union College. At no time ---

I should say most of the time - no one attends Union College. They attend Union 

County Technical Institute. Why are our degrees coming through that college, which 

is a private college? It is not very publicly known, but it is a p:dvate college. 

From what I understand, the State looked at the problem. They said there was no 

real problem. I would like to know who they talked to; because from my viewpoint 

and that of the other students and teachers at my school, there is a problem there 

and nothing has been done about it. 

I feel that there is a pretty good analogy that can be made here: There is 

a rope and it is tied around someone's waist. It is let out so far and then it 

is pulled taut. That is where there should be some restrictions, some checks, some 

overseeing. As I see it, the rope has been let out and eventually it is going to 

knot around the State's throat and it is going to cut off the circulation. There 

has been too much free rein, too much allowed to go on, and it is about time some

thing is done about it. 

I could go on with different examples. But I think you have a preety good 

idea about what is happening and what will continue to happen if Commissioner Burke 

is reappointed. Commissioner Burke is at fault and so is the State Department of 

Education. But we as citizens of this State will also be at fault if we do not 

speak out against this reappointment. Five more years of Mr. Burke would further 

deteriorate good schools to mediocrity and those already at a low level would only 

get worse. That is entirely possible. Thank you very much. 

SENATOR GOLDBERG: Thank you, Mr. Sweet. Let's see if there are any questions. 

Senator Musto. 

SENATOR MUSTO: No questions. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: Senator Parker. 
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SENATOR PARKER: Are you speaking for any group or for yourself? 

MR. SWEET: I belong to an organization called COST. It is a concerned 

organization of students and teachers. It is funded through the SGA at ~y school. 

SENATOR PARKER: SGA? 

MR. SWEET: The Student Government Association. 

SENATOR OPARKER: And your group is opposed generally 

MR. SWEET: Well, I have been talking to different people. I coul~'t get 

a general consensus because we really just started out. I started this group as 

a concerned student and I am trying to get teachers and students involved in this, 

as well as administrators. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: Senator Sheil. 

SENATOR SHEIL: Just a quick comment on the Union College situation - you 

may or may not know that that is pot a problem for the Commissioner. That is the 

Board of Higher Education. 

MR. SWEET: That is my mistake. 

SENATOR SHEIL: And it does get State funding. Union College is not completely 

private. 

MR. SWEET: Union College funding comes through bids. They have to submit 

bids. I have checked this out. They are a private college. They are chartered as 

a private college. They submit bids and most of their funding comes from the State 

through those bids. 

SENATOR SHEIL: I think if you check, you will find they do get State funding: 

so it is a combination. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: Thank you very much. 

Fred Meissner. 

F R E D M E I s S N E R: Good morning, Mr. Chairman and members of the Committee. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: Good morning. 

MR. MEISSNER: My name is Fred Meissner. Until September of last year, I 

was deeply involved with the study and development of the minimum basic skills program 

that is being used in all of New Jersey's public schools today. 

By way of background, I think you should know that I am not an educator. I 

am a businessman. And my personal involvement with State educational matters dates 

back until only December of 1975 when I was asked to chair the Task Force on Competency 

Indicators and Standards, whose recommendations, incidentally, were used extensively 

in the development of the minimum basic skills program that was adopted for our State 

in November of '76. 

In January of '77, I was again asked to chair a State committee related to 

minimum skills. This was the Minimum Basic Skills Advisory Committee that was 

charged with the responsibility of overseeing a group of nine sub-committees working 

on the development of an annual testing program to be used in conjunction with the 

minimum basic skills program adopted the previous November. The tes~developed by 

these sub-committees were first administered to more than 400,000 3rd, 6th, 9th, qnd 

11th grade students in all New Jersey public schools in April of '78. 

The expected high student failure rates on these tests, which incidentally 

were subsequently borne out, prompted an extension of the life of the Minimum Basic 

Skills Advisory Committee to survey the State's capability to remediate students 

failing to attain the State-set standards for these tests. 

As some may recall, this survey resulted in a report on the State's remedial 

education capabilities that I presented to the Comm~sioner and the State Board of 

Education last September. This report was quite negative and highly critical of the 
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State Department of Education's administration of the compensatory education program 

throughout New Jersey. 

I mention this background at some length, Mr. Chairman, to indicate two 

things: first, that my involvement with the State Department of Education over the 

past three years was fairly extensive, giving me good opportunity to observe the 

Department and its operations, particularly in the minimum basic skills area, very 

closely: secondly, that my involvement was an objective one, allowing my committee 

findings to be critical of department organization and procedure whenever criticism 

seemed warranted. Also over the three-year period of my committee chairmanships, I was 

in regular touch with Commissioner Burke personally and met with him and his immediate 

staff quite frequently on matters pertaining to committee work. Throughout this 

relationship, I was impressed with Commissioner Burke's general knowledge of educational 

matters, his willingness to speak quite openly and frankly on information and person

alities involved with my committee activity, and his very obvious concern that 

whatever policy or procedures our committee developed be universally beneficial to 

all school districts in the State, regardless of the type or size. 

While my relationship with Commissioner Burke has always been friendly and 

mutually respectful, it is a matter of public record that we did not always agree. 

But in those instances when we did differ, I found him to be a good listener, under

' standing and tolerate of my position and willing to acc~pt suggestions for change 

when he was satisfied that a change had been well considered and was in fact support

able. 

I think it is significant too that, to my recollection, the Commissioner 

responded positively and had the State Department move promptly to implement almost 

every one of the recommendations that the three Minimum Skills Committees that I 

chaired ever presented to him and to the State Board of Education. And this includes 

the 17 recommendations contained in the Status of Remedial Programs Report that I 

alluded to earlier and which was so very critical of the Education Department's 

handling of the remedial education program throughout the State. These recommendations 

had to be difficult for the Commissioner to accept. Yet he moved on them all very 

promptly and I am satisfied at this sitting that good progress is being made in their 

implementation. 

In general, I have to conclude that the progress that is being made in New 

Jersey's minimum basic skills program and the Department's determined efforts to 
improve the handling of remedial education in the State are due largely to Commissioner 

Burke's personal interest and involvement. 
In closing, let me say that like others I am often concerned about some 

educational issue or policy that I learn about through the news media. And very 

often I find myself unsure as to just what the right position should be on certain 

issues. But I don't have to make the final decision on any of these issues and 

pretty soon my concern fades and in a little while I usually forget it. Unfortunately 

though, the Commissioner of any State department doesn't have the luxury of being 

able to forget a problem. He must make a decision and then live with it. And in 

education where very often issues are highly judgmental in nature and almost always 

clouded in heavy emotion, these decisiom can be very tough and very controversial. 

Like others, I haven't agreed with Commissioner Burke on some of his decisions 

and I have made no secret of that. But the evaluation of a person's performance 

shouldn't be based on just incidences of personal disagreement, but rather on an 

objective look at his total job. From my perspective and judging largely from a 

close association with him over a three-year period, particularly on the minimum 

basic skills matters, I think that on balance Commissioner Burke's performance has 
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been a good one, and a good one in some of the most difficult times that education 

in our State has seen. I feel his performance warrants his confirmation·to another 

term as New Jersey's Commissioner of Education. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: Thank you, Mr. Meissner. 

Mr. Meissner, have you consistently been of that view? 

MR. MEISSNER: Yes, I have. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: Senator Musto. 

SENATOR MUSTO: No questions. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: Senator Parker. 

SENATOR PARKER: Just one - You indicated that you are a businessman and 

had no connection with education except for this experience. With whom are you 

affiliated, sir? 

MR. MEISSNER: New Jersey Bell Telephone Company. 

Senator, I would like to make a statement in that connection if I may. 

It has been brought to my attention that in some previous testimony somebody commented 

to the effect that some business people's testimony might be suspect due to the 

fact that there might be pressure applied. I would like to make it a matter of 

record here that I am giving this statement this morning under no duress whatsoever. 

SENATOR PARKER: I didn't ask you that for that reason, sir. I asked it 

because I was interested that you had served as a businessman and had taken the 

opportunity to serve and came in with a "free mind." That is why I wondered 

were affiliated with. 

D R. 

MR. MEISSNER: Fine. Thank you. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: Senator Sheil. 

SENATOR SHEIL: No questions. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: Thank you, Mr. Meissner 

Dr. John Donato. 

J 0 H N D 0 N A T 0: My name is Dr. John Donato. I am from Newark, 

New Jersey and I represent a group of taxpayers who have an organization called 

Fiscal Sanity. By way of background, our organization has been involved in trying 

to control exorbitant expenditures on the part of the city in the forms of salary 

raises and monitoring excessive spending on the part of other organizations, including 

the Newark Board of Education. 

From the previous speakers, especially Mrs. Potkay, I think you are well 

informed about the situation in Newark and the Commissioner's lack of participation 

in this problem. As a matter of fact, since the institution of an Auditor General 

in Newark in August of 1976, we have seen quite a few reports from this individual, 

Mr. Thomas Marshello ··--were sent to the Auditor's General Office, the Assistant County 

Superintendent, the Board of Estimates. 

There was extensive communication between these individuals to make them 

aware of the impending deficits in the city. In spite of these communications, there 

was a deficit of one million dollars reported in June of '77 and there was a deficit 

of $4.6 million in '78. And there will probably be a deficit this year. 

Now these deficits were allowed to occur in spite of the only Auditor General 

being appointed in the city by Commissioner Burke. This is very, very important. 

That means he was especially cognizant of the problem we were having there and of 

the political situation. 

The School Board of Estimates denied the appeals for increases. The Council 

denied the increases. But yet, in spite of this, Commissioner Burke with the knowledge 
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that these deficits were occurring, failed to speak out publicly and failed to 

inform the people, as far as I am concerned, of what was happening there. And it 

wasn't until after the election or until the beginning of this year that these 

reports became public information. 

His report of October 24, 1978, explicitly pointed out - Mr. Marshello's report 

of that date - to Commissioner Burke that the financial situation in Newark had not 

been resolved and the remedial programs that had been proposed by the Commissioner 

and the County Superintendent had failed to correct these situations. To this date, 

there is no indication that the situation has been corrected. Of all the alternatives, 

it seems that we are forced to the alternative of cash deficit. 

As legislators, you recognize the responsibility of all officers and com

missioners involved in municipal or school expenditures to abide by a balanced budget. 

That is a statutory requirement. However, this statutory requirement has been avoided 

and there is no indication that there is any attempt to make the School Board abide 

by this or to investigate the reasons or to correct what happened in the past. 

This year, the Newark Council had their arm twisted to not only cover the 

deficit of $4.6 mill ion but to spend dnother $3 million for unforeseen conunitm0nts 

of the Board of Education. There was actually a request on the part of the Board 

of Education to have $11 million. However, they were able to reduce that to approximately 

$7.6 million. You can see at this point, the Newark School District stands in a 

very good position to have another deficit. 

My question to you gentlemen is: How can a Commissioner be reappointed 

without having the full facts regarding his management and his responsibilities in 

the School Board of Newark? There is no indication that there is going to be an 

investigation. We' as taxpayers of Newark feel that the city cannot afford to have 

this particular situation swept under the rug. As a matter of fact, I have in my 

possession now a petition, according to statute 40A:5-22, which permits 25 freeholders 

to have their own investigation when accepted by the judge • 

SENATOR GREENBERG: Twenty-five freeholders? 

DR. DONATO: That is right. 

SENATOR GRE~NBERG: Oh, you mean twenty-five 

DR. DONATO: Twenty-five homeowners. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: You are not talking about elected officials? 

DR. DONA'rO: No. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: Okay. 

DR. DONATO: However, we would like this Judiciary Committee to do the 

investigation before they make the appointment because it would be very unfortunate 

for them to make this appointment and then have us go on ~d bring out these facts 

which may undermine the educational system and "thorough and efficient" education 

even more. 

You are in a very good position at this point to start off on a new course 

and to remove any doubt whatsoever as to the Commissioner's liability in the occurrence 

of these cash deficits in Newark. Statute 40A:4-l et seq. requires a balanced 

budget. There are specific rules regarding transfers of money with respect to 

line item budgets in 4-58 and 59: ·Two months at the end of any particular semester, 

any particular budget period, and three months at the beginning. These are very 

complex statutes and you are in a good position, especially with your connection 

with the Economic Unit of the Attorney General's Office, to have this done. I 

think it is an obligation on your part to have this done before the reappointment. 

But in case•you do not have this done, we are in a position at this moment to execute 
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the statutory provisions of 40A:5-22. However, we would like to see this body 

take the initiative in this regard. 

I have come here today to present the case for the taxpayers of Newark. 

But you as legislators recognize that Newark is receiving 80 percent of its present 

budget from the State and the federal government. Just recently the Council passed 

an ordinance authorizing $153 million for education in Newark - and you know the 

type of educational product we are getting there. If "thorough and efficient" was 

ever a farce, it is a farce in Newark. 

On one hand, in the City of Trenton, you have taken over education; but 

in Newark where the need is greater, where we have an Auditor General - and Trenton 

does not have one - the Commissioner has seen fit to allow things to go their merry 

way with more cash deficits. My premise, gentlemen, is this is more political than 

anything else because if these deficits had been revealed last year before the 

mayoralty election in Newark, I think we would have had a different result on the 

council as well as the mayoralty level. But that is water over the dam, gentlemen. 

We are faced with the problem now of avoiding these deficits in Newark. 

Newark cannot tolerate it. The State educational funds and the federal educational 

funds cannot tolerate these things anymore. That is why we have come down here to 

talk to you and to let you know we are interested. We would like you to come to 

Newark and have some of your meetings there. It is very difficult for people there 

to come down here and express themselves. But you had a few of them hera who really 

went out of their way - and, believe me, one has to go out of his way to come down 

here - and they were very articulate. These are the people of Newark. They are 

not from the legislative bodies who on one hand say, this fellow isn't doing his 

job; and, on the other hand, they come down and support him when there is a political 

necessity to do so. 

Gentlemen, we need your help in Newark, and especially the children and the 

taxpayers of Newark need your help. If anyplace there should be a school district 

taken over, it should be the City of Newark. You know it as well as I do. We 

would like to see you make moves in that direction because our appointed body in 

Newark has been completely unable to control the situation in Newark. There are 

Board of Education moneys being invested by groups which are not supposed to use 

that. All the money should be handled by the controller of moneys. We have had 

Executive Superintendents and we have had other people investing moneys. That was 

straightened out. We have had capital funds qualified by the bond law of $22 million. 

But we have one school in Newark, Eastside, that had an override of almost $11 million 

and had an override in time of 3 years and still isn't finished. 

We have a drug problem in Essex County that is out of this world. And, 

Senator Greenberg, I think you are more aware of it than anyone else. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: That is because I come from Essex. 

DR. DONATO: Of course. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: Not for any other reason. 

DR. DONATO: I didn't mean to intimate that. 

We had a principal recently run down in front of his home. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: Incidentally, stay on that subject for a second. What 

is your position as to what Dr. Burke or anyone in his capacity should be doing 

that he is not now doing with regard to the drug problem in Newark or anyplace else 

in this State? 

DR. DONATO: I know that Prosecutor Coburn of Essex County is taking initiative 

in this matter and he is starting Grand Jury investigations. The principals are up 

in arms about it. I haven't heard any comment from Commissioner Burke in Newark or 

Essex County or even on a total State level. 
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SENATOR GREENBERG: One point that you make is that there should be some 

position taken. 

DR. DONATO: Exactly. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: some leadership exercised. 

DR. DONATO: Yes, sir. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: You don't contend, do you, that Dr. Burke is in favor of 

the present condition? 

DR. DONATO: No. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: The fact that he has been silent, if he has - and I, 

frankly, don't know- may be a legitimate complaint. But beyond speaking out against 

it, do you have a particular concept in mind that a Commissioner should pursue in 

connection with this problem that Dr. Burke has not pursued? 

DR. DONATO: Yes. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: What is that? I am really interested to know. 

DR. DONATO: I think that he should get together with the law enforcement 

offic~s of the county and the municipalities involved and reach down to the security 

level in schools. There is no attempt to do this. The security forces in schools 

are one or two guards outside. I have gone to different priests and different people 

myself in the East Ward when Mr. Quala was recently assassinated in front of his 

home, beseeching them to inform the public through their pulpits and through the 

organizations there that this is the time to come down hard on these individuals. 

Let's form a crime-spotters organization so that we can phone in to people. I 

have talked specifically to Mr. Coburn and his assistant, Robert Penza, to do this 

on a very personal basis where they don't have to leave their name or anything 

else. This has taken off and the people are doing this. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: All right. I am sorry to interrupt you - continue. 

DR. DONATO: That's okay. 

To get back to my other points, I am here asking the Senate Judiciary 

Committee to come to Newark so that the people there can involve themselves in this 

particular thing; because if there is any school district that should have input 

into this Committee's hearing, it is the District of Newark. They have the most 

to lose and they are losing. There doesn't seem to be any indication that the trend 

in Newark is going to be reversed. As a matter of fact, you can see yourself - and 

you know probably from personal knowledge - that the trend is going to get worse and 

"thorough and efficient" education will be more of a sham than it is now because 

they have removed not only people from the program, but they are removing courses. 

They are removing recreational programs, art and music. Unfortunately, we don't 

have any representation from these people today to tell you the other things that 

they are losing. 

How can the children have a "thorough and efficient" education? They are 

being put into a position where without sufficient funds they will be subjected to 

a shorter school period. How can we give them a "thorough and efficient" education 

in a shorter school period? They have been reduced from 3:00 o'clock to 2:00 or 

2:30 on their regular schools day now. 

SENATOR PARKER: Excuse me, Doctor. I would like to interrupt you on that 

point. You say they are getting less and less money in Newark. That is not 

because of lack of support by the State. 

DR. DONATO: No, it isn't. 
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SENATOR PARKER: So it has got to be from a deviation or cutting of the 

municipal budget of the normal support that had been there on the municipal level. 

Is that correct? 

DR.· DONATO: No. They are getting more money from the city. Let me just 

straighten it out for you. There is more money each year for the Board of Education. 

They went from $120, $130 and they are up to $153 million now. There is more money 

being contributed by the city. They were contributing $22, $25 and they are up to 

about $29 million this year. However, there is less money being used for teaching 

the kids and for getting them supplies. There are some teachers that have no books, 

no paper, no pencils or anything. As a result, the children are getting less 

benefit from all the money that is being put in there. There is a critical situation 

going on there now which, if not corrected, will permit this continuous deficit 

spending. 

SENATOR PARKER: Let me ask you another question. Has the student population 

increased or decreased? 

DR. DONATO: The school population in Newark is decreasing like the total 

population of the city. But it is still up around 67,000. However, this has not 

been able to permit a better education. 

SENATOR PARKER: Has the administrative and the teaching staffs increased 

or decreased? 

DR. DONATO: The school administrative staff in the bilingual situation 

has increased and in other places it has increased, But the question of the quality 

of teachers has arisen. There was a recent article six or seven months ago that. a 

number of the certifications were improper, a thousand of them. Finally, it boiled 

down to a couple of hundred. 

We have an Executive Superintendent running the school system in Newark 

who has no educational background or training. His training is in personnel. 

This lack on the part of the Commissioner to insist upon trained personnel to run 

a school district I think is one of the primary problems we have there. We have 

to get trained people in education to run our school district because we have non

trained people at the head who are running it and who are making more than the Mayor. 

Thank you. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: Doctor, one second, please. Are there any questions? 

Senator Maressa. 

SENATOR MA.RESSA: No questions. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: Senator Musto. 

SENATOR MUSTO: No questions. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: Senator Parker. 

SENATOR PARKER: Doctor, are you in education? 

DR. DONATO: No. I am a physician practicing in Newark. I had children 

who went to school in Newark up until last year. Two of them go to college in Newark. 

I practice with two offices in Newark. I have been involved in fiscal monitoring in 

Newark with many people. I ran for Mayor last year against Mayor Gibson in an effort 

to bring a lot of these things to light. I am still running after the mountain, you 

might say.. May I leave these 

SENATOR GREENBERG: What are they? 

DR. DONATO: (Continuing) --- photostats with you? One is a photostat of 

the report by Mr. Thomas J. Marshello that was sent October 27, 1978, outlining 

the necessity of giving an extra $11 million to the Newark Board of Education: $4.6 
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million which would cover the deficit, and $6.4 million that had been put in 

appeal. Also I would like to submit a copy of the budget, indicating the require

ment for a balanced budget; and a copy of the first law regarding the legal 

responsibilities of any commissioner and the possible penalties involved in not 

fulfilling those responsibilities. 

so forth. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: What do you mean, the first law? 

DR. DONATO: This is Section 2A:l35-l, et seq. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: Of the present statutes? 

DR. DONATO: ---of the present statute that refers to nonfeasance and 

SENATOR GREENBERG: I understand. Yes, you may leave that. 

(Material submitted by Dr. Donato can be found, beginning on 
page lX.) 

We thank you for your appearance. 

I am still working from a list which we compiled of people WhO have some 

time problems. I am now up to Vitaut Kipel. Are you appearing with someone? 

MS. SMORODSKY: I am Camille Huk Smorodsky. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: Okay, fine. Will you please give your name and 

the organization, if any, that you represent. 

V I T A U T K I P E L: My name is Vitaut Kipel. By profession I am Science 

Librarian employed by the New York Public Library, a resident of the State of New 

Jersey for about 25 years, involved in the educational system as a father of two 

children who went to public schools in Bergen County, and by working with various 

ethnic communities throughout the State. 

I am testifying here as the Chairman of the New Jersey Ethnic Advisory 

Council and my testimony is in favor of the reappointment of Commissioner Burke. 

The well-known fact is that the State of New Jersey is ethnically the 

most diversified state of the Union. According to the New Jersey Ethnic Directory, 

there are in the State 65 nationalities with over 1700 ethnic cultural and fraternal 

organizations. The activities of these groups became especially visible during the 

Bicentennial years when the ethnic communities participated in numberous festivals, 

shows, lectures and the projects such as Liberty Park Complex, Ellis Island, and 

publication of the New Jersey Ethnic Experience. 

Recognizing the diversity, significance and the importance of ethnic groups 

in the State, the Advisory Council was established by Executive Number 65 in April 

of 1978. The Department of Education and Commissioner Burke became ex-officio members 

of the Council. From the very beginning the activities of the Council went along 

three areas: education, cultural activities and social and neighborhood issues. 

The education, of course, is the most important area of interest to the ethnic com

munities. The basic concerns to the ethnic communities are the issue of textbooks, 

language programs, and the cultural heritage. 

The ethnic population of the State feels that very many textbooks and 

general curricula are inadequate and often insufficient in regard to the histories 

of ethnic groups and the histories of their homelands. Several ethnic groups, 

particularly of East European background, such groups as Byelorussians, Ukrainians, 

and the Baltica, feel that their heritage is presented in completely distorted form. 

This fact, the concern of ethnic communities in regard to their education, 

was brought by us to the attention of Commissioner Burke. At several meetings with 

the Commissioner, we analyzed the situation and developed constructive plans for 
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improvement and correction. At the meetings with the Commissioner, we have established 

working relationship with the educational system of the State and the ethnic corn

rnunitieso We feel that this relationship will bring results and the past mistakes 

and inaccuracies in regard to the histories and cultures of various ethnic groups 

will be rectifiedo This certainly will improve the general level of our education 

and enlarge the cultural backgrounds and interests of our children. Commissioner 

Burke has initiated this process and the ethnic community of the State is very 

appreciative. Thank you. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: Thank you. 

CAMILLE H U K S M 0 R 0 D S K Y: My name is Camille Huk Srnorodsky. 

I am the Chairman of the Education Committee with respect to the Ethnic Advisory 

Council. There is just one little preface I would like to make before I begin 

with my presentation: and, that is, that the ethnic community is here 365 days a 

year. We are your residents of Burlington, Camden, Essex County, North Hudson, 

Passaic, Bergen, and what have you. We intend to be visible and active. So I 

would like it understood that this presentation is not something that is just 

presented on a once-a-year deal pretty much the way the festivals are. This is 

an on-going and important issue to us. 

The Education Committee of the New Jersey State Ethnic Advisory Council 

has worked closely with the Office of Education on several proposals. Commissioner 

Burke has designated at least four liaisons with his office to continue these projects. 

First and foremost, the ethnic communities in the State of New Jersey are 

concerned with the status of their supplementary or "Saturday" schools, which are 

engaged in teaching children, and children in this State in general, their native 

language and cultural heritage. These schools are supervised by the local ethnic 

community organizations. In our neighboring states of New York and Maryland, the 

schools are recognized and, in fact, accredited by the Commissioners of Education 

of the respective states. In New York State, there are Regents Examinations 

provided for all those languages not taught in the public schools. The ethnic 

communities in the State of New Jersey are also seeking some form of recognition 

for these supplementary schools. 

The Eastern European communities are deeply concerned about the nomenclatures 

used in the study of their histories in the public school system. They have appealed 

to the Education Committee of the New Jersey State Ethnic Advisory Council for a 

review of publicly used textbooks in our State to be sure that the information 

contained therein is accurate and up to date. 

Representatives of the Education Committee have had an opportunity to meet 

with Commissioner Burke and to discuss these issues. The Committee found Commissioner 

Burke sensitive and responsive and hopes to continue working with him directly in 

the corning years to reach mutually advantageous results on all these issues. 

Therefore, the Education Committee wishes to add its endorsement for the 

reaffirmation of Commissioner Burke. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: Thank you very much. 

Senator Maressa. 

SENATOR MARESSA: Just one fast question: I have been reading the 

Ukrainian Congress Committee of America's letter to Senator Greenberg concerning 

this reappointment and the problems they have with the fact that the Ukrainians 

and the other Baltic -- well, not necessarily Baltic -- the other members of the 

USSR, who asked for identity as individuals, not being given that. I was wondering 
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whether you have an opinion with regard to that and whether or not Conunissioner 

Burke has been responsive to that. 

MS. SMORODSKY: We feel that Conunissioner Burke has been extremely 

responsive. It is a very frustrating issue. We do hope to pull in the Ukrainian 

community and indeed all the communities that are interested in helping us work 

with these issues, to be sure that W9 can overcome the logistics problems involved 

at this point. I am very well aware of the Ukrainian problem in particular because 

I, myself, happen to be of Ukrainian descent. I have chaired several conunittees 

in that respect. We are concerned with the nomenclature used. Obviously, if we 

teach our children that 2 and 2 is 4 and not 5, it would follow in order that we 

would also present the correct historical picture. 

SENATOR MARESSA: Let me interrupt. How has he been responsive? 

MS. SMORODKY: He has appointed a Mr. Sandor Havran to be our liaison 

with his office on this particular issue. He has provided us with a list of the 

New Jersey Education Information Centers throughout the State. We are going to be 

appealing to the various conununities to provide these education centers with 

reference material so that the teachers will be well prepared when this question. 

comes up. As far as the logistics of reviewing the textbooks and changing them in the 

school system, this is a question that is unresolved and we hope to work on it 

within the coming term. 

SENATOR MARES~: Thank you very much. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: Thank you both very much. 

Mary Sinunons. Will you identify yourself in terms of any association· 

you may have with any organization? 

MARY D. S I M M 0 N S: I am representing myself. I am a parent from 

Montclair, which is a suburban 

SENATOR GREENBERG: I am sorry, Ms. Simmons. I am having difficulty 

hearing you and I think the people in the audience might. The microphone in front 

of you is the public address microphone. So if you would keep your voice up a U.t.tle 

and into that, we would appreciate it. 

MS. SIMMONS: I am a parent from Montclair, which is a suburban conununity 

in Essex County not far from Newark. We have a town population of about 44,000 

and we have a school population of 6,000 children. I have been heavily involved in 

the affairs of my school district for a little over the last five years. 

I want to say that we also in the audience at tiffiffiwere having difficulty 

hearing the questions of the Senators. So if you could also either speak up or 

use your microphones, we could hear what you have to say. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: That is a justifiable request. We will try to do that. 

MS. SIMMONS: One more conunent before I begin my testimony: When I made 

my appointment to come down here, I was asked to submit 12 copies of my testimony. 

I must say that I am disappointed to see that there are never more than 5 or 6 

members of the Committee present at one time. (Applause.) 

SENATOR GREENBERG: I assume the applause is for the 5 or 6 of us who 

are present, and I thank you. (Laughter.) 

MS. SIMMONS: And it is never even the same 5 or 6. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: Let me just state that the purpose of having a transcript 

of the testimony which is being taken now is so that those who cannot make all of 

the sessions will have an opportunity to read all of the testimony before they vote. 
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MS. SIMMONS: I hope they wi 11 do so. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: So do I. 

MS. SIMMONS: I thank you for letting me come and I am here to recommend 

a new Commissioner of Education for the State of New Jersey and would like to give 

my reasons. They are as a result of my direct experience. If you would like 

documentation for anything which is in my testimony, I can provide it for you 

from my records and from the public records I have been inspecting over the last 

several years. 

First, in June of 1976, Montclair's Board of Education passed a new 

district educational plan which vastly changed the characteristics of both school 

programming and the educational content of the curriculum of Montclair's schools. 

A group of citizens concerned about the ramifications of the proposed plan visited 

the Commissioner after having sent, well in advance, a great deal of supportive 

evidence for their views. To our disappointment, we realized that Commissioner Burke 

was either unprepared for our visit or declined to involve himself in a constructive 

way in our problems. 

Point two: The Commissioner had ordered Montclair to create a better 

balanced desegregation plan in 1976, an admirable directive. How did Montclair comply 

with the Commissioner's mandate? On June 1, 1976, the Montclair Board of Education 

passed a resolution outlining our current educational plan for the district. This 

plan had never before been ~esented in public. The vote was taken at a conference 

meeting where no public response was possible. The failure to hold public hearings 

on the plan prior to its adoption deprived our residents of due process under the 

laws of New Jersey and the United States Constitution. Lest you think this is a 

purely local matter, let me add that written acceptance of the resolution from the 

Commissioner was received in Montclair in just four days. It was not possible in that 

space of time frrour Board of Education, or citizens, much less a commissioner in 

Trenton, to examine the integrational and educational aspects of the plan as passed. 

It appeared that a private arrangement had been worked out between the commissioner 

and our superintendent prior to the plan's adoption. our own Board of Education and 

school administration, with assistance from Commissioner Burke, made a mockery of 

public participation. An educational plan was put into effect with the sanction of 

the commissioner, but without the legality of public hearing and passage, without pilot 

studies for radical curriculum changes, without cost projections for a plan which 

doubled the number of students being bussed and which required additional unbudgeted

for staffing. Later litigation m the commissioner's own administrative court, 

eliminated these points cogently, but no redress was forthcoming. 

Three, what has been the result of this plan so precipitously and unlawfully 

implemented? I mentioned the absence of prudent cost projections. I quote from a 

letter to Vincent Calabrese written by the Education Committee of the Montclair-Glen

Ridge League of Women Voters and dated January 16, 1978. "The overriding and 

sobering conclusion is that there is compelling evidence that our schools are costing 

more than the money appropriated for them, that this condition has probably existed 

for a few years, and that it appears to be escalating." 

This fact was confirmed by a state examination of Montclair's financial 

records. When did this deficit condition, heretofore kept secret, begin? Late in 

the fiscal year 1976-77, the same time the new plan was implemented. That year 

over $90 thousand was transferred to salary accounts. In June of the following year, 
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over $22 thousand was similarly transferred. And by the end of 1978, Montclair 

faced a deficit estimated at $465 thousand. Only persistent citizen activity made 

disclosure of the deficit possible. The plan which the commissioner had approved 

was too expensive for the district to support without several years' cap waivers, 

emergency appropriations from our town, and large amounts of federal funding. 

I wish here to make two co~~nts about some undesirable aspects of federal 

funding. One is that the basis for a federal grant is often of unproven educational 

merit; and, secondly, it is virtually impossible to make the use of federal funds 

accountable to the local educational consumer. Waste and corruption often accompany 

such funding. Heavy reliance on federal funding as is necessary now in Montclair 

keeps a district constantly on the edge of financial crisis and erodes educational 

stability since programs must change constantly as funding requirements do. Financial 

instability has been part of the Burke legacy. 

As a result of our financial instability, we have been faced with the 

threatened firing of large numbers of unbudgeted-for teachers, the firing of valuable 

aides which left our libraries and lunch rooms unstaffed, the freezing of money 

needed for educational supplies, and the inability to hire substitute teachers during 

the end of the fiscal year 1978. The much needed services of child study teams 

were drastically curtailed; in fact, Montclair still does not have the child study 

personnel recommended by the State Department of Education for its number of students. 

Four, Commissioner Burke has described Montclair as a "bellweather• district. 

Its programs are daring and innovative. Our educational plan is built on a violation 

of citizens' rights, and we still do not have a proper evaluation mechaqism to 

assess the broad range of curriculum and methodology being currently presented in 

Montclair schools, despite the fact th~such evaluation is called for in the 

T&E regulations. 

Five, proof of the educational merit of the program is found, according 

to Commissioner Burke, in the results of the 1978 Minimu~ Basic Skills Test. In 

a recent article in the Montclair Times of February 8, 1979, Commissioner Burke is 

quoted as saying that Montclair students rang among the best in the State. At my 

request, the Public Information Office of the Department of Education was asked 

to supply the facts behind that statement. The facts are that Montclair did better 

than three-quarters of the urban districts in New Jersey, and the record of the 

urban districts is abysmal. That hardly ranks us among the best in the State, 
only among the best of the worst. Inthe same article, Commissioner Burke stated 

that only two communities in New Jersey produced higher scores than the national 

average. The facts behind that remark are that Montclair's 9th grade was surpassed 

in reading and math by only two and five districts, respectively. Incidentally, 

Montclair's ninth graders just squeaked by the State minimum scores in those subjects. 

Some of our other grades were also close to the State minimum of 75 percent in 

reauinq and 65 percent in math. Commissioner Burke's remarks have been inaccurate 

and misleading. It is a sorry spectacle to see public officials patting themselves 

on the backs and manufacturing bloated compliments while children go without needed 

services, quality teaching, proper enforcement of existing laws; and shoddy 

financial practices are permitted to throw districts into turmoil. 

Extemporaneously, on the minimum basic skills test, I did a great deal 

of checking into that subject for our own tests last spring and found that there 

was almost no enforcement of the policies that the Testing Division has set down 

for the way the test scores are handled. Parents were not notified properly of 
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their children's test results. The tests in some cases were not filed with the 

children's school records. Parents and teachers were given almost no information 

about the testing program. 

So, while there are many good policies and structures in place in New 

Jersey, they are not enforced and they can not work for the parent and the 

student. 

I urge that Commissioner Burke not be reappointed. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: Senator Parker. 

SENATOR PARKER: No questions. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: Senator Sheil. 

SENATOR SHEIL: No questions. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: Senator Maressa. 

SENATOR MARESSA: No. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: Senator Musto. 

SENATOR MUSTO: No questions. 

MS. SIMMONS: May I ask one question? 

SENATOR GREENBERG: Yes. 

MS. SIMMONS: I was here on Monday and I heard one of the Senators make 

reference to some of the negative statistics and facts that were presented by 

two of th~ witnesses. He said that this was a confirmation hearing. I would 

like to know what is a confirmation hearing? 

SENATOR GREENBERG: You would like to know ---

MS. SIMMONS: ---what is a confirmation hearing? It was my impression 

that a hearing is to arrive at the truth about a particular matter. When you 

say, a confirmation hearing, it implies something quite different. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: You want to know what this is? 

MS. SIMMONS: Yes. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: This is a Judiciary Committee hearing, which is held 

in accordance with our policy and practice long established to take testimony, 

both favorable and unfavorable, as may be offered, with regard to a particular 

nominee - in this case it is Dr. Fred Burke - in order for the Committee to discharge 

its function of either affirmatively reporting out the nomination for full Senate 

consideration or of not reporting out the nomination. This is the way the committee 

system functions in New Jersey and this is the way the Judiciary Committee, in 

particular, operates. For example, the Governor in New Jersey has the obligation 

by statutes to appoint a great variety of people, subject to the confirmation process 

of the Senate. This is the first step in that confirmation process. The Committee 

takes testimony, analyzes it, meets and then ultimately votes on whether or not 

to report out and, if so, favorably or otherwise,the name of the nominee. Then 

the Senate as a whole has a constitutional obligation to advise and consent, which 

really means to accept or reject the nominee.· It can agree with the Judiciary Com

mittee or not, as it sees fit. 

MS. SIMMONS: The phrase "confirmation hearing", I suppose to a lay person 

may imply something it shouldn't. But I also hope that the fact it is a called a 

confirmation hearing will not mean that the legislators, you people who have to decide 

on this --- I hope that you will have an open mind and see the threads of consistency 

that have been running through all of the citizen testimony that has been given here 

so far. Thank you. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: Thank you. 

John Powers, Union City Board of Education. 
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J 0 H N P 0 W E R S: Mr. Chairman, members of the Committee, I would like 

to thank the Committee for the opportunity to express my views to you. 

I speak today in favor of the re-confirmation of Commissioner Burke. 
My qualifications to speak on this issue come from various areas. I am at once 

the President of the Union City Board of Education, the President of the North 

Hudson Jointure Commission, a special needs regional district, and the Secretary

Business Manager of the Hudson County Vocational School District. But perhaps 

more than all the foregoing, my best qualification is that I am the father of 

four children all enrolled in a public school system of New Jersey - an urban 

district - Union City. 

In the twelve years that I have been a Board of Education member, I 

have had numerous occasions to work with countless State Department of Education 

Administrators. The quality of the leadership, employees and work product of 

the Department has, in my opinion, never been better. 

I come as an advocate for Commissioner Burke and had intended to be 

strictly positive in my presentation. But after sitting thro1.1gh much of the 
testimony of these past days, I find that I must comment,however slightly, on 

some of it. I preface these remarks by assuring the Committee that I was impressed 

with the care and concern and the high motiviation of the persons who testified. 

But, in some instances, what was related would seem to me to be contradictory, 

or misdirected. 

The Commissioner was accused of misleading that Board. Yet, the same 

witness called Mr. Burke a man of honesty and integrity. 

The Commissioner was attacked for a lack of initiative and also for 

carrying out his role as Commissioner with too much self-expression. 

Mr. Burke was accused of a lack of leadership ability, yet the same 

witness statEd that he was receiving "total cooperation" and "positive support'' 

from the office of the County Superintendent of Schools. Gentlemen, as you well 

know, the County Superintendents work directly for the Commissioner. 

He was accused of listening to special ineterest groups and when 

an example was given it was to show that he had spoken with the representatives 

of each major group which would be affected by the decision on "tenure teacher 

evaluation." I should think that the criticism would be valid if he had not 

spoken to the NJSBA, the NJEA and the NJSAA. 
He was accused of not informing districts concerning T & E mandates 

and their implementations until August of that first year, even though the Law 

had been passed several months previous. That would be a serious problem if it were 
not for the fact that the Legislature failed to pass the appropriat4on for the 
implementation until June of 1976. I would say that the Department should be praised 
for the work product that was produced on such short notice. 

And Boards of Education sho1Jld be equally praised for the fact that 

they were able to submit budgets to the people in time for elections that year. 

·It has been stated that the Commissioner is indecisive, that he 

adopts different positions on the same question. I submit that under the impact 

of the last five years, the Commissioner of Education of this State had the option 

of running for cover and making no decisions, or, of making decisions which, even. 

, he knew at the time the decision was made, might have to be changed, altered or 

even abandoned when the experience of implementation was known. 

Let's forget that this has been the most revolutionary half decade in 
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the history of New Jersey education. 

I see, from my perspective, outstanding innovation and leadership in 

the Department. Obviously not everyone likes the Commissioner's approach to 

problem-solving. Some say he is controversial. I say he is not so much controversial 
as he is one who creates controversy - useful controversy. Fred Burke creates 

an atomosphere in which all sides talk, not just to each other, but with each 

other. I have found him to be the most reachable and frank Commissioner we have 
ever had. 

I have been a board member through five Commissioners and Acting 

Commissioners. 

He is innovative, imaginative and willing to experiment. If something 

is in the best interest of the kids he will put himself on the line for it. 

Before I end, I would like to give you two concrete examples of this. 

I consider ~y home district, Union City, to have the finest bilingual education 
program anywhere in this country. I can emphasize that by pointing out that one 

of our high school publications was awarded, by the Columbia University Press 

Association, seven awards of merit including the "best" English Language Literary 

Magazine in the world in the senior high school grouping this past year. I re

emphasize the word "English" and point out to you that over 50% of the students 

who contributed to that publication were non-English speaking when they entered 

out school system. Our bilingual program does not exactly follow the mandates 

of the State Board of Education. 

In his position the Commissioner had the responsibility to inform us 

that we were in non-compliance and to cease operating the way we were. We appealed 

to the Commissioner to reconsider. To make a long story short, the Commissioner 

in effect said "It doesn't conform- but it works -continue." The result is 
! 

that today our program is being run as a demonstration project to determine if 

the State Plan should be modified with some of the innovations we utilize. His 

choice was not the simple one but it was the right one. 

In this same light, Fred Burke has been attacked for his positions on 

the certification of bilingual teachers. I don't intend to take the time to 

explain our bilingual program to you or to show you why there is such a controversy 

over this certification issue. But I can tell you that Commissionet Burke never 

extended the deadlines to receive those certificates nor did he ever recommend 
that action to the State Board. He took a stand that was just the opposite. I 
know this to be a fact because I requested that the Commissioner do what he could 
to get extensions and he would not. 

Another example of the Commissioner's concern for education can be 
seen in the way his Department handled the Union City school district which, 

during that fateful summer when the Supreme Court ordered all public schools 

closed, was in open defiance of the Court Order. 

Thanks to the cooperation and technical assistance of the Department 

our District was able to continue to function uninterrupted. This was accomplished 

through the unselfish support of the Catholic Schools of our district, whose 

facilities we utilized and because the Commissioner understood that time lost 

in an urban system is never made up. 

I should point out the clarification that it was the belief of the 

Union City school system after consultation with the Department that what we 

did was legal, innovative, but legal, and it is our belief today that it was. 
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I have heard witness after witness recount stories - indeed horror 

stories - about conditions in tpeir schools. These witnesses would have you 
believe that all these problems are, at least to a great extent, the responsibility 

of the Commissioner. That just is not true. 

If there are school teachers and administrators condoning or, as one 

witness said, actually participating in, drug trafficking, it is the responsibility 

of the local'board of education, not Fred Burke's. 

If there are incompe~ent teachers, again, it is a local board of education 

responsibility. 

Vandalism, teacher absenteeism, cleanliness of facilities, vermin in 

schools - all those problems properly lie with a local district. 

High school graduation standards have been mentioned a dozen times at 

these hearings. The Legislature of this State is considering bills to establish 

minimum graduation standards. The Legislature is not acting because Fred Burke 

has not done his job. It is forced to act because under the provision of the 

existing law it is mandated that "District Boards of Education shall adopt ••• " 

reasonable graduation and promotion standards, and, we have not met the mandate. 

Our local boards have not met it. Most boards that I am familiar with apply 

for their Middle States Evaluations and comply with those standards. Very few 

of us make up any of our own. 

All these things are examples of the "horne rule" concept. This long 

established policy in New Jersey is a virtual sacred cow. In most instances it 

is the right approach to education, to government in general. It is most 

desirable to have the power of government as close to the people as possible. 

Some witnesses before this 'Committee would apparently like to have 

"horne rule" applied at random. The story goes as follows: 

Board A is doing a great job, or thinks it is~ but Board A thinks 

Board B is doing a lousy job. "So leave me alone" says Board A - "but move in 

and take over the operation of Board B." It is much like the person who says we 

should have rehabilitiation centers for drug addicts -"as long as they are not 

in my neighborhood." 

Fred Burke has used his limited powers to override horne rule with 
discretion. He is attempting to create progress not anarchy. Any other course 
would have been government by "whim" and the results would be disasterous. 

I have listened to attack after attack on urban education over these 
past days. Gentlemen, our school district in Hudson County are far from perfect, 

but I'll be damned if they remotely resemble the caricature of urban education 
that has been presented here. I would invite those people who apparently honestly 

believe that urban education is so bad to come to Union City any time they would 

like. I'd like them to see publicly sponsored and paid for Pre-School programs 

for the normal child and the handicapped~ summer programs for all age ranges, 

Magnet schools for the Gifted and Talented operated in conjunction with Special 

Needs programs in the same facilities to insure interaction. I'd like you to 

see an urban school district with virtually no student absenteeism, with after 

school programs servicing over 1500 youngsters a day and an Adult School second 

to none in quality and scope. I'd like you to see a school health care program 

that is not matched anywhere and perhaps most of all a district in which children 

of different races and cultural backgrounds get along as "one." 

It is said that urban districts can't produce college material. In 
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Union City well over fifty percent of our high school graduates go on to higher 

education. Most complete their degree work. I've used Union City as an example. 

I know it best. But in West New York, in Bayonne, in districts throughout 

Hudson County, similar accomplishments are being made. They are being made in 

no small measure due to the assistance and support of the Department of Education. 

Ours are the most· "urban distric.ts" in the State. What we have done 

every district can do. Let's stop blaming the Commissioner and start blaming 

ourselves. 

Gentlemen, Fred Burke did not pass T & E or the Income Tax, the 

Legislature did. 

Fred Burke did not reduce aid to local boards by 22 million dollars, 

the Legislature did. 

Fred Burke did not remove 28 million dollars from the amount used to 

provide an education for the handicapped, the Legislature did. 

Fred Burke did not pass an Aid Formula which discriminates against 

urban areas --- once more, gentlemen, the Legislature did. 

The Commissioner has done what the people of the State of New Jersey, 

through their duly elected representatives, have told him to do. In my opinion, 

he has done it well. He is not a Solomon, nor does he claim to be. He is an able, 

dedicated, diligent and talented man. He deserves your continuing support. 

Thank you. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: Thank you, Mr. Powers. Senator Maressa. 

SENATOR MARESSA: It sounds like you have a very outstanding school 

district there. I wonder if the Mayor has anything to do with that. 

MR. POWERS: Just about everything. 

SENATOR PARKER: Is that a title one school district? 

MR. POWERS: It is a title two. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: Thank you very much. Is Paul Tractenburg here? 

{No response) Loretta Richardson. Would you identify yourself for the 

record, please? 

LORETTA R I C H A R D S 0 N: My name is Loretta Richardson~ I have 

been a resident of New Jersey for twenty years, thirteen which I spent in Essex 

County and the rest of the years I have been in Hudson County. I am affiliated 

with the Parent Union of Jersey City and the Citizens Union of New Jersey. I know 

a lot of what I have to say is repetitious, but I think it is important to the 

school system in Hudson County. 

I am opposed to the re-appointment of Fred G. Burke for another five-year 

term as the Commissioner of Education for the following reasons: The low 
expectations the Commissioner has for city children. The MBS scores show that 

approximately 80% of the students in Jersey City do not meet the minimum standards. 

In my opinion, this is due to the low expectations of Commissioner Burke. He has 

expressed these low expectations as they have filtered down to some of the teachers 

in the Jersey City school system. 

The physical conditions in schools in Jersey City: We have many schools 

in Jersey City that are in deplorable condition. Water leaks through roofs and 

buckets are placed in classrooms to catch the water. In one particular school, 

PS 22, electricity is so faulty that I am expecting any day to hear that someone 

has been electrocuted. 
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Approval of district Compensatory Education monies which probably 
violated the law: The Camp. Ed. program is supposed to give 30 ta 45 minutes 
extra time to students who do not meet the minimum standards while the student~ 

who are at or above standard are supposed to receive enrichment. Teachers must 

also administer curriculum to students who fall in the middle. However, we in 

Jersey City know from our public meeting held March 1, 1979, that the Camp. Ed. 

program for the most part has been a failure. It puts teachers in the impossible 

position of trying to present and teach three lesson plans to three different levels 

of students. Also, a percentage of Camp. Ed. monies is being used to pay salaries 

of teachers already on the board of education payroll, which results in the Board 

of Ed. saving money by using teachers already in the school system rather than 

hiring and training Camp. Ed. teachers. If this isn't enough, there has been no 

evaluation of the Camp. Ed. program to measure its progress or failure. 

Learning disability and deficiencies: There are principals in Jersey 

City who, when faced with a student who needs psychological testing and who 

exhibits unacceptable behavior, label and classify these students as behavioral 

problems or incorrigibles before testing. What this results in is students being 

constantly suspended from school. In one case in Jersey City a student was 

suspended by a principal who claimed that a member of the child study team 

advised her to suspend the student until he was tested, classified and placed. 

Upon visiting special services with the parent of this student, we were informed 

that no one had made mention of such a recommendation and they did not have the 

authority to do this. Moreover, this practice is against the law. I fully under

stand the local school districts are charged with the many incidents I have 

mentioned. However, it is my contention and belief that if these problems are 

not corrected on the local levels, then it is the responsibility of the Commissioner 

of Education to step in and take charge. It is obvious to me and should be obvious 

to this Committee that the problems and conditions described are beyond the control 
of administrators in local school districts. 

As for State decisions made by Commissioner Burke, in my opinion there 
are three areas that show a lack of leadership: 

He consults with powerful lobbying organizations but not with parents, 
and especially urban parents who foot the tax bill and for whose children he has 
the responsibility to ensure quality education. 

He lowered the MBS standards to bring about a false picture of urban 
students to exaggerate student achievement. 

In conclusion, there is a need to make fundamental changes throughout 
the present education process and reviewing Commissioner Burke's record of 

performance over the past 4 1/2 years showsthat he is not the man who can deliver 

the kinds of changes necessary, and vital for a thorough and efficient education, 

especially in urban districts in New Jersey. Moreover, when T & E came about, 

Commissioner Burke claimed that it was a "revolution." However, we in Jersey City 

have not seen any significant changes in the education process. Thank you for 
allowing me to speak. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: Thank you very much. Senator Parker. 

SENATOR PARKER: I have a question, and it refers to the next to the 
last paragraph in which you say "He lowered the MBS standards to bring about a 

false picture of urban students and to exaggerate student achievement." Can you 

elaborate on that for me a little bit? 
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MS. ROBINSON: The passing scores in reading are 75. The passing score 

for math is 65,which means that if the student is at a 65% level or 75% level in 

each of these areas, they will pass the test, which means other students in a higher 

bracket---

The lower scores will look higher. That is the point I am trying to 

make. 

SENATOR PARKER: But you said that he did that, that he set the standards. 

I take it from that that he set lower standards for achievement and did that by 

same regulation? 

MS. ROBINSON: Was the minimum basic skills test higher in the beginning? 

SENATOR PARKER: I don't know. I am not familiar with the standards 

that are set. That is why I asked the question. It does concern me that he would 

issue regulations that would show, for instance, that more children are passing 

a test when in fact they are not, thereby reducing the standards and thereby instead 

of trying to improve education, the quality of education, he would be supporting 

rules and regulations tpat would be doing just the opposite. 

MS. ROBINSON: It seems to me that a 65 or 75 score in math and reading 

should not be acceptable, because for my kids, and I guess people in Jersey City 

and other places feel that the educational standards should be higher than 65 or 75. 

He had to support that. 

SENATOR PARKER: Well, 75 or 65 doesn't really mean anything to me, 

because I don't know what the normal standard is or what other standards are. 

MS. ROBINSON: 75 and 65, I mean, anyone who has been through school 

knows that that is not a good score. 90 is an A, 100 is A-plus. 

SENATOR PARKER: So you are saying it is on a scale of 100? 

MS. ROBINSON: Yes. 

SENATOR PARKER: Instead of supporting 70 or over • 

MS. ROBINSON: Or 80 or over. 

SENATOR PARKER: Well, the failing grade in school is 60 or below? 

MS. ROBINSON: 65 or below--- 60, you are right. And that is another 

indication of low expectations for urban school students. 

SENATOR PARKER: Doesn't that apply to all students? 

MS. ROBINSON: I don't know that. I know that it applies to the 

students in Hudson County. 

SENATOR PARKER: Thank you. 

SENATOR MARESSA: Did Commissioner Burke lower it, or something like 

that, when he came into office? 

MS. ROBINSON: I think that is what I am saying. 

SENATOR MARESSA: You think he did? 

MS. ROBINSON: Yes. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: Thank you. Beatrice Lang. (No response) The 

next series of people are those who were called on the nineteenth but not present 

at the time. 

Andrew Dale. (No response) 

Buster Soaries. (No response) 

Savid Bixel. (No response) 

Joseph Gennello. (No response) 

Richard Lloyd. (No response) 

Virginia Conti (No response) 
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John Shipley. (No response) 

Angela Perun. (No response) 

Connie Shore. (No response) 

I am now going to continue with the basic list. Dr. James Dwyer, 

Superintendent of Schools, Somerville. 

J A M E s J. D W Y E R: .Thank you, Senator. Senators, I am Dr. James Dwyer, 

Superintendent of Schools for the Somerville Public Schools. I am providing 

testimony today concerning the reappointment of Dr. Fred G. Burke, Commissioner 

of Education. I am not appearing as a repesentative of my school district, nor 

of any organization in which I may hold membership. Rather, I am speaking as an 

individual and I speak in favor of Dr. Burke's nomination and ask that his 

reappointment as Corrmissioner of Education be confirmed by the New Jersey State 

Senate. 

I believe that Dr. Burke should be reappinted for three basic reasons: 

Because of the importance and integrity of the position of Commissioner of 

Education; because of the scope of problems facing public education in New Jersey 

today; because of the personal performance of Dr. Burke as Commissioner of 

Education. 

The importance and integrity of the Commissioner of Education - The 

position of Commissioner of Education is one of long-standing in New Jersey. Indeed, 

it even pre-dates the well-known "thorough and efficient" clause first included in 

our State Constitution over 100 years ago. Our State has had a long and glorious 

history of local control, i.e., activities affecting all the citizens of our 

State have traditionally been designed and implemented in such a manner to provide 

an opportunity for decision-making to occur at the level closest to those who 

will be affected by such activities. 

Public education has not been excepted from this practice and tradition 

of local control. A cursory review of our State's public education history and 

development, beginning in the 1830's, demonstrates that individual communities 

considered the educational needs of their children and took steps appropriate to 

those times to meet those needs. From time-to-time the needs changed and the public 

responded at the local levels with programs designed to address those changes. 

However, it became evident - more than a century ago - that a coordination 

was required statewide in New Jersey to guarantee that the special requirements 

of the State and of society would be met. To provide for this coordination, the 

position of Commissioner of Education was created, and it was his responsibility -

a responsibility which remains to this day - to ensure that the State goals and 

objectives for its children would be addressed and that the children of our State 

would be properly prepared to function as effective, contributing members of our 

society. 

The tradition of local control and of locally-arrived-at decisions still 

remains and it is the responsibility of the New Jersey Commissioner of Education 

to see that the State'e educational objectives, as outlined through statutes, court 

decisions, his own decisions, and through the rules and regulations of the New Jersey 

State Board of Education, are carried out and implemented evenly on a statewide 

basis. To carry out this responsibility, a New Jersey Commissioner of Education 

has been given wide-ranging powers and authority. As a matter of fact, the New 

Jersey Commissioner of Education is undoubtedly - in terms of legal authority -

the strongest Commissioner of Education in any of the 50 states of our nation. 
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However, in addition to the statutory authority provided to the Commissioner, he 

has a higher authority emanating from the New Jersey Constitution, especially 

as it relates to the section which requires the New Jersey Legislature to provide 

for a system of "thorough and efficient" education in the public schools. The 

New Jersey Supreme Court - under Chief Justice Weintraub - in the landmark 

Jenkins case, clearly indicates that the Commissioner of Education not only has 

the authority, but the obligation to take whatever action is required to see that 

this constitutional mandate is carried out - conflicting statutes notwithstanding. 

This short history of the position of the Commissioner of Education, as 

outlined above, is significant because of the recognition which our courts, 

legislatures, and other bodies h~ve given to it in the past, as recognition 

that the individual holding that position must provide the leadership, continuity 

direction, assistance, and understanding needed to carry out our educational 

objectives and goals. 

ln 1965 a decision was made by the legislature with the approval of the 

Governor which led to the separation of public education in New Jersey into 

two branches: elementary and seondary education, and higher education. That action, 

in effect, brought about the untimely reitrement of an outstanding Commissioner 

of Education, Dr. Frederick Raubinger. His resignation was followed by an 

interregnum administered by Dr. Joseph Clayton who performed as Acting Commissioner 

of Education for an extended period of time in a very admirable fashion. However, 

a decision was made at that time to look outside the boundaries of the State of New 

Jersey for a permanent successor. That successor was Dr. Carl Marburger who came 

to New Jersey from another area of our country. Dr. Marburger was forceful, 

intellectual, and an educator who spoke his mind and took action in ways he 

believed necessary to help the school children of our State. In 1972, he was 

denied reconfirmation by the New Jersey Senate and another interregnum occurred 

for an extended period of time under the administration of the late Dr. Edward Kilpatrick. 

Finally, in 1974, Dr. Fred Burke was appointed and confirmed as Commissioner of 

Education and today his nomination for reappointment is being considered. 

These unplanned changes in the administration of New Jersey Commissioners 

of Education in the past fifteen years have not enhanced the leadership abilities 

of those who have made outstanding efforts to thoroughly carry out the 

responsibilities of the position. If Dr. Burke is not reconfirmed as Commissioner 

of Education, there will be a further weakening of the authority of the individual 

responsible for carrying out educational policies statewide. This action will 

certainly serve as a further deterrent to capable, skilled, and experienced 

school administrators to display any serious interest in such a position in the 

future. As a matter of fact, the time could quickly come when any professional 

educator who would show an interest in this position of Commissioner of Education 

could be considered akin to the individual who would buy that last ticket on the 

Titanic. 

The scope of problems facing public education in New Jersey today, 

New Jersey's educational problems,are not one dimensional, but are multi-faceted. 

They are concerned with instructional problems, social problems, economic problems, 

and political problems. Dr. Burke took office in 1974 at a very difficult time. 

Our public schools were just settling down from a period of student unrest of 

the latel960's and early 1970's. The effects of the first collective bargaining 

law enacted in 1968 (over Governor Hughes' veto) were just beginning to be felt. 
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A new legislature and a new governor were in office. The existing public 

education law, Chapter 234 P. L. 1970 - the Bateman-Tanzman Act - had been 

declared unconstitutional by the courts of New Jersey. 

A replacement law which could stand the constitutional test was not 

in place. Declining school enrollments with all their accompanying implications 

were just beginning to develop: our nation - and especially our state - was in 

the throes of a very serious recession. Individual interest organizations -including, 

but not limited to, those directly associated with educational employees, were 

vying for power and position. An emotional debate concerning a new system for a 

broad-based tax was being debat~d, not only in the legislature, but in every office 

and home throughout the State. 

Many had expectations that Dr. Burke, upon entering New Jersey and 

assuming his position, would immediately solve all of these problems and, at the 

same time, reduce educational expenditures and achieve all of the goals which 

many minds had not been able to collectively solve before him. problems such 

as these cannot be solved until those involved in the problem can work jointly 

toward a solution. To say that Commissioner Burke has not acted quickly and 

decisively is an indication of the lack of understanding of the complexity of 

the issues. 

Dr. Burke has been accused of a litany of sins of everything from 

being responsible for pupils not possessing minimum basic skills, to refusing to 

hold teachers accountable for tpeir performance, to being responsible for student 

violence and vandalism, to being responsible for local labor disputes in school 

districts, to the high cost of education and to innumerable other changes which 

clearly have their origins in circumstances not caused by the Commissioner of 

Education nor are they of such a nature that he personally can, through personal 

dicta, eliminate them. 

The personal performance of Dr. Fred G. Burke as Commissioner of 

Education: Entering the climate of New Jersey when he did, I believe that 

Dr. Burke has performed remarkably well during his tenure as Commissioner of 

Education. He is a personable individual who possesses the experience and skills 

necessary to carry out the responsibilities of his position. I feel that his goals 
along with those of most individuals and groups in New Jersey - even those who 

are opposing his renomination - are basically the same. However, the difference 

and dispute I believe is not that the Commissioner is not moving public education 

in the proper direction, but simply that he is not doing it at a rate fast enough 

to satisfy his opponents. In the past, previous Commissioners of Education 

have been accused, indeed, even have been accused by the New Jersey Legislature 

of not making an appropriate effort to communicate with those affected by the 

educational decisions of the Department of Education and the State Board of 

Education. Because Commissioner Burke has honestly, and effectively, attempted 

to establish lines of communications, not only between him and individuals or 

between him and individual groups, but has encouraged groups representing different 

constituencies to talk among th~mselves toward common goals, he has been 

criticized. Commissioner Burke has been accused of doing little to encourage local 

school districts to reduce the cost of education in New Jersey and, yet, as we 

are all aware, over 80% of a school district's budget is attributable to salaries 

or fixed charges related to salaries. Commissioner Burke did not enact the 

existing collective bargaining laws, the Legislature did with the governor's 
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approval. However, Dr. Burke in his position as Commissioner of Education is 

required to provide administrative relief and judgement on those issues and 

controversies brought before him which may have implications in these areas. 

Commissioner Burke has been accused of not providing leadership or suggested 

alternatives or solutions for known educational problems, but when he has taken 

positions opposing action of lay l~qislature or a lay State Board of Education 

who are attempting to move into areas that he believes, as the education! leader 

of the State, are educationally unsound and has raised objections, he has been 

criticized as being an obstructionist and overly sympathetic to special-interest 

groups. In my opinion, it takes courage - the courage of leadership - to tell the 

legislature or the State Board of Education that the "cure might be worse than 

the illness." There are issues that the Commissioner has been blamed for- that 

local school districts have been blamed for - that are not problems of our making 

nor are we in a position - local school districts or the Commissioner - to provide 

ultimate solutions. I am referring to problems such as drug abuse, violence, and 

vandalism. What is the- role of other state, county, or local agencies in these 

matters? What is the role of parents in these matters? Indeed, what is the 

role of students themselves? Our schools are as good as they ever were - our 

teachers are better - but if younsters do not regularly attend schools, they 

cannot learn. They are in a position that is similar to having goods for sale, 

but no one to buy the merchandise. In the past, parents, the public, and the 

community supported our schools: assisted our schools; that no longer is true. 

In the past, seriously disruptive students could be excluded from school; now -

due-process notwithstanding - they are returned to school even before you can 

say "restraining order." 

I believe it is time that we gave Dr. Burke credit for what he has 

accomplished. He has made a terrific effort with his staff in Trenton, at 

the twenty-one county offices of education, and in local school districts,to 

implement Chapter 212, our "thorough and efficient" law, a law which is laudable 

in its intent, however imperfect its language. The Commissioner and the Department 

of Education have been receiving conflicting messages .for years. The Commissioner 

wisely attempted to focus the monitoring efforts of the Department of Education 

and the county offices of education in those districts which needed special 

attention. For that, he was criticized. Monitoring capabilities are limited, they 

cannot effectively assist over 600 school districts at the same time, nor is 

that effort necessary. You can evaluate, effectively, teaching staff members 

without being punitive or threatening. The Commissioner tried this and was 

rebuffed. Dr. Burke has sincerely attempted to implement the laws, the education 

laws of New Jersey, and it is not totally unexpected that he would be criticized 

by local boards of education, local superintendents of schools, local teachers, 

and local communities because these groups have always made their own decisions 

concerning public education. It was the New Jersey courts and the New Jersey 

legislature and the New Jersey governors who have changed that pattern; in 

carrying out his responsibilities under the New Jersey Constitution, Commissioner 

Burke finds himself in the position of the "messenger bringing bad news to the king." 

He is an easy, visable, and defenseless target. 

The Commissioner of Education has been accused in the popular- press 

of creating a vacuum which the Legislature has been forced to fill. However, 
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to a great degree, Dr. Burke has found himself constrained by court decisions 

and legislative enactments. In considering the constitutionality of Chapter 212, 

P.L. 1975, the Supreme Court under Chief Justice Hughes, indicated that it had 

some serious reservations concerning this law as to whether it would, indeed, 

carry out the intent of the Weintraub decision in Robinson v. Cahill. The court 

indicated that it would, in effect, reserve jurisdiction because it had some serious 

questions concerning sections of the law, especially, Section 25, the so-called 

"cap" provision, but was willing in 1976 to rule the law facially constitutional 

with the understanding that the Commissioner would not be restrained in any way 

from granting "cap" waivers under Section 25, and also that the law would be 

fully-funded. In the past year, we have observed our Governor urging and the 

Legislature agreeing to tamper with the funding formula by reducing funds to 

local school districts in an ~nount approaching 50 million dollars statewide 

for the 1979-1980 school year without, however, limiting any of the mandated programs 

which those funds were supposed to support. In addition, the "cap" provision 

placed in the education law is, in my opinion, unconstitutional and my board of 

education is currently taking action to enter litigation to the Supreme Court 

in this matter. One thing is evident. There certainly are no clear guidelines 

to serve as criteria which the Commissioner may apply to enforce and implement 

this section of the law. He made an attempt this past year to provide the 

flexibility which he believed was required, and was severely criticized. This 

year he attempted to apply standards and guidelines and, again, he has been 

criticized. I believe that as far as this particular issue goes, it requires 

a determination by the Supreme Court as to (a) whether that section is constitutional 

at all, or in the alternative, {b) whether appropriate guidelines can be clearly 

established by the court to carry out its own intent. In any respect, it has had 

a "chilling" effect on the operation of the public schools in New Jersey. 

Some members of the Legislature have been quoted in the press as 

indicating that they would like direction; they would like to assist public 

education; they would like to act; they would like to be helpful. If that 

is true, I would suggest that the Legislature encourage studies be carried out 

to provide for cost/outcome analyses concerning existing special education programs, 

compensatory education programs, and remedial math, reading, and language arts 

programs to determine if desired outcomes are being achieved and if so, at what 

cost. Commissioner Burke has been accused of "lopping off the mountain tops 

to fill in the valleys" in order to comply with the state public education law. 

The problem, in my opinion, is not with the Commissioner's attempt to enforce 

the law, but rather with the law itself. I believe that the primary problem in 

this area is with an interpretation of reading of the Weintraub court decision 

in the Robinson v. Cahill case which, in my opinion, called for equalized 

educational opportunity for students throughout New Jersey, but not necessarily 

to equate that with equalized educational spending among all districts. There 

are many districts in our state, particularly certain urban and and very rural 

districts, which will require higher expenditures to produce the same educational 

opportunities for the children of their schools. It may not have been the 

Legislature's intent in developing and enacting - with the approval of the Governor -

Chapter 212, P.L. 1975, to destroy public education, but the existing law is 

being perceived by those who must implement it as a law whose primary intent is 

to reduce educational expenditures and not to improve the quality of education. 
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Indeed, if the law is pe~itted to continue for several more years without 

revision, it will perhaps produce equalized educational expenditures, but in the 

process, quality educational school districts with quality educational programs 

will be leveled downward while those school districts which have not been 

providing programs of high quality to date will not necessarily be raised in 

quality. I assume the effects will be accelerated since the net effect of 

support for public education locally is now being transferred back from the 

state level to the local property tax owner. Because of these perceptions, 

Dr. Burke is being targeted for blame, but Dr. Burke as a memP9r of the Governor's 

cabinet, as a constitutional officer of the State of New Jersey, and as the 

primary educational leader in New Jersey is simply attempting, with his staff, the 

Department of Education, and the State Board of Education, to carry out the 

responsibilities entrusted to him. 

These are very difficult and complex times in public equcation. The 

problems that New Jersey is undergoing are not significantly different from those 

existing in other states of the union. There are no easy answers:· no quick 

answers. We must work cooperatively together: we must cultivate leadership: we 

must obtain direction: we must hear the voice of those who are in positions to 

provide the advice. We c~nnot, in 1979, afford the luxu~y of appointing a new 

individual to the position of Commi~sioner of Education. We desperately peed the 

continuity that has exist~d. It is necessary that Dr. Burke be permitted to 

continue his efforts. Therefore, I respectfully ask the Senate to confirm Dr. Burke 

and reappoint him for a new term as New Jersey Commissioner of Education. 

SENATOR MARESS~: Thank you. I would like to ask, how many years have 

you been the County Superintendent? 

DR. DWYER: No, I am not the County Superintendent, I am the District 

Superintendent • 

SENATOR MARESSA: Well, how many years have you been the District 

Superintendent? 

DR. DWYER: I have been District Superintendent since 1968. 

SENATOR PARKER: Yes, Doctor, on that last point when you are talking 

about problems on the funding under the new school, the richer districts, or 

the districts that are going to provide for the quality education being held down 

by the caps, and you say that Commissioner Burke has shown a lot of leadership. 
How does that comport with the ruling that he made immediately after the Governor 

made the statement, that he was not going to allow rich, or wealthy districts, 

those with a local tax rate in excess of 6.5 to come in ~nd have any cap waiver. 

DR. DWYER: My pistrict was denied cap waiver entirely by Commissioner 

Burke. 

SENATOR PARKER: Do you think that shows leadership? 

DR. DWYER: I personally disagreed with that. As a matter of fact, Ihad 

my Board of Education appeal to the State Board, and they partially reversed 

Commissioner Burke on it. The fact that I may disagree with Commissioner Burke 

on an individual instance, Senator Parker, doesn't mean that I will support his 

total leadership in the last five years. I agree with you. I don't think that 

is a fair interpretation, and we appealed it and we got a remedy for it. 

SENATOR PARKER: Well, do you think it was proper for him to do that, 

because the Governor for budget reasons said he is going to do that, and take that 

position, totally abdicating his responsibility to all the school districts? 
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DR. DWYER: I don't like what he did, but you touched on one point. I 

think the real basic problem in this State in education in the last five or teq 

years, not ten years, but in the last five or six years has been one that falls 

at the doorstep of the Legislature and the Executive Branch. 

SENATOR PARKER: I don't think you can blame that on the Legislature -

the Governor indicating that he is not going to allow any waiver, and the 

Governor making a mandate and then imposing that on the Commissioner. It is my 

understanding that this type of waiver was to be given on the basis of merit and 

consideration of the total educational process. 

DR. DWYER: That is exactly why our district is going to the court 

as a class action to ask the Supreme Court exactly that point. I agree with you 

on that point, Senator Parker. 

And, it is a difficult position in this State for the Commissioner of 

Education to also be a member of the Governor's Cabinet. There is no question 

about that. 

SENATOR PARKER: Well, really, the criticism that I have 

many members of the State Board of Education and other educators is 

Commissioner does not, when he takes a stand, or when he makes his 

does not adhere to it and he allows political pressures, the whims 

him, to control his actions. This is the thing that concerns me. 

received 

that the 

position 

of those 

You talk 

from 

known, 

above 

about 

leadership and the need for leadership from a gentleman of this calibre and I have 

nothing against him individually. Then, when the going gets tough, he lets some

body else dictate to him, rather than stick to a position that is right, basically 

right. 

DR. DWYER: Well, you see, Senator, you have me at a disadvantage 

because I don't know what you know about directions coming from the Governor's 

Office. I don't know for a fact that the Governor has done that. 

SENATOR PARKER: It was in the press that I think the Governor indicated 

that he should hold down the spending, and when he cuts the budget to $22 million, 

the Governor made it clear that he wanted no waivers for any school district, which 

the local property tax was, I think, 6.5? 

DR. DWYER: It was fo+ people over the 65th percentile. 

SENATOR MARES SA: Thank you very much, Dr. Dwyer. 

DR. DWYER: Thank you. 

SENATOR MARESSA: I now call Dr. Crosby Copeland, President Elect of 

the New Jersey Association of Secondary School Principals and Supervisors. 

C R 0 S B Y c o P E LA N D: Thank you, Senator. I am Crosby Copeland, 

Principal of Trenton Central High School, and President Elect of the New Jersey 

Association of Secondary School Principals and Supervisors. 

Mr. Vice Chairman, men~ers of the Senator Judiciary Committee, I have 

been requested to speak before· you today by the Executive Council and Board of 

Governors of the New Jersey Association of Secondary School Principals and 

Supervisors. My purpose is to make known our association's position on the all 

important issue of the reappointment of Dr. Fred Burke as Commissioner of Education 

in New Je:r;sey. 

As a preface, I think it is fitting to point out that during the last 

five years the position of Commissioner of Education has probably been one of the 

most difficult and controversial ones in the Governor's Cabinet. Not only has he 

had to satisfy the demands of the State Board of Education, the Governor, and the 
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Legislature, but he has also had to cope with pressures from a variety of citizen 

groups, the Department of Higher Education, and a number of powerful education 

groups. Intense pressure was brought to bear from all directions, primarily, wn 

believe, because of the m~ny new problems which arose, most of. which were not of 

his own making, but rather were creatf'd by the courts, the Legislat.ure, and thr> 

demands of the public. 

The most important of these problems stemmed from the aotter decision 

which triggered a series of major events which we feel were handled as efficiently 

as possible given the con~traints of time, funds, and personnel which exi~ted at 

the time. These included the development of the entire plan for a thorough and 

efficient system of publio education for the children in our schools, the funding 

crisis which finally brou~ht about the New Jersey State income tax, the 

restructuring of the Department of Education and the resultant decentrali~ation 

to accomplish adequate stqffing of the county offices, and the expansion from one 

to four education improvement centers to provide support programs for staff 

training and program development activities to aid .in the implementation of T & E. 

At the same time that all of this was taking place, the Commi~sioncr 

also had to deal with pressures that were building as a result of public clamor 

over declining test scores, teacher tenure, increasing costs of education, 

violence and vandalism in the schools and the controversy over bilingual education. 

We believe that Commissioqer Burke took a very positive approach in the search for 

the solution to these major problems. He made excellent use of all available 

resources by establishing or recommending establishment of a number of major study 

committees to assist in tne development of recommendations for coping with the 

problems. 

We feel that these and many other actions taken by the Commissioner to 

involve educators, students and the public in the decision making process 

have served to establish his credibility as one who believes that the democratic 

process can and does work if sufficient patience and restraint are present to 

permit the process to evolve. We believe that it has worked for the Commissioner, 

and that is why the following have been accomplished: 

1. T & E· is now in full operation and is a working process. 

2. The county offices are now providing on-site monitoring of the 

development of the T & E process at the local level as a result 

of the reorganization and decentralization of the Department. 

3. Viable evaluation procedures have been developed and adopted 

for the evaluation of all·teacning personnel. 

4. The statewide minimum basic skills testing program is now 

operating smoothly. 

5. The .statewide compensatory education program is in place at the 

local level. 

We believe that these accomplishments alone are sufficent reason to 

declare that never in the history of education in New Jersey, or in fact, most other 

37 



states in the union, has a Commissioner of Education been called upon to attempt 

to accomplish so much in so short a period of time. The challenge pas been of 

immense proportions and the Commissioner has met it well. 

We believe that the Commissioner has also taken tremendous strides 

in improving the credibility of the Department in its working relationships with 

the educational community. If I may be somewhat personal on this issue, I have 

found the following activities which were initiated by Commissioner Burke to 

have been of considerable interest and value to me, to my association, and to 

leadership personnel in all of the major education groups who have been involved. 

1. The Executive Academy which has served to interpret the Department 

and its activities to all levels of administration. 

2. Frequent meetings with leadership personnel of the various 

education groups to keep them updated on major issues in education 

and to get their input. 

3. Involvement of members of these various groups on major Commissions 

and study groups such as the T & E Committee, the Longitudinal 

study Committee, the State Advisory Council on Reading, the 

Adolescent Study Commission, the_Graduation Requirements Study 

Committee, the Committee to Study Violence and Vandalism, the 

Committee on implementation of the Meisner Reporter, ad 

infinitum. I might comment here that graduation requirements 

were addressed by Commissioner Burke about a year before the 

Senator came up with Senate Bill 1164. 

4. Excellent cooperation from the Commissioner's office in all 

matters including governmental relations, sharing Commissioner's 

decisions and opinion, and developing a training program for 

integrating the middle states and T & E evaluation procedures. 

Our association also believes that the Commissioner could have functioned 

more satisfactorily in making key appointments of personnel in the Department, in 

dealing with caps, and in dealing with the issues of tenure, had he been free from 

political constraints. 

Considering all aspects of the Commissioner's record in office, the New 

Jersey Association of Secondary School Principals and Supervisors wish to go on 

record as supporting reappointment of Commissioner Burke for a second term of 

office. We feel that he has a keen interest in providing quality education for the 

youth of New Jersey, and that another term in office will bring to fruition the 

results of his efforts. We urge the Legislature to approve Governor Byrne's 

recommendation that the Commissioner be reappointed. 

SENATOR MARESSA: Thank you, Dr. Copeland. A previous witness from 

Jersey City made reference to the MBS scores having been lowered by Commissioner 

Burke. Could you comment on that? 

DR. COPELAND: I don't think the scores were lowered. I think she 

should of perhaps referred to the percentile. The percentile was' lowered. 

SENATOR PARKER: What do you mean by the percentile was lowered? 
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DR, COPELAND: She was confusing the test scores with the manner in which 

grades are given in the public schools. She mentioned that there was a means of 

scoring from tOO down to 0 and that those who fell in the range of 60 to 65 were 

doing poorly and that tho~e who received 90 to 100 were doing very well. 

We are talking about minimum basic skill scores. We are talking about 

reading, and when we talk about reading, we don't talk in terms of getting an 

"A" or a "B" so to speak, we tal:j{ i;1 terms of grade equivalents, c;1verages 1 and 

the ability to comprehend and to be able to read. And, I don't think it was 

Commissioner Burke who lowered tpe percentile. l think it was a Committee or 

Commission that was established by Commissioner Burke to study the minimum basic 

skills tests. Some of the urban districts were saying tnat the validity of the 

test was questionable, because tpere were some items on there that were not suited 

to children in various ethnic groups or children in various parts of the State, 

urban versus rural, ver~us urban. 

SE~ATOR PARKER: You mean as to the questions and the content of the 

examination 'that it wasn't there and it didn't take into consideration all 

aspects of those being tested? 

DR, COPELAND: Yes. 

SE~TOR PARKER: So, ~hat you are saying is tnat the test grade level 

didn't come down, but there was .some adjustment in the percentile as to, I guess, 

what is average statewide? 

DR, COPELAND: Yes. 

SE~ATOR PARKER: And the Statewide average wa~ lowered so that basically 

the test scores therefore would pe lower, or the necessity to pass would be 

lower? 

DR. COPELAND: Well, ! think the average was lowered so that more 

students could receive extra help, compensatory education. It was--

SE~TOR MARESSA: Will you hold it down, please? 

DR. COPELAND: As the test was originally designed, and we found this 

in our particular district, there were some individuals who were perhaps scoring 

high who needed additional work, additional remediation work. They were not 

getting it because---

SE~ATOR PARKER: You know of nothing that he did personally or 

individually to reduce or to lower to create the effect that Ms. Richardson 

indicated? 

DR. COPELAND: No, I do not. 

SENATOR PARKER: Just one other thing. I missed Mrs. Potkays 

testimony. I got in just as she was testifying. I understand that she was 

critical of Commissioner Burke, and that is your school district, the district 

in which you are the Superintendent or the Principal. 

DR. COPELAND: ! am the Principal. 

SENATOR PARKER: You are the principal af the high school? 

DR. COPELAND: Yes. 

SENATOR PARKER: I wonder if you could comment on the effect of what 

commissioner Burke has done to your school system here as she did. 

DR. COPELAND: Well, I wasn't privy to Mrs. Potkay's testimony, so I 

would prefer not commenting. 

SENATOR PARKER: You qisagree, then, with the Board of Education? Was 

she speaking, do you know, for the whole board? Did the Board take a formal position? 
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member. 

DR. COPELAND: No, I think she was speaking as an individual Board 

SENATOR MARESSA: I think she indicated that. 

SENATOR PARKER: I must have missed that. 

SENATOR MARESSA: Thank you, Dr. Copeland. Karen Raulston, please. 

Are you speaking as an individual, or are you representing someone? 

KAREN R A u L s T 0 N: I am speaking as a parent and as a member of 

a parents' organization called the Parents Union of Burlington County. I reside 

at 432 Jefferson Avenue in Edgewater Park, New Jersey. 

Members of the Committee and members of the public, education is a 

State responsibility. It is the State responsibility to set standards and 

objectives to be obtained and to contrive educational environments and teaching 

strategy. This is a quote from Robinson versus Cahill. The Commissioner 

of Education has unprecendented responsibility and power to'overhaul the public 

education system. It is his responsibility to establish credibility for 

those educational programs and activities identified as necessary for meeting 

accepted levels of achievement by supplying evidence that they work to accomplish 

what they werP. intended to accomplish. This is a quote from Commissioner Burke 

on page 11 of the T & E Primer. 

Parents and citizens are not interested in making goals reasonable. 

we want goals set high for all children regardless of race or color, regardless of 

economic background, regardless of where they live in the State. Children will 

accomplish the goals set for them if they are told that they can~ if they are 

consistently told they will fail, they will. There must be an upgrading of 

requirements for administrators and teacher certification and evaluation. It 

is the Commissioner's responsibility to be a leader in providing this direction. 

He has not. 

Parents and citizens, too, feel that a teacher can make a difference, 

if it is a good teacher. The principle of same is that too many principals have 

never been aware that they are now administrators and in management and that 

teachers are their employees. The majority of building principals in one district 

tested on contracts did not even know what they contained, much less how to avoid 

grievances filed by teachers over the contract. There must be guidance provided 

to administrators by the Commissioner of Education to correct this weak link in 

the chain of the educational system. Violence and discipline are becoming 

horrendous factors in all schools, not just Newark, Paterson, Jersey City, but 

urban schools, such as Willingboro, Cherry Hill, Moorestown~ A recent Burlington 

County Times article ran a full page for three days on problems in Willingboro 

schools related to violence against students and teachers. 

There are those who will blame the parents. It is their fault. They 

should control their children. It is interesting to note that many of the children 

who become violent in school are also children who have learning problems, and 

have become frustrated with the inability to cope in the classroom setting, and 

the stress placed upon them. They have often been put down in front of both 

students and teachers for being lazy, stupid, or unwilling to learn. 

Are these the students we are now going to give a certificate of 

attendance, or punish for the failures of the system? Although teacher absenteeism 

is at an all time high, little or any guidance has been received by local 

districts from Commissioner Burke on how to remedy the situation. In one 
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school district with a budget of $28 and a half million, over one-half million 

dollars was spent on substitute teacher salaries alone last year. And that 

figure is already at an ipcrease for this school year. 

SENATOR PARKER: Excuse me, is that in Burlington CouQty? 

MS. RAULSTON: Yes, it is. It is infue Willingboro district. 

Why are teachers absent at a rate higher than national industry and business 

percentages? Do they care? Are they bored? Are they t:rained to teach and 

control the classroom set1;ing, or are they merely certified? Do they suffer 

from a poor morale, and if so, why? 

Commissioner Burke should provide leadership in getting to the root 

of this problem, and he has not. Teacher strikes have been an ever present, 

ever increasing factor in the educational process. The threat of jailing 

striking teachers is no longer a deterrent to strikes, a~ statistics show us 

that teachers are no longer put in jail for refusing to obey a court order to 

return to work or contempt of court proceedings. In 1967 teachers were sent 

to jail for refusing to obey a court order to return to work. In Woodbridge, 

Middlesex County, a teacher's union rep. served three months, and another 

leader thirty days. In 1970, in Passaic County, six teachers served 

thirty to sixty days duriQg the summer with time off for good behavior. In 

1970 in Newark, Essex CouQty, more than 180 teachers served ten to ninety 

days in jail. In 1970 in Jersey City, Hudson County, 20 teacher leaders 

served ten to thirty days in jail. In 1971, in Fairlawn in Bergen County, 

14 teachers served thirty days in a work release program. In 1971, in Newark 

12 leaders served three months, one served six months, two served thirty days. 

In 1972, Freehold Regional High School, 11 teachers served two to four month 

sentences. In 1973, Elmwood Park, in Bergen County, 4 teachers served twenty of 

the thirty day jail sentences. In 1974, Long Branch, Monmouth County, 12 

teachers served two days over the weekend, and then the picture changes even 

more drastically. 

In 1975 in Hoboken, Hudson County, the first example of "alternative 

services" 6 teachers performed 100 hours of work in county social institutions in 

lieu of jail terms. In 1977, in Matawan, Monmouth County, 100 teachers sentenced 

to seven to thirty day~, but the entire union had a beach cleaning party at 

Sandy Hook State Park for two days. 

SENATOR PARKER: Excuse me, .on the statistics on the strike, a11d 

what have you, what does that have to do with the Commissioner and his reappointment? 

MS. RAULSTON: + maintain that it is attributed to a lack of leadership 

in instituting effective alternatives to bargaining impasses. I feel that it is 

the direct responsibility of the Commissioner of Educatiop, and indeed the 

Department. 

SENATOR PA~ER: I was just wondering--- There is a collective 

bargaining process, and under the PERC law, that is really the prerogative of 

the Legislature, and we pretty much preempted that on him. I was just wondering 

why you were going into all of that. 

MS. RAULSTON: ~s Co~issioner of Education, it is his responsibility 

to be a leader in creating legislation affecting education. 

SENATOR MARESSA: Please continue with your statement. 

MS. RAULSTON: ~hank you. Can we cexpect students to obey the law, 

and indeed to respeet the teachers who break the !aw when they see that those 
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very people they have been trained to respect do not obey the law themselves? Are 
there two sets of standards? Striking teachers have been known to resort to 

teamster tactics, putting nails in driveways, threatening and har~assing students 

and parents who cross the picket line, spray painting cars of local board members 

or PTA officers who try to keep schools open. Are these examples to be set for 

children who are to respect others? 

a scab after the strike was over? 

Would you respect a teacher who called you 

Do teachers always strike because they want more money? Or do they 

strike because, basically, they too are frustrated in their efforts to educate? 

Frustrated with their administrators, frustrated with the lack of guidance and 

initiative shown by the State Department of Education, and indeed the Commissioner. 

Teachers are no longer the poorly paid positions of the past. They 

work an average of 180 days a year, provided they don't use all of their added 

ten day's sick leave, sick days, personal leave, professional leave, paid 

vacation if they get married on the job, et cetera. 

Their salaries are above the national average consistent with their 

degree of education, and they receive fringe benefits which are usually more 

generous than that of business or industry. And, indeed, the majority of the 

members of the public could pay their salaries. What is wrong with the 

educational system then? And, why at a time when there is a glut of teachers 

on the market and student enrollment is steadily declining should students 

have to take the remnants of the sixties when there was a serious shortage 

of teachers and the school boards would hire anything that breathes. 
Of course, we all know that those who did breathe and who are still 

breathing are still in the classrooms with tenure. Why aren't these teachers 

being evaluated, trained to correct deficiencies, and if they are unable to 
demonstrate a willingness or an inability to do so, gotten rid of? In schools 

where over 60% of the students did not pass the minimum skills tests, we 

must surely look at the qualifications of the teachers and administrators who 

have presented the curriculum, and we must do so without delay before another 

generation of children passes through the school system. 
It is the Commissioner's responsibility to assume this leadership as 

the highest authority in education for this State, and he has not. Commissioner 

Burke has stated to this Committee that he was "proud of his accomplishments 
during his tenure." As the highest authority for education for the children 

of the State of New Jersey, proud of the inconsistently, and indiscriminately 
applied caps law limiting school spending which he has permitted unjustified 

exemptions to, proud of the uniform pupil proficiency, and he stated that he 

was encouraged by basic skills scores, in spite of the fact that more than 

one-fourth of New Jersey pupils are not able to pass basic skills tests, and 

in suburban districts, indeed more than two-thirds of the students are unable 

to pass basic skills tests. 

Indeed, we wonder what the true results of these tests mean when we 

learned that nearly ten percent of the students in the state never even had 

their tests scored, and it was later proven that the results of test scores were 

manipulated, that the test was easier last year than the year before, and that 

we are told even in some districts that teachers taught the test. No wonder there 

is such a credibility gap about public education. 
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The Commissioner is proud of his lip service to parental involvement 
in the schools when in fact in a letter dated September 25, 1978, he pointed 

out parent involvement as being, and I quote, "the law which required encouragement 

of maximum citizen participation in educational matters,'' and that each local 

school board member is an elected official or is appointed by an elected official. 

The community at large participates in these elections, and while he believes that 

local boards should do everything possible to encourage public involvement, 

he does not feel that further special measures are required." 

Local boards h~ve consistently shown an inability or an unwillingness 

to address the problems tqat exist. Indeed, the somewhat dubious distinction 

of serving on a local bpard of education has lost its charisma for most citizens. 

Few can afford the time away from their employment and families to attend the 

multitude of meetings, night after night, to solve the problems presented in the 
districts by the ineffecti.ve implementation of T & E, teacher grievances, 

negotiation for contracts for employees, tenured administrators wpo supply them 

with what information they wish them to know, and manipu+ate to cpntrol t~eir 
decisions. 

There is no fi~ancial compensation involved for these citizens who 
come forth to serve the cqildren of their community, or even to those who serve 

on the State Board. They must often take time otf from their employment at their 

own expense to attend meet,ings or gather information necessary for proper decision 
making in connection with their position. 

And, too many of them just did not know what they were getting into 

when they ran for the position of board members, and indeed are not capable of 

handling the job. It is interesting to note that one of the larger districts 

in this State, with a bud~et of twenty-eight and a half ~illion dollars, and 

three seats to be filled on the board, was the .victim of a thirty-two day 

teacher strike last year, and nine of the twelve candidates in the forthcoming 

April election have not even heard of the NJEA when they appeared at a recent 
candidates night presented by the PTA. 

No wonder there is such apathy about even turning out to vote for 

local board members -a fact brought to bear by the fact.that school board 
members are elected by an average of less than ten percent of the eligible voters 

and many of those who do vote are those with a vested interest, members of the 
teachers union. 

According to Governor Byrne, Commissioner Burke hasn't gotten into 
much trouble.- perhaps not with the politicians or with the NJ~ whom he 
has openly co~rted, solicited, consulted and entertained. Yes, he has certainly 
been concerned with the "stress on the members of the educational community." 

Perhaps he hasn't gotten into much trouble because of his absence from the 

educational scene at times when it is his responsibility to be in the forefront 

in decision making. His responsibility to be a leader iq curriculum development 

throughout the State, to assure that the public education system is educationally 

and fiscally the best possible, as he alluded last Thursday. 

His responsibility to be a leader in establisqing improvements in 

the certification procedure for teachers and administrators, his responsibility 

to be a leader in establishing evaluation procedures for administrators and 

teachers, his responsibility to be a leader in setting up " a very sophisticated 

system of monitoring " through county superintendent offices, his responsibility 
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to be a leader in "moving orderly and steadfastly toward improvements in public 

education," his responsibility to be a leader in making education "an open public 

process," his responsibility to be a leader in making sure that ·"uniform pupil 

proficiency" is at the highest attainable level for each and every student in 

the State of New Jersey. Let me tell you, Senators, that he is in real trouble 

with the parents and the citizens of the State of New Jersey, the same parents and 

citizens who elect State Senato~s, the same parents and citizens who are tired of 

promises that our children will receive a thorough and efficient education. the 

same parents and citizens who have heard far too much about minimum basic skills 

and want maximum skills for every child in the State of New Jersey, the same 

parents and citizens who do not want "uniform pupil proficiency" as promised by 

Commissioner Burke to mean that all students in the State will be educationally 

crippled, and unable to read and write and communicate in the adult world, a world 

in which 1.9 million residents over the age of twenty-five in the State of New 

Jersey do not have a licensed diploma, forty-seven percent of New Jersey's total 

population. Of that total, 604,000 never completed the eighth grade, by which 

time their reading and mathematical skills needed for everyday life should have 

been mastered - rendering these people difficulty in computing fractions, reading 

a newspaper, using a telephone directory, or even filling out an unemployment form. 

Every year 27,000 students drop out of New Jersey's schools. Many because of 

frustration and inadquacies in the system. Is this what you want for the children 

of New Jersey? It is not what the parents and citizens want, and we are tired of 

waiting, tired of promises, tired of excuses, while more and more of our children 

are passed through the system educationally crippled. 

We demand a Commissioner who will take his responsibility and provide 

the leadership necessary to get the educational system moving now. Thank you. 

SENATOR MARESSA: I have one question. Our educational system leaves 

a lot to be desired, I am sure, and it seems that you have done a great deal of 

research and I wanted to compliment you on your in-depth presentation. Can you 

tell me of some other State, if you happen to know, that has a system that works 

better than ours? 

MS. RAULSTON: Having only been a resident of one other State, I really 

don't know that much about other States' Departments of Education. Being a resident 

of the State of New Jersey, this State is my concern right now. 

SENATOR MARESSA: I am sincere in my request. 

MS. RAULSTON: I am not ready to tackle it on a national basis right 

now. 

SENATORM MARESSA: I just wanted to know whether you knew if other states 

have the same problems we have. 

MS. RAULSTON: I am sorry, but I do not know. 

SENATOR MARES SA: Thank you. 

SENATOR PARKER: Just one thing, does your group - I wasn't completely 

familar with the name - participate with the school districts actively? For instance, 

you spent a lot of time talking about the Willingboro district, but yet you live 

in Edgewater Park. 

MS. RAULSTON~ I happen to be a previous resident of the Willingboro 

district, having recently moved to Edgewater Park. That is why I am very familiar 

with statistics from Willingboro. 

SENATOR PARKER: Did your group participate actively with the Willingboro 

Board of Education? 
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MS. RAULSTON: The primary function of our parent organization is to 

provide parents with information concerning the educational syste~ benefits that 

are available to their children, and how they can correct deficiencies, who they 

can go to with complaints, and how they can get ~ervice from the educational 

system. 

these---

SENATOR PARKER: In Willingboro, did you actually work and present 

Frankly, a lot of the things you presented had to do with the duties 

of the school board itself as opposed to the Commissioner. I understand your 

position about the leadership. But, from my recollection of the Willingboro Board, 

some of the difficulties have been coming qirectly from that Boarq. 

MS. RAULSTON: That is the case I believe you would find in just about 

every one of the 611 districts in the State. We are concerned that some leader

ship be displayed on the State level to set up some guidelines that these boards 

and these administrators nave tq follow. We do not feel that has been done. 

SENATOR PARKER: Do you think that would have helped to any degree in 

Willingboro? 

MS. RAULSTON: Absolutely~ 

SENATOR PARKER: The way that board is operat~d? 

MS• RAULSTON: Absolutely. 

SENATOR PARKER; I won't comment on that. 

MS. RAULSTON: KnowiQg that you are from that area. 
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MEMBER OF THE AUDIENCE: Senator Greenberg, can I just ask a question, 

sir, ? Many of these people have come a long way and gone to a lot of trouble to 
prepare their testimony. While I know tt is being recorded and you have written 

records that you will read, I'm sure it is disheartening to them that so few memQers 

of the Committee are present to hear their testimony and I wonder if you will consider, 
if more of you will be here after the lunch break, I wonder if you will consider ad

journing so that they could have a larger audience for the things they have to say.(Applause) 

I get the impression that there are people here who feel the same way about it. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: The Committee will continue to take testimony in the 

fashion that it has taken it and those senators who are not present will have an 

opportunity to read it. All of the senators have notified of this hearing, as you know. 

I can really do no more than that, other than to adjourn it for another day when we 

will probably have the same problem. The point of the matter is, while it is very 

important and significant to the people who testify that they see faces from an emotional 

point of view, the significant thing is that their testimony will be given and hopefully, 

at least as far as I'm concerned, read and considered. This is not a theatrical performance. 

In many instances both on the Congressional level, as well as the State level, less than 

all of the people are present. It happens today that we have three. We had eight or 

seven last time. I want to get the testimony in the record. You see, not only will these 

eleven Committee members vote, but the other 29 members of the Senate, who will not be 

here under any circumstances, because they are not members of this Committee, will 

ultimately have to vote, if the Committee reports it out and under that theory, I should 
have forty people here. I can't do it. I can't even have eleven here. All I can do 

is attempt to do it, which is what I'm doing and frankly I want to continue. I don't want 

to delay this matter unnecessarily and I have no choice but to proceed under the present 
circumstances. 

Ernest Kerstein? 

E R N E S T K E R S T E I N: Thank you. My name is Ernest Kerstein and I am from 

Mahwah, New Jersey. I am a full-time businessman. I have indicated on the copy of the 

testimony that I left here that I am the Chairman of the Curriculum Development Committee 

for the Mahwah Home School Association, however I am speaking only for myself. 
I am here because of my overriding concern that all of our children get an 

education that will enable them to cope effectively in the real world into which they will 
be thrust upon graduation from high school. They have not been getting that kind of 
education. I believe that "Thorough and Efficient" does provide a unique opportunity 

for that to occur. 
T & E is education by plan with insistence upon involvement by parents and 

members of the local community. But, it is also a five year developmental plan that must 

be given the time necessary to grow and produce results. Thi~ fact seems to be overlooked 

by many who use T & E as a scapegoat for a wide variety of perceived sins, such as paper

work overload, low test scores, budget caps and so forth. Often, the blame lies elsewhere. 

We tend to lose sight of the fact that the ultimate beneficiary of a successful T & E will 

be our children. Do we expect that ambitious goal to be reached easily without pain and 

sacrifice? 
Unfortunately too, the media has failed to bring a measure of balance and 

understanding in its coverage of stories on the subject. Two years ago, . in the New Jersey 

section of the New York Times, a story headlined, "A Year of T & E, Does It Work?" The 

following year, the Bergen Record headlined T & E--."At Age Two Has It Passed The Test"? 
It is a five year test. Recently both the Record and the Star-Ledger ran stories falsely 

attributing low test scores of college freshmen to T & E. The truth is that T & E has not 

yet had an opportunity to influence those students. How many readers are aware of that? 

They are very likely to influenced negatively. 
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I am reasonably confident that at the end of five years the report on 
T & E, probably the toughest course ever taken on by New Jersey, will receive a passing 
grade. In the meantime, let's not lose sight of our children by throwing out the baby 

with the bathwath water. Cqnmissioner Burke has been an advocate of T & E from the 
outset· and he should be givep the opportunity to finish that job. 

In addition to the need for renewed emphasis on the basics of reading, 

writing, and arithmetic, the time has come fo~ a"foqrth R"--reality. How often have parents 

admonished their children by saying, "You'd better pay attention to your studies of 
you will be sorry when you get out into the real world". 'Dhat is a warning children 

should heed, but. often do not. However, there is also a warning that we as concerned 

parents and citizens should also be heeding. From whom does this w&rning come? Well, 

from leading educators from all over the coun~ty~ from Ernest Boyer, the u.s. Commissioner 

of Education. lt came from fresidents Ford apd Carter, an~ particu~arly from the 

Council of Chief State Schoo~ Officers of the 50 states an~ territories. I refer to their 
1976 report, entitled, "CivitP Lite:racy for Global Interdepend~nce. I have a copy of 

that here that I can leave. I'll quote three paragraphs from it. 

"Dqring the past thirty years, since the end of the second world wa:r, a 
quiet revolution has been going on in our country. Until two years ago, this 

revolution was almost unnoticed, but with the eruption of the world food crisis, 

plus the oil and ene~gy crises, Americans everywhere became uncomfortably 
aware of the degree to which our lives are now affected by w~at happens else

where, and that what we do affects the lives of ot~ers. 
All of this is posing new challenges to Americans. We must develop a basic 

understanding of the forces at play in the world, so that we may cope more 

effectively with the problems of global interdepen~ence~ and, because under our 

federal system, the constitution lodges pr~ary responsibility for education 

with the state, it i~ a test of state claims to leadership in the field of 

education to respond with energy and vision in meeting this vital challenge. 

Th~ Committee op International Education of the Council of Chief State 
School Officers sees it role as mobilizing the interest and resources of the 

states in order to c~eate a new and expanded civic literacy on problems of 

global interdependence. What we accomplish in the future is import~nt and 
critical if we are to move our country into first place internation~lly in 

knowledge and understanding of global events. Our goal should be nothing less." 
on April 21, 1978, P~esident Carter issued an Executive Order establishing the 

President's Commission-on Fofej,gn Language and International Studies. The first objective 

of the Commission is to recommend means for directing public attention to the importance 

of foreign language and international studies for the improvemeqt of communications and 
understanding with other nations in an increasingly inter-dependent world. ·I was very 

pleased to note that one of the 25 members on the Commission is Representative Milicent 

Fenwick of New Jersey. 
The first meetipg was held in Washington D.Co on October 27-28, 1978 with 

a series of wor~ing sessions, One area of focus agreed upon was international education 

at all levels, primary through adult. The resource person on the topic of international 

studies in the schools was D:r. Fred Burke, New Jersey Commissioner of Education and the 

Chairman of the Committee on International Education for the Coupcil of Chief State 

School Officers, 
Concurrently with these happenings, the State ~oard' of Education adopted 

a resolution recpmmending th~t school districts include cur~icula relating to other 
cultures of the world~ that they encourage efforts in global education and ethnic 

47 



heritage studies, and that the Department of Education cooperate in developing educational 

policies relating to international business and occupational projections for New Jersey. 

I am proud that the State Board of Education took such action, which 

reflects an awareness of the changing world and our need to respond. 
So, New Jersey is at the crossroads in 1979. It is halfway through 

a controversial "Thorough and Efficient" program designed to provide a quality education 

for our children in the complex years ahead. The nation is watching this state because 

our efforts are unique, but it is a five year program and in view of the tremendous 

investments already made, we must let it wax and grow strong. 

For the basic reasons of T & E and for the fact that Dr. Fred Burke is 

already an expert in the areas in which the top educators of the country and even our 

President said we should be concentrating, I feel that he is the most qualified man 
we could possibly have at this time and I urge his reappointment. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: l thank you sir. I thank you for appearing and for 

your thoughtful comments. Senator Maressa? 

SENATOR MARESSA: I don't have any questions. 
SENATOR GREENBERG: Senator Parker? 

SENATOR PARKER: I just have one. I gather you are speaking as a citizen 

and also one that has been involved with the development in your locaL school districts 
of certain curricula, I guess, in accordance with the mandates of T & E, the parents and 

the locale getting involved. Do you find any difficulties or deficiencies with the 
leadership a.nd the problems as they affect the local district, vis-a-vis the Commissioner? 

MR. KERSTEIN: No. As a matter of fact, I think that the T & E mandate is 

so clear, so far as the steps to be taken or the five or six basic steps you take and if 

the school district is willing to put out and follow the guidelines, setting goals and 

do all the other things, that I just see it as a tremendous advantage for the children 
in our State and down the line. What I'm sayinq, in Mahwah, it is a lot of extra work 

but they are doing it and they will be evaluating the objectives and everything. I think 
it's an excellent thing and the morale is very high up there. 

SENATOR PARKER: Are you affiliated in any way with the Commissioner or any

one in the Department? 
MRu KERSTEIN: No, but I am involved very much in the whole idea of the 

global education aspect. I belong to a number of non-profit organizations such as the 
United Nations Association and things like that where we are involved in seeing more 
global prospectives brought into the school. 

SENATOR PARKER: By whom are you employed? 

MR. KERSTEIN: I am employed by Federal Paperboard. I am a national sales 
manager and their headquarters are in Montreal,New Jersey and I live in Mahwah and most 

of my work is done in Bergen County. 

SENATOR PARKER: Thank you. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: Thank you very much. 

MEMBER OF THE AUDIENCE: Mr. Chairman, I must enter a protest here as a 

point of information. As has been the case of some people who have testified before 
this committee, there are conflicts. The very important question just asked by Senator 

Parker--

SENATOR GREENBERG: Just a second. You are excused, Mr. Kerstein. Thank 

you very much. If you have testimony that you want to give this Committee, I'll take 

it. You can come back up, sit down at the microphone. You have already testified and 

we will be happy to hear you again, but I don't want speeches from the floor with regard 

to people who have testified. You are welcome to come back up and testify. 
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MEMBER OF THE AUDIENCE: I wasn't about to give a speech, Senator. I was 

just going to give you a point of information with regard to Senator Parker's question. 

SENATOR GREENBE~G: We will take that point of information from here, not 

from the floor. The next witness will be Carole Schoen. 

C A R 0 L E S c H 0 E N: Thank you Senator. 

SENATOR GREENBE~G: Mrs. Schoen, I notice that you are represented to come 

from or speak on behalf of Parents for a Quality Education, is that true? 

MS. SCHOEN: Ye&. 

SENATOR GREENBE~G: And do you, in fact, speak for that organization? 

MS. SCHOEN: Ye&Q 

SENATOR GREENBE~G: Would you please identify ~t and where it is and what 

it stands for and also do yqu have a copy of prepared text or not. 

MS. SCHOEN: It is a long story. The copies are still pack in Milford 

with somebody who was going to leave them and didn't. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: You can submit them to the Committee aide at any point 

and any synopsis of that that you can give today would be appreciated. 

MS. SCHOEN: Parents for Quality Education, a local group conce+ned with 

the quality of public education, is against the reappointment of Commissioner Burke 

because he has failed in more than one of his responsibilities. However, on the local 

level, one of the most serious failures is Commissioner Burke's failure to uphold the 

T & E law as stated, "A thorough and efficient system of education includes local 

school districts in which decisions pertaining to the hiring and dismissal of personnel, 

the curriculum of the school, the establishment of district budgets and other essentially 

local questions are made democratically with a maximum of citizen involvement and self

determination." Fred Burke has failed to enforce this law and thus has failed to carry 

out one of his most basic functions of that office, that of upholding the law. In 

fact, what he sqpports is minimum involvement. His position is that citizen involve-

ment is restricted to election of local board members and attendance at their meetings. 

At some districts, and ours is one of these, the board of education does not run the 

district. It is, instead, run by the employees, the chief administrator and/or teacher 

union representatives. There is, in this situation, no possibility for the citizen to 

have meaningful input to public education. There is no opportunity to speak for the 

children of the district. The citizen or parent has just as little influence as he had 

before the new T & E law was passed, almost four years ago. The success of quality 

public education requires eq~al sharing of philosophies and knowledge of citizen, parent 

teacher and administrator. This obviously can not happen with Fred Burke a~ the Commissioner, 

for he has proven his inability to deal with enforcement of this law. Plea~e do not 

allow a continuity of failure. Thank you. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: Thank you. Senator Maressa? 

SENATOR MARESSA: No questions. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: Would you please tell us--perhaps you did and I missed 

it--the nature of the function of the organization that you represent? 

MS. SCHOEN: Okay. We are a small group, approximately two dozen people, 

who formed five years ago to present to the board of education those weaknesses which 

we saw as parents of children. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: Are you from any particular geographical area? 

MS. SCHOEN: We are from the Westwood Regional school district, Bergen 

County, Township of Washington and Westwood, approximately 6000 pupils. 

SENATOR GREENBERQ: Thank you very much. 

Dr. Eugene Bradford? 



E U G E N E B R A D F 0 R D: Thank you for the opportunity to speak today. My name 

is Dr. Eugene J. Bradford. I am the Superintendent of Schools in Caldwell-Wast Caldwell. 

I speak today for myself, not for my board of education nor for any organizations to 

which I belong. However, I also speak as one of a three member group that was asked 

by the Commissioner of Education to review the offices of the county superintendents 

of schools. So far, we have reviewed eight of those offices and it is on that basis 

today that I wish to make and direct most of my remarks. 

Perhaps I should begin by indicating the charges that were given to us by 

the Commissioner concerning the work that we were to do. The Commissioner asked us to 

find out effective are each of the offices in carrying out the responsibilities that 

were given to them particularly under the T & E law; what has been done well in those 

offices and what has not been done well; and what factors have prevented the most 

effective achievement of the objectives of the T & E law and what processes should 

be modified,Beleted, replaced, etc.; and what improvements could be made for the next 

year. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: Doctor, you had better not tell us about Burlington, 

Camden or Essex. 

DR. BRADFORD: We have done some of those, yes. As we were asked to do this, 

the three of us involved in this, Dr. Kentribone, who is the Superintendent of Schools 

in Vineland and before that Superintendent of Schools in Camden, and Dr. Sam Aboff, 

who is the Superintendent of Schools in Elizabeth and myself, all three of us, before 

we assumed this responsibility, asked a very pertinent question for all of us, and that 

was the integrity of our assignment. We were assured and it's been carried out to this 

date that there would be no interference with anything that we were to do. All the 

information that we received would be kept private and confidential and any information 

that was to be sent to the Commissioner about our observations would not identify 

individual sources. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: Doctor, would you tell us what the relevancy is of your 

analysis or report of what you have done. 

DR. BRADFORD: I am simply reporting that all of the 21 commissioners are 

representatives of the Commissioner of Education and carry out for the Commissioner his 

responsibilities in the county. They carry out the monitoring responsibilities of T & E, 

the review of budgets. My summary, if you would like it that quickly, is simply that 

the offices have been carried out beautifully, the people representing those are highly 

professional and that the responsibilities have been very effectively done in those 

county offices. We reviewed particularly the T & E responsibilities as well as busing, 

transportation and all the rest of those activities, and I think the Commissioner is 

well represented in the counties by the officials in those offices. I was pleased--

it was my first time to have that intimate a look at the county offices and I was most 

pleased. We did make some suggestions to the Commissioner and he was responsive to 

those suggestions and all in all the result of our study has been, I think, to confirm 

the opinion that the Commissioner is doing a good job and certainly should be reappointed 

and that his officials carrying out his jobs in the 21 counties are doing an effective 

job. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: Doctor, I don't mean to minimize the significance of what 

you have done or what you are doing or will do. I am just suggesting that, in fact I 

know, that the Senate Education Committee would be most interested in the contents of 

that report, but that has to go to the question of what's happening under T & E, etc. 

and what we are interested in at the moment is the relationship between that and Dr. 

Burke and whether or not there, in fact, should be confirmation of his appointment and 

that's why I wanted the bottom line that you just gave me. 
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DR. BRADFORD: Well, the bottom line is that the people that represent the 

Commissioner and really carry it out, the operational officers of the Commissioner, 

are doing a good job. They are monitoring what they are supposed to monitor and they 

have been effective in it. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: Alright. Senator Maressa? 

SENATOR MARESSA: Is this as a result of his influence? 

DR. BRADFORD: Yes. He i~ very aware of what is going on in the counties. 

I take great pleasure in the fact and bring it to your attention that he was secure 

enough to ask for an unbiased opinion from a peer review group. That took a lot of 

courage and I think it is iQdicative of his willingness to listen to people and I have 

found him so. 

SENATOR GREENBERQ: Senator Parker? 

SENATOR PARKER: Were you funded in order to do an in-depth study? 

DR. BRADFORD: No, it was purely expenses. 

SENATOR PARKER: Were you given time off from your school district, your 

school duties in order to make the evaluation on an in-depth basis? 

DR. BRADFORD: OQe of the days only. The 'rest of the time was done on 

vacation time. I did all tqe reading--we received voluminous literature--tpat was 

all done at night and on the weekends. 

SENATOR PARKER: A couple of the witnesses have been critical of citizen 

or parent participation and the lack of it. Did you find any problems with the par

ticipation that is required by T & E, that the parents and the citizens of the com

munity participate in the preparation of the plans for T & E for any local district? 

DR. BRADFORD: A~ far as we were able to ascertain by reading the records 

and reading the minutes of meetings, every community had a parent involvement in the 

original setting of the goa~s for each community. +n some instances there was as many 

as two or three hundred out and in some communities the interest was very light, but 

there was an opportunity for them to participate. In fact, I think in one or two 

communities there were only one or two persons present, but that was not the Commissioner's 

problem. In our area, in Essex County, our numbers were in the hundreds. 

SENATOR PARKER: Thank you. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: Thank you very much. Dr. 

Dr. Walter L. Marks? 

w A L T E R L. M A R K s; I am speaking on behalf of not only myself and the 

administrative staff of the Montclair public schools, but I am also speaking on behalf of 

the Montclair Board of Education. 

SENATOR PARKER: Did they authorize you to speak on their behalf? 

DRo MARKS: Yes 1 they did. 

SENATOR PARKER: Did they take a formal vote? 

DR. MARKS. Yes. My comments will take approximately four minutes. These 

comments that I offer are in support of the renomination of Dr. Fred Burke as Commissioner 

of Education and you have heard much about Montclair this morning, but little about the 

Commissioner by one of our c!tizens. 

It pas become popular recently to lay the collective ills of New Jersey 

education at the feet of Fred Burke, as though these problems that took decades to 

develop can be blamed on a commissioner of education who arrived in New Jersey a short 

tive years ago. Older schoo+ builqings in urban areas such as Newark and Camden and 

other urban areas did not suddenly need major capital repairs overnight. Rather, they 

were allowed to deteriorate by local boards of education and superintendents, for many 

years to the point that it is questionable whether tpey should be repaired or torn down 

and begin again. 
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A very recent concern about drugs in our schools implies that this is 
a new problem that has developed since Dr. Burke came to New Jersey, when in truth, 

educators and parents have trying to stop this overwhelming trend for many years. 

Poor student achievement is not a new phenomenon. For as long as there 

has been formalized education, there have been those who can not learn without special 

help and the poor reading, writing and math skills of college freshmen is not just 

a New Jersey problem but rather a pattern being seen across the country. 
These problems are the direct reflection of many social ills and they 

can no more be solved by one man than can problems of poverty, poor housing and adequate 

medical care for broken families. They should be the concern for all of us, parents, 
educators, businessmen, legislators and law enforcement officials. At a time when our 

problems have been clearly defined for us, we should be working togetper to support 

those who are trying their best to improve matters, rather than looking for a place to 

lay blame. I am heartened by the concern and attention paid to these problems by the 

State Department of Education under Dr. Fred Burke's leadership over the past five 

years and I feel that it would be unfortunate to disrupt this process just when the 
effects of new programs started by him and his Department will begin to be felt. The 

ills of our schools did not occur overnight and they will not be solved overnight, but 

I have seen the beginning of what could be real progress. For example, over the past 

five years Dr. Burke has had the responsibility of putting into effect the sweeping 

changes called for by the "Thorough and Efficient" legislation, changes that affected 

the public schools of the State in a very short time more than any other single influence. 

The sheer size of the reform act itself made the initial implementation of T & E an 

almost unmanageable job. It is easy to look back and say we might have done some things 

differently, but we can say that T & E is off the ground and moving in the direction it 
should. Through the leadership of Dr. Burke, the public schools have been provided with 

a framework for future planning. They have been given guidance in setting goals and 

objectives and by the way, Senators, when Dr. Burke came to this state, many local boards 

and superintendents didn't know the definition of "goals and objectives". We have at 

least, now, in 600 plus districts, we know what goals and objectives are. 

Under Dr. Burke's leadership, the State department has had a profound effect 

on school finance in New Jersey. for he has presided over a department during a period 
of the most severe financial crisis education has ever faced in this State. Indeed, it 

began when we had to bring the public school system to the crisis of July of 1976, when 
the court ordered all public schools closed until constitutional means could be found 
to finance them. Never before had anything like this happened on a statewide level in this 

country and there were no precedents to guide Dr. Burke or local superintendents or 
boards, and the pressure has continued as the Commissioner has had to implement an 

entirely new system of financial accountability to comply with the T & E legislation. 

Not the least of these pressures has been the responsibility of making difficult decisions 

concerning cap waivers, decisions which are bound to alienate taxpayers on one side 

and the educational establishment on the other. The Commissioner has had the almost 

impossible job of coordinating curriculum planning with budgetary accounting. Under his 

direction schools in the State have been developing and will implement next year the 

program planning, budgeting and evaluation system and he has had to introduce this process 

by which educational output could be measured in some way and then relate back to the 
dollars spent on those programs. 

In short, Dr. Burke, in my judgement, has been forced to move education in 

the State in the direction of remedying past deficiencies and at the same living with 
greater fiscal constraints. 
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Under Dr. Burke's stewardship, public schools have maintained local con

trol, but the level of supportive services coming out of the State Uepartment has 

increased. The move to decentralize services from Trenton to the county offices has 

brought the resources of the State Department closer to the local level. The Educational 
Improvement Centers, valuabl~ resources to local educators, have been increased in 

number and expanded in servi~es and we are now moving toward the concept of the 

educational services commission on a county level. This educational service commission 

will allow school districts to maintain local autonomy while unifying to provide 

more services at reduced costs. 

In the area of providing equal educational opportunities to all students, 
better known as desegregation-integration, Dr. Burke's administration has moved, in my 

judgement, in a well though put, less disruptive, but forceful manne~. The integration 

of schools has remained a top priority and New Jersey can still say proudly that there 

has never been a district in the State under court order to desegregate. I appreciate 

this opportunity and thank ypu. 

SENATOR GREENBEf.G: Thank you. 
SENATOR PARKER: In that regard, Doctor, Ms. Simmons indicated thal the 

public and citizens were not involved or participated in that progr~ in yoqr school 

district. 

DR. MARKS: As I've sat.here this morning, I appreoiate the job you have of 

sorting out fact from fictiop. Just to give you an example of that, there was a lady 

who spoke from our community at a hearing before the disputes and controversy, that was 

one of the contentions. There was a lengthy hearing. We prese~ted our side and they 

presented theirs and there w~s no basis for tne facts on that statement made and that 

id documented. There was al~ kinds of citizen participation. 
SENATOR PARKER: I'm refering more to the desegregation plan. 

DR. MARKS: That's what I am refering to. There w~s a hearing conducted 

by the Disputes and Controversies. 
SENATOR PARKER: When was that? 

DR. MARKS: Abopt three years ago. We went to a voluntary integration plan 

from a forced busing plan. We were asked to do that by the C~issioner, by the way, 

and of course, he supported it and you might come to Montclair somettme and see that. 

SENATOR PARKER: Except for the disputes, when the matter was done and the 

plan was adopted by the board, it was, I assume, done in public forwn and was the public 
permitted to participate and discuss this? 

DR. MARKS: We had, over a period of about eight mop.ths, a number of public 

hearings on the plan, before the board ever adopted it. In fact, there was about eight 
plans before the board and there was a hearing on all of them. Of course, we were under 

the Sunshine Law and everyth~ng we did was public and it was adopted at a public meeting. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: Thank you very much, Doctor. 
DR. MARKS: Thank you, sir. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: rrohn Hawus? (no response) Not present. Paul Tractenberg? 

(no response) Not present. Joan Corbet? 
J 0 A N c 0 R B E T: Good afternoon, gentlemen and thank you for permitting me to testify. 

My name is Joan Corbet. I am <I membr~r of the Board of Education 

in Westfield, New J~rDey. The Board is extremely grateful to this 

forum for perndttinv us to testify. 
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Westfield has long demonstrated a commitment to excellence in 

education. Before the T & E law came into existence, this dist.ri ct 

had clearly established process goals. Three of these goals are 

relevant to th.is hearing: 

- "Recruit, develop, and retain well qualified staff. 

- Develop a strong management team. 

-Establish and implement procedures for·evaluation and 
accountability of personnel and programs." 

Tl!.e district personnel policy is likewise direct and definitive: 

1. "To dnvelop and follow strategies and procedures for 

p('rsonnel recruitment, screening, and se.Zection which wi l.Z result in 

employing the best available candidates i.e. those with the highest 

capabilities, strongest commitment to quality education, and the 

greatest ability to implement the district's education program." 

Staff members new to Westfield are chosen with great care and 

deliberation. Administrative openings are announced not only to 

staff but to outstanding graduate schools throughout the United 

States. Competition for positions is keen; evidences of the highest 

qualities are sought. 

Once staff members are employed, they are evaluated blJ their 

superiors. All administrators are judged by their performance of 

objectives, and their salaries, in part, are based on meritorious 

performance. 

I respectfully suggest that if our district values so highly 

the selection and evaluation of professional staff so should the 

State of New Jersey. 

Does anyone deny the need for an outstanding individual to 

serve in the important post of Commissioner of Education? Should not 

the State of New Jersey, like school districts throughout the state, 

measure the abilities and accomplishments of its educational leader 

against similar accomplishments of other educators throughout the 

United States? 
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renomination? 

Should.not the state's top position be filled by one whose 

quest for excel~ence and whose record of leadership is unquestioned? 

Should not those charged with recommending an individual to implement 

the laws regarding education open the position and institute a nation-

wide search? For only thea, will candidates from within and from 

outside be able to offer their record of accomplishments, their com

mitment to e,;ce.llence, and their aloofness from politics. 

We in Westfield read with alarm newspaper reports concerning 

the present Co~ssioner by the Governor and others, It is not our 

function to evaJuate him. It is within our right to ask for an 

appraisal of hifl past performance. This appraisal should then be 

mc •• sured aga.inst the performance of others who matJ apply. 

We ask you, the Senate Judiciary Committee, not to make a 

sham nor a mockery of this appointment. We in the local communities 

cannot demand excellence of our students, of our teachers and of our 

administrators unless we see evidence that the Governor and the 

Senate seeks excellence in the highest position in the state. 

As John Gardner wrote, " ..• excellence implies more than 

competence. It implies a striving for the highest standards in 

every phase of life." 

· Lest you tune out this request because it comes from a 

suburban school district, and urban revitalization is a serious goal 

for this legislature and administration, may we ask you to join wi.th 

us and Jesse Jaokson to develop a state-wide strategy to 

"fush for Excellence." 

Thank you very much. 

SENATOR GREENBE~G: Thank you Ms. Corbet. I assume you speak for the board. 
MS. CORBET: Ye~, I speak for the entire board. 

SENATOR PARKER: Befo~e you go, do you support or take any position in the 

MS. CORBET: I feel that I could not support the renomination of the 

Commissioner. I think the q~alities of leadership and excellence that we find would 
be re cessary have not been evidenced. 

SENATOR PARKER: You made reference to comments by the Governor and others. 
~aybe I'm not familiar with ~hose. 



MS. CORBET: I think that the overriding comment that concerned us the 

most was the comment by the Governor, whether made facetiously or not, that the 

appointment of the Commissioner was made because he has made very few mistakes and he 
hasn't gotten into too much trouble and I think those of us who have standards of 

excellence in education are looking for more than somebody that hasn't gotten into 

a lot of trouble. 
SENATOR ~ARKER: Maybe that's just more than leadership of a commissioner's 

office. 

MSo CORBET: I think those states that have developed a processing in which 

the educational direction is removed from the realm of politics are those states which 

we ought to emulate. 

SENATOR PARKER: Just going through what Dr. Marks just indicated and 

some of the others, the difficulty in trying to get T & E and the funding, and really 

the problems, the horrendous problems that we have been through in the last couple 

of years, do you think it would be possible for us, with our system the way it is now 
going, and under the present leadership throughout the State, that it would be possible 

to get somebody more familiar and could do a better job and bring in a higher set of standards 

to do the job? 

MS. CORBET: I certainly think that we can look for that somebody, yes. 

I think we can certainly do more of a nation-wide search for an excellent educational 

leader. It may very well be that Commissioner Burke is the only person who is available 

to you at this time, but I think that the concern of those districts that are promoting 

excellence and are trying to see their students strive for excellence is that there is 

leadership at the State level that is willing to accept less than excellence. It is 
willing to accept mediocrity. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: It is interesting that you should say that because, 

others or at least one that I recall, who testified against the nomination, indicated 
one of the reasons is that we should make a thorough search of someone from New Jersey 

in order--! think he said that there must be more competent people in New Jersey, 

indicating, I think, that the Commissioner was not a New Jersey native. I share your 

view that the boundaries of the State should not be the boundaries of the search and 
I think I should also add, at least in my"judgement, the remarks atrributed to the 

Governor in connection with the alleged reason for the appointment were made more in 
jest and facetiously than they were of a serious nature. Frankly the remarks of the 

Governor and any other people or individual should not be despositive as I have said 

of;this Committee's action with regard to this nominee. I think that when you are in 
an area as the Commissioner of Education that the job is so important for future 

generations and people who live in this State, that the normal considerations of a 

Governor having an almost automatic right of a cabinet of his own choice, I think, 

is subject to greater scrutiny in a case such as this and I think that's what this 
Committee intends to do. 

MSo CORBET: Thank you very much. I think that is precisely the point 

we had hoped to make in our testimony. 

SENATOR PARKER: I have one further question •. Is your district one of 

those that is having trouble with the caps and the limitations on spending and not 

being able to provide what you feel is the thorough and efficient education because of that? 

MSo CORBET: I would accept the first half of your question, but not the 

second half. Yes, of course we are having trouble with our caps. Of course we are 

having trouble accomodating the kind of program we would like to do with the financial 

restraints that have been placed on us, and of course we are very concerned with the 
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feeling that education in New Jersey is going to bring the top districts down to a 

medium level and allow the lower districts to come to a medium level" I th~nk, at 

this point, we are still providing a thorough and efficient education. Our futu;e 

planning projection, though, concerns us tremendously, as to whether or not we would 

be able to continue doing that. 
SENATOR PARKER: Well, your district is one of the ones that come to mind 

as one of the wealthier districts and I worry about bringing that down and the problem 

of the leadership and the statements by the Commissioner that he is not going to allow 

cap waivers in those so-called affluent districts. I wonder if that had any basis 

for any part of your opinion here today. 

MS. CORBET: No. I think the affluence of our district can be looked at 

in several different ways: affluence in terms of income per family: affluence in 

terms of tax ratables: affluence in terms of average spending versus the New Jersey 

State average. While residents in Westfield may be affluent income~ise, the community 

is not affluent when it come~ to the formula that is used to devise the caps, since we 

don't have a large number of ratables and since we spend j~st above the state average. 
so, in that sen~e,--

SENATOR PARKER: You would be one that if you did have problems, he wouldn't 

give the waiver to you or t~oretically, you wouldn't get a waiver. 

MS. CORBET: Probably. I think that we are concerned about the fact that 

over the years we have been very outspoken and so we decided not to go for a waiver. 

We thought that we had lost the case before we made it. 
SE~TOR PARKER: Well, I'm very much concerneq aboQt it, as I expressed 

earlier, and I "'anted to see what·your feeling was, coming from Westfield, which, in 

my mind, puts yo~ in that category. 
MS. CORBET: We have, over the years, had to eliminate one program and 

tighten up on some staffing. We are still running a thorough and efficient program. 

It might not be quite to the level that we would like to see and quite to the level 

that some of the parents would like to see, but I think that we are more concerned with 

our future projections than we are with our current situation. We really see, five 

years down the road, that the caps would put a district like this in a position where 
we really would have to impa~t our program offerings. 

SENATOR GREENBE~G: Thank you very much. Sandra Zaccaria? 

SANDRA Z A c C A R I A: I am here to speak to you primarily as 

has been very, very much involved in the citizen movement in education 
time. In terms of the proceedings that we have had here for the three 

SENATOR PARKER: Excuse me, is that in Cumberland County? 

a parent, who 

for a very long 

days--

MS. ZACCARIA: No, you're close. It's the very, very closest tip of 

Atlantic County to Cumberland. 

SENATOR GREENBE~G: Would you tell us please what the Educational Study 
Group is? 

MS. ZACCARIA: ~t is a small group of local parents who have worked over 

the years to build citizen ipvolvement in the public school~, to inform the community 

about educational concerns apd issues. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: And you speak on behalf of that group? 

MS. ZACCARIA: Yes and I would like to mention also that it is a member 

group in the organization known as ACE, the Association for Citi~ens in Education. 

SENATOR PARKER: Excuse me. What township is that? Could you identify the 

township? 
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MSo ZACCARIA: Yes, it's Bueno Boro. The school district, since the 

focus of this is education, is Bueno Regional School District, which encompasses 

Bueno Vista Twp. What to leave out and what to go on with, I guess, is the problem. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: Well, is there something prepared that you have? 

MS. ZACCARIA: Yes. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: So, you know that you can leave that? 

MS. ZACCARIA: Well, I can, but I would like to make some of it public. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: I welcome you to do that, but what I am saying, what-

ever you have written will be taken in toto and incorporated in the record. 

MS. ZACCARIA: Okay. Concerning the reappointment of Commissioner Burke, 

I'm afraid that I will have to stand as opposed to his renomination. I've given a 

lot of thought to the positive presentations here and have a lot of respect for the 

difficulties of the man's position. However, throughout all the testimony, I have to 

say that I have heard nothing of the Commissioner's specific accomplis~nts over the 

last five years, n~r have I heard anything about his educational goals for the next 

five years. We have listened for three days and still do not know what his philosophical 

positions are on educational issues, nor do we have any outline or specific plans which 

will address the areas of continued concern that were identified by the Commissioner 

in his presentation before this Committee. 

In contrast, I find the evidence in the testimony of those opposing 

Commissioner Burke's renomination to be most specific, detailed and well documented. 

I have nothing to add to those cold, hard facts that stand as testimony to Fred Burke's 

performance as Commissioner of Education. However, there has been a lot of discussion 

about the question of leadership. No one has yet defined the quality and nature of 

leadership. Everyone has agreed that it is the key component to the job of Commissioner 

and I would like to consider what kind of leadership the Commissioner of Education 

should provide and has Commissioner Burke provided that leadership? I would like to do 

that, however, through my own experience in my own district over the past eight years. 

I would like to make some personal comments and observations about our 

public schools, education and the need for leadership that will result in progress and 

change. I speak as a parent who has been in pursuit of quality education and citizen 

participation and involvement in public education for eight years. I began by attending 

local school board meetings when the oldest of my three c~ildren started kindergarten. 

For the past year, I have been attending State School Board meetings and actually missed 

fewer than Commissioner Burke himself. I have attended dozens of conferences on special 

education, gifted education, individualized instruction, early childhood education and 

most recently, a conference on violence and vandalism in the public schools. 

I not only am involved in education at the local level, through the Educational 

Study Group, but I am Vice-President of Advocates for Education and I am Vice-President 

of ACE, the Association for Citizens in Education. My experiences with public education 

have been shattering and depressing. I would like to explain why. As I walk my child 

to school on her very first day sharing in the excitement and enthusiasm of her new 

adventure, I learned quickly and harshly that parents are not welcome and would share 

very little of my child's new world with her. Can parents visit the classroom? Only 

with the teacher's permission, upon adequate advance notice and with good reason. 

Can my husband come in once a week and work as a volunteer aide in his daughter's class

room? No, it might distract the children and interfere with the teacher. What of the 

parent whose child was having difficulty in school, who wanted to visit that child's 

classroom, but was repeatedly refused by the teacher. The parent then filed a grievance 

which ultimately reached the school board. A hearing was scheduled, postponed and then 
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rescheduled for a date in July. Having no other recourse, the parent walked to the 
classroom uninvited and was threatened with a possible call to the police. Then, 

we wonder why the public feels alienated from the schools: why parents are not ipterested 

in their children's school experiences. How can there be interest without involvement? 

At public board meetings, local board meetings, our questions about the schools were 
met with intimidating challenges as to our right to know, be intormed and involved. 

Were we a legitimate parent group, wll5ch leads one to wonder what is an illegitimate 

parent group. We had to argue for our right to speak, receive agendas and minutes and 

use the public schools for community meetings. Where is the reality that the public 

schools belong to the public and must be open to public use and public scrutiny? When 
the operation of schools is so costly, with so little return in student performance, 

fiscal and educational accountability and community use, is it any wonder that there 

is so little support for puQlic schools today? The task of being a concerned and caring 

parent involved in your child's education is a frustrating and dehumanizing interaction. 

Now, let's step inside the schools anq feel the structure and environment 

in which the child is immersed for six hours every day over thirteen years of his young 
life. 

SE~ATOR MARESSA: Mr. Chairman, may I interrupt for a second? Ms. Zaccaria, 

did you complaiQ to the Commissioner about th.is and fail to get a re:;sponse? I dar.• t 

see the connection between all these problems, which I'm sure exist, and whether or 
not we should confirm the Governor's nomination for Commissioner. 

MSo ZACCARIA: Perhaps if I was allowed to coQtinue, you would. 

SE~ATOR MARESSA: Well, I've been waiting for about three or four minutes 
to see a connection and I don't see one. 

MS. ZACCARIA: ~ose specific things were not brought ~fore the Commissioner. 

I have written letters concerning other things involved with trying to remove a tenured 

teacher from a classroom. 

SE~TOR MARESSA: In other words, we want to know what the Commissioner 
did wrong or right. 

MS. ZACCARIA: Okay, but I would like to suggest that all of these problems 

grow out of the absence of leadership. 

SENATOR GREENBE~G: Our problem, you see, is that you have a local board 

of education. Is it appoint~d or elected? 

MSo ZACCARIA: :It is elected. 

SENATOR GREENBE~G: And you belong to a group of concerned parents, so I 
assume that you have been vo~al at the local level, and if you nave a local board that 
is not responsive to these very basic needs of parents, with which I sympathize, the 
first thrust is to take action at the local level. It is related, in a sense, to the 
activities of the Commissioner, but as has been testified to by at least twenty people, 

so far, not every ill in a local district can be laid at the doorstep of the Commissioner. 
If, in fact, the Commissioner did not function in specific areas, we want to hear about 

that. We have general testimony with regard to his leadership or lack thereof and any 

more that you wish to give, J would like to hear, but the problems, each individual 

problem at each local school district, I guess we could sit here forever. 

MS. ZACCARIA: Yes, but what I would like to suggest at the culmination 

of all of this is that as a parent involved in education all of these problems are 

addressed to in T & E. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: Not violence in the schools and some of those things. 

MS. ZACCARIA: Oh, yes it is, if I could please continue. 
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Now, let's step inside the schools and feel the structure and environment 

in which the child is immersed six hours every day over thirteen years of his young life, 

about which you have no choice, because school attendance is compulsory. Are the 

children respected as individuals, each with their own learning style? Are they moti

vated to learn with encouragement and prasie? Is there acceptance of both success and 

failure without ridicule? Is discipline constructive rather than punitive? Are they 

encouraged to be creative and spontaneous or are they taught the skills of problem 

solving or divergent thinking? Are they permitted to participate in the decision 

making process that affects their daily lives? Are they treated with compassion and 

dignity? All of these are found in T & E. They are all itemized and listed in T & E. 

Is there a feeling of mutual respect between the teacher and the child? It is my 

sincere belief, having been involved with parents in South Jersey for a long time, 

that the answer to these questions in most schools would be a resounding no. Instead, 

we would see children performing their work tasks like automated robots, teachers who 

focus on the number of wrong answers instead of the number of right answers and project 

failure on a child because he does not learn as fast and does not conform to the group 

norm.. We would find first graders divided into groups already labeled, establishing the 

pecking order of who will be the doctors and who will be the dropouts. We would see 

children herded around in army fashion only to stand here and wait after hurrying so 

very fast. You would see our teachers shouting, demanding and commanding, speaking 

at children instead of with them or to them. We would see uniformity and conformity 

and we would see children lined up with their noses against the wall for punishment. 

The cause for vandalism and violence in the schools springs from an environment that 

is repressive, punitive and dehumanizing, where children are not even accorded the 

basic rights found in the Constitution, which we all enjoy. The answer to violence 

and vandalism is not harsher punishment and stricter discipline, but rather respect 

for every child as a person, a loving and accepting environment and a caring and dedicated 

professional. This is all in T & E. 

However, the saddest chapter in the story of public education is when it 

fails to educate the child. We have heard the devastating statistics of our minimum 

basic skills test, but seldom are we reminded of the tragedy at the other end of the 

spectrum. Before entering our child in school, we had her tested and learned that she 

was performing two years above her chronological age. In kindergarten, they taught her 

her colors, numbers 1-10, and the alphabet. In first grade, they taught her to read, 

something she had already been doing for a year. By the end of second grade, she was 

doing nothing in school and no one seemed ·to know why, but she did. As a 7 year old, 

she said, "Mommy, why do I have to do the same papers over and over again, every day, 

I already know how to do these things. I want to know how to do new things. That's 

why I go to school." The schools response was that they could not make exceptions for 

individual children. The child entered school with an IQ of 156 and with every year 

of education, her IQ slowly dropped. When pressed to develop a program for gifted 

education, the superintendent stated that "A community like ours, which is a small, rural 

community, has no gifted children." Then, a miracle happened in the form of legislation, 

known as T & E, because it specified that--and this is from, directly from the T & E, 

the early T & E, and that;s the distinction, an iinportant one--that, "districts shall 

develop individual talents and interests and serve diverse learning styles to motivate 

pupil achievement, to provide educational opportunities for exceptionally gifted and 

talented pupils and to provide specialized and individualized educational experiences 

to meet the needs of each pupil." With the anticipation of that mandate and in the 

interest of our child, we had no recourse but to threaten to sue the district for failing 
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to meet her individual needs and to provide a thorough and efficient education as 

spelled out in the administrative code interpreting the Public School Education Act 

of 1975. This was not necessary. The next year, the district started a Saturday 

program for superior students. At the beginning of fourth grade, we found it necessary 

and at the recommendation of the child study team, to remove our child from the public 

schools, because they just had noth~ng to offer and because we could no longer 

sacrifice her future and the promise we saw in her capabilities. 

The par8nts and citiaens of this State have been provided with a moat 

sensitive instument that will make education fulfill the promise it holds to the 

children of our State. When T & E was first introduced, I attended several conferences 

at EIC; which were about T & E; which were about goal setting, which was an important 

part of T & E; which were about developing standards, goals for children an a much more 

individualized basis than T & E exists today. I work with my district and day by day 

saw T & E became less and less and less the tool that it was. I participated in that 

watering down process. Therefore, what I'm suggesting is that the leadership that we 

need now in New Jersey will definately speak through all that is there in T & E, will 

speak to citizen involvement, will speak to the development of a humane and positive 

environment in our public schools, will speak to quality education that recognizes the 

needs of all children to grow and develop to their fullest potential. We need a leader

ship that will come up with positive, constructive and creative plans. I have not 

heard any offerred yet by our present Commissioner. At this point in time, I have to say, 

four years later, I still find public education the means to ameliorate all children 

from mass mediocrity and unfortunately this Fall, I don't have much choice but to take 

my other two children out of puplic schools. Thank you. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: I find it interesting and I'm sure that the next 

commissioner, whoever he is, will hopefully read the transcript of these heariQgs, 

because your views are probably shared by a great many people in terms of what the objectives 

of education should be and are. The ultimate question of whether this Commissioner 

is capable of accomplishing them or sufficiently attempting to do so is yet to be 

resolved. I thank you for those thoughts. Senator Maressa? 

SENATOR MARESSA: No questions. 

SENATOR PARKER: No questions. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: Thank you very much. Mayor Kenneth Gibson? 
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K E N N E T H A. G I B S 0 N: Good afternoon, Senators, I appreciate 

the opportunity to be with you. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: We thank you for coming. 

MAYOR GIBSON: Senators, I understand the hearing procedure. I would 

like to submit to the Committee Aide, for the record, the entire statement that 

I intend to make, and we have other copies available, if they are needed. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: It will be incorporated into the record, and 

available for all Senators on the Committee and otherwise. 

MAYOR GIBSON: In case there is any doubt concerning why I am here, I am 

here to support the re-appointment of Commissioner Fred G. Burke. I thank the 

panel for the opportunity to do so. 

Undoubtedly you have heard, or will hear, testimony that will deal with 

the specifics of Dr. Burke's abilities as Commissioner - chapter and verse 

testimony attesting to his unquestionable abilities as Commissioner. 

On the other hand, you have heard, or will hear, testimony which addresses 

related tasks which confront us as a State and Nation, tasks which must be undertaken 

with thought and creativity in order to improve the quality of education. 

I know this panel will not confuse the two separate issues. The all

encompassing problem of improving the level of education and the abilities of 

Dr. Burke as Commissioner are two distinctly different issues. They are related, 

but not the same. An excellent driver and a broken-down truck can be related, 

but they are certainly not the same. Some people would have you blame the driver 

because the truck is moving slowly or not at all, without considering why the truck 

is malfunctioning in the first place. 

I went to Newark Public Schools. I received a good education, as did 

most other students, in those schools at that time. Approximately two decades 

after my graduation from high school, Fred Burke became Commissioner. He became 

Commissioner at a time when students in Newark were not receiving a good education. 

He became Commissioner at a time when students in Newark and in many other school 

districts were being graduated without proficiency in basic skills. Why? 

This is the real rquestion facing our State and Nation. Anyone who 

says he or she has the complete answer to this question is suffering from an 

incurable case of egomania, self-delusion - or is just a chronic liar. 

Never mind having the answer to the problem of education in our State; 

who do you know who can completely resolve the matters of local control versus the 

State court and legislative mandates; or tax relief while providing school programs 

and physical improvements; or categorical funding as opposed to equalization aid; 

or declining enrollment versus rising costs due to inflation? 

If anyone here knows of such a person, the City of Newark will make 

that person an offer he or she can't refuse, and take that person back to Newark 

today. 

Wishful thinking aside, we have had a man come to Newark to help us 

continue our efforts to improve the education of our youngsters, while these 

other matters, many of which are deep-rooted in bare fisted politics, are argued. 

I trust that one is not required to make completely arbitrary judgements 

to be Commissioner, because Dr. Burke has been firm without being arbitrary when he 

has been involved with the Newark School district. A person who never listens 

will never learn. Commissioner Burke has listened to many presentations by the 

Newark Board of Education; and, consequently he has learned the weaknesses of our 

62 



• 

district, as well as our strong points, and we do have strong points. Thus, 

Commissioner Burke has been able to carry out the mandates of the State with 

empathy. 

Given the magnitude of the problem of education in New Jersey, decisions 

reached and directives given with a sense of empathy make far-reaching decisions 

and directives more meaniQgful. 

I am not an ed4cator. In fact, there is a school of thought which 

contends there are no eduoators - only people involved in the learning process, 

with a person or persons responsible for giving directions to that learning 

process. 

Commissioner Burke has given intelligent direction to the learning process 

in the State of New Jersey. 

It is difficult to solve a problem unless you understand the magnitude 

of the issues which are involved. It is virtually impossible to solve any 

problem until one is willing to admit a problem exists. In the State of New Jersey 

many people were reluctant, if not openly opposed, to admitting there were problems 

with education - that is, outside the urban centers. 

Commissioner Burke's minimum basic skills tests gave measurable results, 

indicating the strengths and weaknesses of our students in reading and math. Now, 

we have a fix on these problems in the primary and secondary .J.eve.J.s. Many people 

would have preferred that we remain ostriches, but Commissioner Burke pul,J.ed our 

heads out of the ·sand and made us look full square at the problems. And, lt was 

not only parents and concerned citizens to whom he addressed the results, but 

to our teachers as well. Commissioner Burke has insisteq that the educational 

tool which ha~ been developed and used under this direction be carried to its 

next logical step: That of being part of the solution fqr learning in the 

classroom. The necessary diagnostic data for remedying a problem of far-reaching 

proportions have been made available to each of the school districts. 

Once again, through the leadership he exerts, he is wor~ing closely 

with the people who actually run our schools to make sure that this basic information, 

the results of the basic s~ills test, is applied and used in the best educational 

fashion. It is being used creatively as part of the ongoing task of raising the 

quality of life which will be available to us all. 

Interestingly epough, this particular leadership and support role is 

ongoing for Fred Burke. Tpe manner in which he has "taken hold" on this very 

basic problem of basic skills is not a new perspective for him. Dr. Burke knows 

the importance of interaction among all levels of educators. He established what 

he calls, in good educational language "an academy" to do just that - and brings 

superintendents and teachers, school board members and business administrators 

to the State Of;lpartment of Education for an exchange of views in small group 

workshops and seminars. 

Many elected and appointed officials never give the City of Newark 

a chance to exchange views. Commissioner Burke has a bad case of integrity. 

Speaking on behalf of the citizens of Newark, we hope that this could be contagious 

in our State. Many a morning, I have read criticisms of Newark, without the 

elected or appointed official having taken the time to discuss the matter with us 

before writing the press release. We have come to call them "one shot - cheap-shot 

headline grabbers." 

Co~issioner Burke has too much integrity to use this method to make a 



name. From my observation, Commissioner Burke is not about the matter of making 

a name for himself - but about making education better for our children. 

If we can imagine education as a sailboat going in the wrong direction, 

then we all must understand that the sailboat must be set back on the proper course. 

There are some people who expect that the person at the helm should attempt a 

quick U-turn. The outcome of this type of helmsmanship is completely predictable: 

The boat will capsize. Commissioner Burke is a helmsman who knows he must bring 

the boat about on an even keel - as even as possible. Fortunately, Commissioner 

Burke has the sound judgement and skills necessary to accomplish this. 

The next two or three years are going to be very trying for those of 

us who have been elected or appointed to deliver basic services to the citizens of 

New Jersey. I need not take this panel through any litany to prove that this 

assessment is accurate. We have all heard that testimony. Many of us are satisfied 

just to say government is "caught between a rock and a hard place." 

I know Commissioner Burke is not satisfied with that kind of defeatism. 

With his capabilities, experience, integrity and empathy, Commissioner Burke 

will look for - and I feel certain, find - that path which will lead our State 

through the "rock and the hard place." Thank you. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: Thank you very much, Mayor. While you are here, 

and while I understand your remarks are more expansive than those orally presented, 

and we will have the benefit of your prepared statement, I wonder if you would mind 

responding to just a couple of questions which have been raised as a result of 

prior testimony, especially in connection with the City of Newark. 

There has been some suggestion in testimony received by this Committee 

that Commissioner Burke unjustifiably views the limits of learning capacity,and 

presumably intelligence, of children in urban areas. In fact, one of the witnesses 

who testified equated that with a form of racism. On balance, I think what she 

was saying was that the Commissioner should have a higher regard for the capacities 

of the center city children and urban children than he does, and that the 

deficiency which results from that will inure ultimately to a limited learning 

on behalf of those children. You are the Mayor of the largest urban area in the 

State, and I wondered whether or not you have a view on that subject. 

MAYOR GIBSON: Yes, sir, I do. I think that Commissioner Burke has 

been unfairly charged-- based on some newspaper stories, primarily, related to 

either a speech he made, or presentation which was taken out of context. If I 

thought that Fred Burke was a racist, I would not be here testifying on his behalf. 

I want to make sure everybody understands that. 

I think, however, that to use the story that reported that Commissioner 

Burke had some reservations about the learning capacities of urban center young 

people, which was, I know, taken out of context is unfair. The unfortunate 

thing about the society in Which we live is that once somebody raises the charge 

of racism, it is very, very hard to live it down. I think he has gone about 

conducting himself in a responsible fashion. He has not made the headlines shot 

in order to correct those kinds of charges. I think based upon wqat I have seen 

in the newspapers recently that you can't correct those kinds of charges, because 

if they are after you they are after you. I think, frankly, as related to Fred Burke 

in New Jersey, I think there is at least one newspaper which is 'based in my city 

Which is never going to give him a fair shot. Once that happens--- Some of you 

have experienced those kinds of things in the past. I don't think that there is 

anything this particular individual is going to be able to do besides fire that 
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particular newspaper. I really believe that. Now, I think that is unfair, but 

unfortunately, sometimes those kinds of charges, especially when repeated every day, 

are never going to be lived down in the public arena. The unfortunate thing is 

that professionals in the educational field should continue, in IllY opinion, to do 

their job regardless of what that kind of reporting does. 

SENATOR PARKER: In that reyard, there is a sp~cific charge that he had 

lowered the stanqards for the minimum level of competency, or the test requirements 

in order to pass those, and maybe that is a corollary as to what Marty indicated 

as the charge of discrimination, or reverse discrimination, that it was done 

to get them throQgh, and thereby severely impaired or destroyed, or helped destroy 

the school system by doing that. Can you comment on that? Has that pappened? We 

have gotten some information and I have asked our staff, anq we are getting the 

information, which indicates basically that that was not true, that the standards 

were set by the Commissioner and the State Board of Education, and have only been 

set once. I have already gotten same information on that. Would you want to 

comment on that? 

MAYOR GIBSON: I really don't know the details of that charge. I have 

heard that kind of rumor, but I don't believe it. I would say that the level of 

performance in Newark has improved in recent years primarily because I think we 

have been given support in order to manage our system better. We have a long 

way to go. I don't want anyone here to say that we have solved our educational 

problem in Newark. We are a long way from it, but we are moving in the right 

direction, and if we are moving in the right direction under this leadership, I 

think we ought to continue that direction. 

Now, we can argue whether or not we should be going faster. But, 

I would say to you very, very carefully we are moving in the right direction. 

And, I don't think that education in the State of New Jersey is ever going to be 

an issue that is going to be debated without some emotion. Anyone who is Commissioner 

of Education in this State in my opinion is going to be controversial - if that 

person does anything, or even if he does nothing, he is going to be controversial. 

So, I don't think that any Commissioner of Education in this State will ever 

be anything but controversial, education being a very emotional issue, very emotional 

service. I think, again, the gentleman we are speaking of has done a very good 

job for our State, and I think he should continue. 

SENATOR PARKER: I just want to comment on that. I do have before me 

a report on Newark, and the one thing I specifically want to comment on, and 

congratulate you for, is that I know on the statewide statistics, the poorer 

districts, a lot of them, are diverting their local effort away from educatiop 

and into other areas. Therefore, the level of total money and support for the 

school districts is going down, and therby aborting T & E. 

I see you did that in 1976 when you dropped your local from $27 million 

to $17 million. I want to congratulate you and the Board for bringipg it up to 

$28 million in 1977-78 and br~nging your level up to $37 million on the local level 

this time, so that your percentage is continuing to grow. I think that is important. 

To me it is important, and I think to education generally it has to be important, 

because if we ever hope to do anything with the Newarks and get them out of their 

problems, it is to educate their children and make sure the money is going 

there to educate them. I want to congratulate you on that, becaQse I know you 

are not in the trend with apparently a lot of the other districts. 
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MAYOR GIBSON: Thank you. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: Mayor, there has also been some testimony received 

concerning the deficit in Newark. I wanted to await for you to appear, because 

I wanted to have an opportunity to ask you about that. I have never discussed 

that subject with you, and, frankly, we have heard that from more than one person. 

The charge in general is that he knew it was happening, and he never said anything 

or never reported it until after it occurred, and as a result of that non-disclosure 

the school system suffered, Newark suffered, et cetera. Can you fill us in on 

that a little bit? 

MAYOR GIBSON: Well, it is not true that that issue had not been discussed 

before it became publicized. That is one of the problems of publicity, of course. 

The question of whether or not there was a deficit in Newark schools was discussed 

for several years. The Commissioner and his staff had raised the issues. The 

Board of Education in Newark had challenged whether or not there was a deficit. 

The Commissioner was flexible - I think that is the best word to use - to see 

whether or not there was going to be a deficit at the end of the year. Once it 

was realized that there was a deficit, we were given direction, the Board of 

Education and the City of Newark, to clear it up. And, of course, Boards of 

Education and staff people not being elected, at least in Newark, tended to request 

of the Boards the money that they thought they needed to run without regard to 

the deficit situation. We argued that deficit situation for several years in 

Newark until the Commissioner put his foot down and said, okay, you folks at the 

local level cannot resolve it, primarily the Board of Education. You are now 

directed to resolve it, and you can't come down here and pretend that you are 

going to resolve it in one year. You must do it--- We were required to correct it. 

I think that whether or not we should have been required, in the City 

of Newark, to do it in the first year is a question. At the same time, we were 

going through a change in administration in the Newark Board of Education from 

one Executive Superintendent to another. The debate about budget figures as you 

all realize when you go through the accounting process at the end, whether or not 

you have a deficit or a surplus was argued. The incoming Executive Superintendent 

could not testify to us as to whether or not there was a deficit or a surplus'. He 

plainly argued that he didn't think that he had a deficit. 

We gave them at the local levelthe benefit of the doubt. So, we countered 

the Commissioner of Education, and we said, we didn't think we had a deficit. In 

fact, we had a deficit, after all the accounting procedures were gone through. The 

Commissioner told us to clean it up. Now, we have cleaned it up. In my opinion, 

better late than ever, and we have bitten the bullet in the City ot Newark, not 

only on the Board of Education side,but on the city side. And we are still alive. 

The City of Newark's school system is going to function, and the city is going to 

function. We are fiscally responsible. I think we have been more responsible on 

the city side than the Board of Education has, but the Commissioner gave us 

directives and we are following them. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: Thank you. I have one last question. I know 

Senator Parker is interested in this as well. Walter Wexler came in to work 

with the problems for a while. The Senator just asked me what the present status 

is, and what is happening in Newark. In fact, we have had some people testify 

that they recommended a State takeover of Newark's school system. 

SENATOR PARKER: You still have the auditor, right? 

66 

• 



• 

MAYOR GIBSON: I qm not sure whether the State could run it any 

more efficiently than we are. 

SENATOR PARKER: I would hope we would stay out of it. 

MAYOR GIBSON: After the Wexler Study, there was a recommendation 

that the Auditor General be qesignated for the City of Newark, and that was 
I 

done. The Auditor General paid out of the City of Newark's State money. The 

Auditor General is kind of aq overseer, financial oversee. His function is to 

report to the Commissioner on things as he sees them concerning the financial 

matters. The Auditor General in the very beginning of this whole question of 

the deficit kept reporting that these books were in a deficit and they don't want 

to admit it. We at the local level argued with the Auditor General as to whether 

or not there was a deficit. I think the Auditor General has done his job. I think 

his reports to the Commissioner were accurate. I think that as an elected official 

at the local level, we tended to side with our board of education this time rather 

than accept the report of the Auditor General as being valid. 

I have learned a lot from this process, quite frankly. 

SENATOR PARKER: Is Walter still the Auditor General? 

MAYOR GIBSON: No, Walter Wexler was not the Auditor General. He was 

a person who conducted the study. The Auditor General was designated by the 

Commissioner's Office. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: Finally, I would ljust like your thought on the 

subject. Much of the negative testimony has centered on an alleged lack of 

leadership quality, I think. There is testimony that the Co~issioner tends to 

waffle. Those were the words that were used. He does not make a decision -

evidence of a lack of leadership, and as a consequence, the ship is ruderless, 

or captainless. You had. personal experience with him, obviously, froll\ the 

testimony that you have given here today. Do you have an opinion for us with 

regard to your view as to the - and I think you already touched on it, but I would 

like to hear it - newspaper reporting. 

MAYOR GIBSON: I am in general agreement that that is an unfair charge. 

You know, there are styles of leadership, which we all recognize. I have been 

charged with the same brush, so to speak. Some of us do things with a lot of 

charisma, publicity, and others of us do it in .a way that still gets the job done, 

but does not produce that kind of charisma approach. 

Commissioner Burke, in same personal experiences, has called me on a 

number of occasions. He has said, "Mayor, by law, I know there is a difference 

between your power and that of the Board of Edu~ation, and the Executive Superintendent. 

I do think, however, that you ought to know certain tqings. " He woull give me some 

information. He would make suggestions to me as to how I could help get the job 

done. 

He would say, now, "I can't give you orders. I can't give you directions. 

I am giving you advice from my office." A person who has no leadership would never 

do that. In fact, most people never call the Mayor, as I said before, before they 

make charges and issue directives. The Commissioner always called and always showed 

me that he was sincere, and had the leadership capabilities, pushed me to do certain 

things where I frankly did not do them - relative to the deficit situation. And, 

I think he gave us an opportunity to see whether or not we could clean up our act 

before he gave us directions. 

You know, we could argue whether or not he should have come down with 
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a heavy hand, and zap the City of Newark and the School Board, but I think he 

gave us an opportunity to see whether or not we could do it ourselves, and we 

did not do it and he gave us the direction. That is, in my opinion, leadership, 

not charismatic leadership, but qt the same time, it is getting t~e job done. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: Thank you. Senator Maressa, do you have any 

questions? 

SENATOR MARESSA: No. He has made his point rather clear, and I 

understand it fully. Thank you, Mayor. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: Any further questions? If not, we thank you very 

much for corning down. We appreciate it. 

SENATOR PARKER: Before I leave, I wonder if we can do two things. I 

have asked John whether we have received any testimony from the PTA and also 

the State Board of Education, and from other groups. I think, because of the 

importance of the issue, that maybe we ought to request to invite the head of 

the New Jersey Parent and Teachers Association, to hear his view. I would 

be very much interested in that. We have heard many citizens here today, but 

1 would be intr.rested in the major parent and citizens' group, if you want to 

call it that, organized in this State. It would appear that thAy aro avojding 

earning here for some reason, or are somewhat reluctant. I would still like to 

hear the views of the head of that organization and that State Board of Education. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: Well, Senator Parker, you are free, of course, 

to solicit whatever views you wish. I don't think you have the power, nor do I, 

to compel these people. 

SENATOR PARKER: I know that. I didn't mean to compel them. I did 

miss the others, and I apologize that I was in an active trial, and I couldn't 

get out. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: I urge you to seek whatever information you want. 

And, if you want the full Committee support, we can discuss it at our Committee 

meeting and see if the majority of the people want to do that. But, in the 

interim, of course, you are free to do that yourself. 

SENATOR PARKER: Or maybe John can just inquire whether they intend to 

or whether they feel compelled in any way. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: John, why don't you do that, but indicate that it 

is being done at least at this moment on behalf of Senator Parker, and if we have 

to go beyond that, perhaps we will. 

It is now two-thirty. Senator Parker has to leave. Senator Maressa 

has to leave. We have several witnesses yet to go who have not been reached today. 

And, others who were reached and are not here. So, it is obvious that we will need 

at least one more day. The date and time, I frankly cannot set until I speak 

with the other members of the Committee. I would like to have more of them here 

than we had today, but, those of you who have not been reached, but who have 

indicated a desire to testify will be notified in adequate time by Mr. Turnulty 

of our next date which will be within the next ten days, hopefully, and those 

who have been reached and are not present will also be called by Mr. Turnulty 

so they know when we are meeting again. That might well be the last meeting, 

because, as you know, we cut off the list at the end of today of additional 

people who wish to testify and I think that one more day might do it. 

Of course, I am awaiting, the report from the Attorney General which 

we will have before any final consideration is made of this matter. 
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SENATOR PARKER: How many here who have not testified today wanted 

to testify? One, two,three, four. Would it be of any benefit to you to 

give us your written statement? It might save you the trip coming back. 

SENATOR GREENBERG: Senator Parker is suggesting that those of you 

who wish to do that can do it. On the other hand, if you want to be heard, which 

you have a right to be, then the Senators have to leave, and they regret that 

we will have to come back another day. Is that about it? 

So, if anyone wants to submit their written statement in lieu of 

testifying, we will be happy to do that. Otherwise, we will see you at our 

next session. I thank you very much. 

(Hearing concluded) 
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1 ' SUBMITTED BY DR. JOHN DONATO ;- STATE Of' N~w JEr<SEY 

D~!:PART~n::-;T oF J:::ouc"no~ 

22!5 WEST STAT£ ST<~EET 

I 
I 
I 

I, 
I 

,., 
TRENTON, N. J 

Cl'"nCI; OJI' THE COMMISSIONER October 27, 1978 

~-. Dr. Fred G. Burke, Commissioner 
Department of Education 

I ', I .. 

I 

• • J 

225 West State Street 
Trenton, N.J., 08625 

Dear Commissioner Burke: 

The Board's independent auditors have completed their review for the 
fiscal year ending June 30, 1978 and the results of that audit indicat~ 
a current operating budget deficit of 3.6 million dollars and an ) 

. accumulated deficit of 4.6 million dollars. . . · 

It is significant to note that the proble~·/;~~~lth the school year 
ending Juna 30, 1977. At that time the B~ealized a current . 
operating deficit of approximately 1 million dollars. This was primarily 
attributed to the Board bear~ng the cost of school crossing guards · 
(whose cost of llpproximately.$600,000 was shifted to the municipality 
in the subsequent year), as well as the Board pf Scho~~ Estimate·r~ject
ing a request by the Board of Education for an emergency appropriation 
of approximately 1 million dollars. 

lihen the 1977-78 budget was set in place, it was clear from the outset 
that the anticipated revenues would not adeq.uat.ely add. ress the. proje.cttd· .. 
cost of operations. This was substantiated by the fact that: the prio i-
ties of the Boards "Rernetlial Plan" were not in concert with the budget . -
as strt:.ctured, that an additional pay period WQUlcl .... ,..:...!CQ.~>• u.onn • . 
in that year due to how the pay calendar had .fallen, that all costs 
associated with salary n~gotiations were not fully determined, that a · \ 
7% overall reduction in Other Expenses would result. in ove~expenditures) 
in that category, and that adequate budgetary controls had not yet been 
'reinstituted. During the course of the 1977-78 school year, the adminis
tration, aware of tpe problem instituted certain administrative measures 
to address the situation~ However, when it was surfaced on April 10, 197: 
that those steps thus far taken would not be sufficient, it was recommend4 
that the administrations plan had to be expanded to include staff reduct
ions. This recommendation called for a revie\V' of personnel rosters~·- . 
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Those areas fecommended \'lere the approximately 1200 part-time employees 
t including hourly and per-diem personnel, all non-permanent or provisional 

employees approximating 1700 in number, and zd.l other non-instructional 
staff such as custodians, school aids~ bus attendants, guards of public 
property, etc. 

The Board of Education however, c.h.o§.e__.nQt: ... J:.o consider reductions ;J.n ) • 
staff which res~lted in an overexpenditurJl~~-3.6 million dollars for the. 
school year end~ng June 30, 1978. 

In addition, the Board's President has indicated to you in his letter 
of October 3, 1978 that the present operating budget would not be 
adequate to meet the financial needs of the district to provide a 
quality education as exhibited by the Board's 6.~illion_~illar a£geal 
presently before you. , -- . 

When one considers the amount of the appeal of 6.4 million dollars and 
the accumulated deficit of 4.6 million dollars, it is clear that there 
is a potential 11 million dollar impact on the current year's operating 
budg:et. ----

In view of the fiscal situation currently prevailing at the Newark Boa~ 
of Education, it is my opinion that the total financial impact be address
ed. In this regard it is recommended that before final determination of 
the budget appeal is made, that all pertinent data be considered. This 
is to include the plan requested of the Newark Board of Education to . 
rernediate the accumulated budget deficit. While it is expected that oner 
of the plan options will consist of n reallocation of funds as well as . J • 
previously recommended staff reductions, another option of the Board may 
be to continue operating at present expenditure levels and force an . . 
early closing of schools. 

In the event the Boards plan for remediation does not adequately address 
the present fiscal situation, it is then recommended that a more direct 
approach by the State be undertaken, by jointly reviewing the current 
years operating budget with the Municipality and the Board of Education. 

Respectfully submitted, · 

~;~jt,J?2:~fhfzizS 
TJ11/cgh 
CC: Board President 

Board !1ernbers 
Executive Superintendent 

Thomas J. Marshello, 
Auditor General 
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l0A:4-55.16 MUNICIPALITIES AND COUNTIES . 

;ime to time, but a~teast ~of all such notes, and the renewals 
hereof, shall mature and be paid in each succeeding year so that 
Jl notes and renewals shall have matured and have been paid not 
ater than the last day of the third year following the date of the 
.pecial emergency resolution. ' 
•. 1968, c. 194, § 4, eff. July 19, 1968. 

IOA:4-55.17 Applieabillty of tax anticipation notes pro\i
sions to special emer-gency notes; fiUng 
resolutioa 

The provisions of the chapter l1ereby supplemented relating 
0 tax anticipation notes shall apply to special emergency notes. 
\ copy of the resolution shall be filed forthwith after it is adopt
~d with the Director of the Division of Local Finance in the De;. 
Jartment of Community Affairs for that pm·pose. 
:...1968, c. 194, § 5, eff. July 19, 1968. 

IOA:4-56. Contracts of special or technical nature 
A local unit may, if it so elects, enter into a contract for the 

Jurposes set forth in 40A :4-53 without advertising, provided 
the governing body shall, by resolution duly adopted by not less 
than % vote of the full membership thereof, determine that th~ 
services to be rendered are of a special technical nature and thus 
~viii not permit of special advertising. In the ease of the pur
;>ose set forth in 40A :4-54, the provisions of general laws re
lating to contracts and public bidding ~hall control. 
Laws 1960, c. 169, § 1, eff . .fan. 1, 1962. 

Source: C. 40:ro-9 (L.l956, c. 48, 
l I); C. 40:50-ll (LI956, c. 48, I 3). 

40A:4-57. Expenditures void without appropriations 

No officer, board, body or commission shall,. duri.na a.uy fiscal 
year, expend any money (except to pay notes, bonds or interest 
thereon), incur any liability, or enter into any contract which by 
its terms involves the expenditure of money for any purpose for • 
~\·hich no app1·opriation is provided, or in excess of the amount 
appropriated for such purpose. 

Any contract made in violation hereof shall be null and void, 
and no moneys shall be J)aid thereon. 

Nothing in this section contained, however, shall prevent the 
making of contracts or the spending of money for 

a. Capital projects to be financed in whole or in part by the 
issuance of notes or bonds; 

'114 • 

:;, 

'·\~· 
~ 

·:,. 

(. 
··::-: 

i 
>:.;~ ,·: 

~,~ 

"$._ 

'~" 
-of: .,.. .. 
~f 

... 
~:~ 

·,..;; 

.;.~: 

. ·+-
·.i 
e 

·.J 
--~ 

--~' 

-~ ~;_: 

'/ 
.__..... 

.. 

_:-;;. 
. -· · .... ·, __ ... -~-..·~ 

·;.-':.:;·_ . LOCAL BUOOETLAW 40A:4:..57 
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b. Contracts or lease~. the.:te-rme:.of.whieh exceed.the rr«al. 
yea~ ill ~whi6la sucli. eentnidi ate. t.&cte, wh:~ prOvided by law; '".. .. .· 
. c. T~. ;;».rchase of the right. .tttJe··and interest in the ria1i~ . 
·ot-~ot.a,. ~ raffway com~ 'in''Uie mlinieipalrt,y~· \rhea ·: 
said. I'Qrht-otlway extends in, over·a~d ··along any publie street 
or highway in this State and the i~provipg or pavirig ·of said 
right-of-\vaytafter the same has been acquired. 

Nothing iJ this section shall apply to the use of funds of de
partments, for the operation of which budget appropriations 
are not made, nor to contracts· for professional services for the 
liquidation or foreclosure of tax title liens in such nmnicipali
ties wherein it . is agreed that the cost of the services are to be 
paid, in all or in part, from the funds derived, or to be derived 
from the redemption of liened property or the sale of foreclosed 
property; The use of funds of such departments and for such \ 
service contracts shall be subject to approval of the Director of 
the Division of Local Govemment Services in the Department ) 
of Community Affairs. · • 

Laws 1960, c. 169, § 1, eff. Jan. 1, 1962. Amended by L. 1977, c. 164, 
§ 1, eff. July 19, 1977. · 

Source: R.S. 40:2-29, as am. L. 
1945, c. 155, 5 l; I •. I!Y".ri, c. 54, I 1. 

1977 Amendment. newrote par b. 
of third parugrarJh which related to 
"making of cuntrncts of l(':tl>e. or for. 
sen·ices, or for fuel to be nsed for 
heating P11l'll0f«!S or for snow or gar
hage n.•movnl lor a J)('riod excef.'ditlg 
the fiscal year In whtt-h such con
trnet is mad~. when otherwise pro
\"ided hy law"; made par. c. of third 
rmragrur1h from former lnHt para
gr:tph and del('t{'() introductory clause 
which reud: "Prm·ided, further, that 
nothing In this liC'ctinn, nor In sec
tion H.~. 40:!"JlHI o! this Title, !+ball 
prcn•nt a mnnlclpnllty from making a 
contract for tlte ~:ptonding of money 
for"; and ndded Jusl paragraph. 

The J>rovisiOfS in last paragraph 
were formerly, CO\"ercd by former 
I.J0:00-6. 

Law Review CQflunentarln 

The f2alt-&:·Pepper Q4se": Indict
ment of public ofiiCC!r for vote to \lls
bnrse publfe monies in excess of tbc r appropriation. F. X. IJuyes (SI>ring 

, l!n'O) 14 N.J.State Bar J. 21. 
Tbe "S4Jt-ol-Pepper Case" revisited. 

A. A. Goldberg ·and J. A. Alloway 
(Summer 1970) 14 N.J.State Bar J. 14. 

Notes of Decisions 

In general I 
Actions 15 
Additional work 14 
Annual budge~ 9 
Appropriations 4, 5 

In general 4 

~ 

Contln;ent ex.pense approprla· 
tlons 5 

Bonds 8 . 
Contingent expense appropriations 5 
Employment contracts 12 
Itemization 6 
Ordinances and resolutions 7 
Purpose 2 
Ratlflcatloa of contract 13 
Temporary budget 10 
Validity of contracts II 
VIolations 3 

I. In general 

This section prohibiting expendi
ture by municipalities of unappropri· 
ntt>d fundic' did not preclude court 
from ordering thnt rc,·ennes dlstribn
tnble by state trcn!lurer to the city to~ 
lll'neral pnrpo!ICS be instead dtl'erted 
to the Board of Taxation to relm· 
burse It for cost of financing re\"ftJo
atlon of city's asiK'SSed realtr after 
the city bad retulled to undertake . .. 
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PUBLIC OFFin;ns .\:\'0 OFFICES 2A:l35-l 

Note 2 

""----

+ 

CHAPTER 135 

PUBLIC OFFICERS AND OFFICES 
Section 

ZA :135---1. 
2:\:135-2.-

2.-\:135-3. 

2A :135--4. 

2.-\:135-5. 

2.-\ :135-G. 

2.-\:135-7. 

Neglect of official duty. 
Failure of municipal official to prevent continuance of 

Ia w violations after recci\•ing notice. . 
Public officers or employees unlawfully obtaining state. 

county, municipal or school district funds. 
Unla· . ...-ful detention of public property by public offietr 

after expiration of term. 
Di!;bursing moneys or inru1-ring obligations in excess of 

ar,propriations or amount limited by law. 
Proceedings in relation to bids or proposals for public 

equipment, supplies, works, etc.; penalty for noncom- t 
pliance. J 

Officers or employees of institutions having interest ill J 
furnishing goods or supplies thereto. 

-2--\:135-8. ..,. ~!embers of governing bodies of counties, municipali. I 
ties and school districts not to be interested in public I 
contracts. 

2.-\: 135-9.- Forfeiture of office or position; restoration on reversaL 
Personating public officers or employees. 2.-\:135-10. 

2.-\:135-11. 
..---...2A :135-12. 

Unauthorized persons taking acknowledgments. I 
Inq.uiry of appli~a~t for relief as to religion, creed, poU.~-

tlcs, etc., proh1b1ted. { 
--- ·aA_.:135--13. Relief work, using position to influence political lc- ~ 

tions or soliciting or recei,·ing political contributioD.I j 
prohibited. r 

Cross References 

A>:.:...'lultin~ prl'~i·l••ut, de-c pr<'~iolc-ut, ~0\"l'rllor, ell-., see §::!A :1-!8-6. 
Rril>ery and corrurotion, l'ee ~ :!.\:~I:J--1 ct !:'1'1'}. 

Em!Jezzlem~ut, !'I.'C § !:?.\:102 -1. 
Escapes, sec§ 2.\:101-let seq. 
Extortion, sec §§ 2.\:105--1, 2.\ :IO:::i-2. 
:lfurdcr by killing officer, sec§ 2.\:113-1. 

2A:i35-1. Neglect of official duty , 
A public officer who willfully refuses or neglects to perfonl 

.any duty imposed upon him by law, is guilty of a misdemeanor:· 

Source: R.S. ~:t(l()-1. 

Historical Note 

I..lS!lS, c. 235, I 23, p. SCO (01 
p. 1750, I 23]. 

i 
i 
' 

i 
I 
J 

f 
f 
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f 
Cross References 

l't:Hi~hnwut fur llli~<lf'lll~':LII"r, _,,.,. § 2.\:.".1-i. v 
Library References 

{lffic••r:< C=ol::!O l't ~P<J. 
l' .. J.~. Offkc·•·" § 1:1:11-t >:eq. 

Notes of Decisions 

Admissibility of evidence 13 
Civil acllons 4 • 
·construction and application 
Defenses II 
;:tection officials, Indictment 9 
Evidence 12-14 

In general 12 
Admissibility 13 
Sufficiency 14 

IPdiclment 5-10 
In general 5 
Election officials 9 
Miscellaneous officers 10 
Police officers 6 
Prosecutors 7 
Tax officials 8 

Instructions 16 
Malfeasance 3 
Miscellaneous officers, Indictment 10 
Misfeasance 3 
Nllure and elements of offenses 2 
Nonfeasance, misfeasance, and mal· 

feasance 3 
Police officers, Indictment 6 
Prosecutors, Indictment 7 
Review 17 
Sufficiency of evidence 14 
Tax officials, Indictment 8 
Witnesses 15 

I. Construction and application 

lleff'n<laut who lp<l h<'en rl'tain<"'cl 
1-y dty to (·orHiud irulept·ncJcont an
r.naJ au.lit for three yf.'ars, l•ut wl1o 
61 not Jlll~""~" any power of l!'o,·•·rn
:,ont or make any cle<-i~inw< in rda
~i·•n to polic-iL•,; and )lrng-rams and 
•bo.•e only fnn(-tion was to provide 
>r·n·icc to <-ity which was l'<'<tnin·cl to 
rhtain that sen~icc by ><tatnte was an 
'in!kfll•ruleut contraetor'' :11111 wn~ not 
' "IJirhlic lt(ficcr" anti wa;: 11nt pn•p
'rly iJICJid\'d for IIOJI((•asan(•p ill or
~- State v. Jnd<•lleato, ~~ X..J.Sn
~t. :iOO, !?10 .A.2d 233 ( l!lG.il. 
~ 

N J SA 2AcllJ-2Aol51-21 321 

D.-Jinqtu·ney of ,,ffic-<·r in n•t•'•l'liu~ 
f•·lluw officc.•r';. \\Ton;.:fnl :l<'f.s llli;.:ht 
have ~uhje<·tl•d him to indielnr<'llt. 
:-:tatf' ,._ io:tr-<•nSI'n. :;:; x .. l.~llfll•r. 10:!, 
1 t:l .\.2o) 20:1 (J!l.i.>). 

2. Nature and elements of offenses 

It i.~ lint rr•·•·•··"" f)' t l1at ll11• lon•aeh 
of a •llrty 1·~- a J••rlolie offi<-ia I he l'X· 

prt·.--ly •ll•t·lan·cl hy J.q.;i"laturc t•1 he 
a crinu•, hut \·i.,latit•n of duty to )Hlh
lie i.< it:<.-lf a (·rilll<', for which the of
f•·n•lt-r may l11.• inclit-t<:cl at c·•Jrnmnn 
hw, :uul th!' dnty may :Jrbc out .. r 
tilL• 'c·ry nallll'l' of the offic:f'. .\p
J•<'al nf ~[<.·>''-:1110, ]tj X.J. 1-!2, lOG .\. 
·•J"'l-(1•--t 
_, ··-' ,1., '· ~ 

.\t (-ulllmon law. l'Yt·r~· JllllJlic offi-""' 
•···r wlr., wilfully w•:.:l•·•·l<·<l to JH·rfonn 
any •luty whi<-h he was honu<.l eitll(·r 
l•y comm•m law or hy :--fatutc to per
form committl'<l a mi;;dcm<'anor, pro
,-i,Jiu~: that <li:<dJarge or !';IJ('h duty 
w,1,. n .. t aftf'Hrl<•<l with ;::rPater dangPr 
than man •·f ol'<linnry firmnl'ss an•l 
al'th-ity mig-ht ll<> cxp<-l'tecl to Pncoun
IPr. ~tate ,._ Winnf', 12 X.J. 1-i2, !lti 
.\.::!rl t);J IJ(J,j;j). 

.\n offkc lrnl<l<'r i:< indi.-talolc at 
, . .,llllllt•n law wlu•re he wilfully or 
•· .. rruptly Jlf'~IP<-ts or <leclinP~ :111y of
fiPi:ll <luty, "·h .. thc·r prc»nih,·d h)· 
writtf'n law or hy umnittc-n law. 1<1. 

\\"l••·rc C<•llnty pr"'<'<·utor wilfnll~· 
n·fn«',. tt, :J<·t. wit hnnt just <·:lll>'(' or 
•·w·•b•'. he i~ ;.:nilty of hr!':H·h ••f <Int.'· 
n·nch'rin~ !tim lia!tlc to iu,Jidm•·ut, 
:111<1 prMec-utor is inclic-taulc for inac
tion and ll<'glr-c·t in ca.-ryiug o11t his 
•hrtit·~ witho11t n·j!'anl to wh<'llaer his 
in:letion :.1111 ll<'.!.:led l"l'slllt,.,l from 
his C•>rt'IIJ•t i<on. 1<1. 

l"ncler tlw c·onunon law, wilful uc
;.:lt'<:t , ... failure or ~ puhllc offiter to 



4H srrERiiYR COU!T OF XEW JF.RSEY, 1969. 

Er:t'<e '~"- Bont't-lt>t. 1'J7 N.J. Stcpef'. 

THE ~T.\TE OF ~EW .n:m:J.:Y. l'L.U~TIFF-HESPO~DE~T, , 
~. C:H.\ HLES G. EO~CEI.I·;T, DEI<'E~DA:\'T-Al'l'ELLAXT. 

:;uperior C'1ort of Xcw J er><~'y 
Appdlate Dhi!;i(>ll 

.\r;;n•d October 2i, l~Ded<led ~o,·embt'r 17, 1009. 

~YXOPSIS 

JJ·-···r.,]:rct \\'ilS c-onYidr-d in the Superior Court, Law 
Di\·i<on, :\lirl•lL·:~I'X County, tor Yiolation5 of Loc-al BlHlget 
L:w, r.nd he appealed. The SupNior Court, _\ppellnte 
Di,·i<•~n, hr:ld that defendailt, :t membC'r of borough council 
a:1d c!.airman of its finance ('Qtnmittee, by Yoting to incur 
liaLi:ities chargt'ab~e to four !ine items in Ludget in amounts 
"·hir·h r:xer-c·ded sums approp:-iatcd and by Yoting thereafter 
to transfer funds from two otber line item appropriations 
to :1.ake up alr.:ady incur:-•:•1 owrexpcnditnres thereby o-.er
CXj)·:.ding those two appropriations Yiolah·d Local Budget 
La;,· whic-h was intt'nrled to control mnnic·ipal expenditures 
by 1irw itrm. 

_\ffirmcd. 

1. :\Luicipal corporations C=>885 
f.r,cal Buc:lget Law i>' ;c.!t·ndcd to control municipal ex- J/ '~ .... IV-... ~ 

vnrlitnrPS by lin•' item. X . .1. s. 40"\ :·1-1 rt seq., Y. J. 8. A.. -

?. ~funic-ipal corporatio:1s ~SS5 
I.o(al BuJget Law is int•.n<led to proYicle for municipality 

tomah ends nwet "·ithiu it:<. fio:cal F·ar and hndget expendi-
tures during a. fhcal year ,oh~·ul<l not depart from budget of \/ 
that yc·ar. S . .f. S. -!0.\ :-1-5 ;~ N. J. 8. A. 

3. :\fnnicipal corporati0ns <:>ss5 
DPfenilant, a member of horough council and chairman of 

its finance committee, by Yoting to incur liabilities chargeable 

~ .. 
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JQ1 N.J. Super. 
State , .. llon•·••lct. 

to four line items in buclgct in amounts wl1ich •·XC:C<:•kd sums 
appropriated and by voting tlwrc•aftcr to h;l~ioi•. i' f•:url;; from 
two other line items appropriations to make up a~rf'aJy in
curred overexpenditnres then· by overexpe~ict: !·1g tl.o:=.e two 
appropriations violated Local B111lget Law whi•ch was in
tended to .control municipal ,•xpen•lilur·,~ by line itcm. 

S. J. 8.~5--:), ·10.~ :JS, X . ./. f!. J. 
"-

4. :Municipal corporations ¢;:>885 
OwrexpenJitur«'S incurred when Jdendant >oted to incur 

liabilities ehar:;•·able to four line it.·ms ink ::;._-t ::1 amounts 
exceeding sums appropriated in violation ;:,f L(•c:al Bnc1get 
Law which was int<'ndeJ to control munieipalc~r·· r:(litnrc·s hy 
line item wt."re not renllereu'lrgal by latt'r tran~1:.C.r.~ to tho3e 
items from other accounts for which approp:iations had not 
been exhausted. N.J. S. :!.\ :133-:J, lOA :4:-3~, 3S, S. J. S . .4 .• 

5. Officers c=>121 
Criininal intent is an c-ssent ial clement of co!mnon law 

ofTeme of mi5co11dnd in oi1ice. ~{ . .J. S. :?c\ :S:J-1, S. J. S. A. 

6. )lunicipal c-orporations c=>174: 
To show that defendant violated Loc-al Buolgct Law by 

voting to incur liabilities chargeable to four line items in 
amounts which exceeded sums nppropriat··d and by voting 
thereafter to transfer funrl~ to make c;p pn:Yious over
expenditure'S thereby oYcn•xpending to otJ:.·r appropriation~, 
it was not nccl'ssnry to show that ddl'll•hnt intended to 
profit or otlwnrise brnefit from oYrrrxpc·n,'l.itures and it was 
suffic\_ent if thrrc was an intent to commit the act which 
the law forbade nnd the fimling that .:L:c:Hh::t's conclnd 
was unlawful and willful wonld ~npport ..::l::,rgc of bad faith. 

N.J. 8. 2.\:135-5, 40A:4:-57, 38, N.J. 8 . .-1.. 

7. )lunicipul corporations c=>174 
Evidl'DCC that udenuant, a mcmbcr ..-.f borough COUUI'il 

and chairman of its finance committee, was a col~cge graduate 
and succl'ssful1Jnsinf:~:,man scnin~ l1is thir·1 year as council
man and knew of provisions of Local nn•1g..:·t Law which was 
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